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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 21st Annual General Meeting of SOTC TRAVEL LIMITED will be held on
Thursday, September 15, 2022, at 13" Floor, Marathon Futurex, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013 at 2.30 p.m. to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,

2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.

2. To re-appoint Mr. Madhavan Menon (DIN: 00008542), who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment

3. To re-appoint M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. 101248W/W -
100022, Mumbai, as the Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration: in this regard, to consider and,

if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Sections 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) or substitution(s) made thereof, for the time being
in force), M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (ICAI Firm Registration No.101248W/W-
100022) be and are hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a second term of five
(5) consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (“AGM") until the
conclusion of AGM of the Company to be held for financial year 2026-2027, on such remuneration, as may be
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and Statutory Auditors, from time to time;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board of Directors
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 'Board', which term shall be deemed to include any Committee
constituted or to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorised by the Board in this regard) be and
is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its
absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such purpose and with power on behalf of the Company
to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to implementation of the aforesaid
resolution including but not limited to determination of roles and responsibilities/scope of work of the Statutory

Auditors, negotiating, finalising, amending, signing, delivering, executing, the terms of appointment including
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any contracts or documents in this regard, and to alter and vary the terms and conditions of remuneration

arising out of increase in scope of work, amendment in Accounting Standards or regulations and such other

requirements resulting in the change in scope of work, efc. without being required to seek any further consent

or approval of the Members of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Rahul Bhagat, (DIN:02473708) as an Independent Director of the
Company for a second term of five consecutive years and in this connection, if thought fit, to pass, with

or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149(10), 150 and 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or amendments
thereto re-enactment or substitutions made thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to
recommendation of the Board of Directors vide their resolution dated May 16, 2022, Mr. Rahul Bhagat,
(DIN:02473708), Independent Director of the Company who has submitted a declaration that he meets
the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is
eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation for a second term of five consecutive years commencing
from June 1, 2022 till May 31, 2027,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director(s) and / or Key Managerial Personnel and / or
Ms. Shaily Gupta, Company Secretary [ACS 24078], of the Company, be and are hereby severally
authorized to sign and execute all such documents and papers (including appointment letter efc.) as
may be required for the purpose and file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies / any other
statutory / regulatory authorities and to do all such acts, deeds, things and matters, necessary or
desirable in connection with or incidental to giving effect to this resolution, in its absolute discretion

deems necessary or desirable in the best interest of the Company;

To approve the re-appointment of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi (DIN: 01344073) as an Independent Director of
the Company for a second term of five consecutive years and in this connection, if thought fit, to pass,
with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149(10), 150 and 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or amendments

thereto re-enactment or substitutions made thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to
2
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recommendation of the Board of Directors vide their resolution dated May 16, 2022,, Mrs. Kishori
Udeshi (DIN: 01344073), Independent Director of the Company who has submitted a declaration that
she meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
who is eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director on the
Board of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation for a second term of five consecutive years
commencing from June 1, 2022 till May 31, 2027;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director(s) and / or Key Managerial Personnel and / or
Ms. Shaily Gupta, Company Secretary [ACS 24078], of the Company, be and are hereby severally
authorized to sign and execute all such documents and papers (including appointment letter etc.) as
may be required for the purpose and file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies / any other
statutory / regulatory authorities and to do all such acts, deeds, things and matters, necessary or
desirable in connection with or incidental to giving effect to this resolution, in its absolute discretion

deems necessary or desirable in the best interest of the Company;

To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey (DIN: 00031213 ) as an Independent Director of
the Company for a second term of five consecutive years and in this connection, if thought fit, to pass,

with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149(10), 150 and 152 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modifications or amendments thereto
re-enactment or substitutions made thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Board of Directors vide their resolution dated May 16, 2022, Mr. Nilesh
Vikamsey (DIN: 00031213 ), Independent Director of the Company who has submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
and who is eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director on the
Board of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation for a second term of five consecutive years
commencing from August 16, 2022 till August 15, 2027,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director(s) and / or Key Managerial Personnel and / or
Ms. Shaily Gupta, Company Secretary [ACS 24078), of the Company, be and are hereby severally
authorized to sign and execute all such documents and papers (including appointment letter etc.) as
may be required for the purpose and file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies / any other

statutory / regulatory authorities and to do all such acts, deeds, things and matters, necessary or
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NOTES AND INSTRUCTIONS:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /
HERSELF AND SUCH PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. IN ORDER TO BE
VALID, PROXY FORMS DULY COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECTS SHOULD BE LODGED WITH THE
COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding Fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Statement setting out material facts (Explanatory Statement) pursuant to Section 102(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the Special Business as set out in the Notice annexed hereto.

Members/Proxies/Authorized Representatives attending the meeting are requested to bring with them the
Attendance Slip attached to the Notice duly filled in and signed and handover the same at the entrance of
the hall. Members are also requested to bring their copies of the Notice and Annual Report.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual
General Meeting. The Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which the Directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the
members at the Annual General Meeting.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying notice and explanatory statement setting out material
facts are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours on any
working days except Saturdays, Sundays & Public Holidays between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. upto the
date of the Annual General Meeting and the same is also available for inspection by the members at the
meeting. Members may also note that the Notice of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 will be
available on Companies website at www.sotcindia.com.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General
Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a duly certified copy
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of the Board Resolution together with their specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to

attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

7. Brief resumes of Directors proposed to be re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional
areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships / chairmanships of Board
Committees, shareholding and relationships between directors inter-se and other details as per

Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2), are provided as an Annexure | to this Nofice.

8. To support the ‘Green Initiative’ Members who have not registered their email addresses are requested
to register their email ids with the Company at the email id: Pravesh.palod@sotc.in for receiving the
Annual Report and other communications through electronic mode pursuant to Section 101 and Section
136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as

amended from time to time.

9. Route-map to the venue of the Meeting is as under.
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Venue: 13th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400012

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
324, Dr. D. N. Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

CIN: U63040MH2001PLC131691

Telephone: +91 22 4905 9100

Fax:+91 22 4905 9800

Website: www.sotcindia.com ﬁ
/

Email Id: Shaily.Agarwal@sotc.in

Date; July 25, 2022 Shaily Gupta
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary
ACS: 24078
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The following explanatory statement sets out all the material facts relating to Ordinary Business No. 4 &
Special Businesses of the accompanying Notice of the 215! Annual General Meeting (‘AGM) to be held on
Thursday, September 15, 2022.

ltem No. 3: Re-Appointment of Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

Business set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice relating to the re-appointment of Statutory Auditors is an
Ordinary business. In terms of the provisions of the Act, no explanatory statement is required to be provided
for an Ordinary business. However, the explanatory statement on the same is provided here for the purpose
of facilitating a better understanding of the Members.

The Members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on June 16, 2017, had appointed
Ms. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants [ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W- 100022],
(hereinafter referred to as “BSR”) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five
years (First Term), from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on June 16, 2017, until the
conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held in calendar year 2022. Accordingly, the present term of
BSR as Statutory Auditors of the Company shall conclude at the ensuing AGM of the Company to be held on
September 15, 2022.

Pursuant to Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (Rules), a Company shall not appoint or reappoint an individual as auditor for more than one term of five
(5) consecutive years and an audit fim as auditor for more than two terms of five (5) consecutive years.
Accordingly, pursuant to the said provisions of Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is
permitted to appoint the aforementioned Statutory Auditors for one more term of five (5) consecutive years.

Since BSR will be completing their present term of five (5) years at the conclusion of the 215t AGM of the
Company to be held on September 15, 2022, the Board of Directors, at their meeting held on May 16, 2022
considered the matter relating to re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors and have unanimously
recommended reappointment of M/s. B S R & Co. LLP (ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022) as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a second consecutive term of five (5) years from the
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be
held for financial year 2026-2027, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other
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applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014.

M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, have consented to the said re-appointment and confirmed that
their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies
Act, 2013. They have further confirmed that, they are not disqualified to be appointed as Statutory Auditors in
terms of the provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1), Section 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended.

B S R & Co. was constituted on 27th March, 1990 as a partnership firm having firm registration no. 101248W.
It was converted into limited liability partnership i.e., B S R & Co. LLP on 14th October, 2013 thereby having a
new firm registration no. 101248W/W-100022. The registered office of the firm is at 14th Floor, Central B
Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East)
Mumbai 400063. B S R & Co. LLP is a Members entity of B S R & Affiliates, a network registered with the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. B S R & Co. LLP is registered in Mumbai, Gurgaon, Bangalore,
Kolkata, Hyderabad, Pune, Chennai, Chandigarh, Ahmedabad, Vadodara, Noida, Jaipur and Kochi. B SR &
Co. LLP has over 3000 staff and 100+ Partners.

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on May 16, 2022, considered re-appointment of B S R and
approved and recommended the same unanimously for consideration of the Members. While considering the
reappointment, the Board taken into account various factors including the qualification and industry
experience of the Statutory Auditors, competency of audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence,
etc; and have given due regard also to the order or pending proceedings relating to professional matters of
conduct against BSR before the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and before Court of Law and were
of the opinion that the qualification and experience of M/s. B S R & Co. LLP is commensurate with the size
and requirements of the Company, and accordingly have recommend their re-appointment to the Members of
the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the

accompanying Notice.

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of the

accompanying Notice to the Shareholders for their approval.
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Iltem No: 4

TO APPROVE THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAHUL BHAGAT, (DIN:02473708) AS AN
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY FOR A SECOND TERM OF FIVE CONSECUTIVE
YEARS:

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on June 1, 2017 had appointed Mr. Rahul Bhagat as an Additional
[Independent] Director of the Company to hold office till the next Annual General Meeting. Further, the
Members at the Annual General Meeting held on June 16, 2017, confirmed the appointment of Mr. Rahul
Bhagat as an Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 years with effect from June 1, 2017.
Accordingly, the tenure of Mr. Rahul Bhagat, as an Independent Director is due for expiry on May 31, 2022.

In terms of provisions of section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director shall hold
office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for
reappointment on passing of a special resolution by the Shareholders of the Company and disclosure of such
appointment in the Board's report.

The Company has received from Mr. Rahul Bhagat (i) a consent in writing to act as a Director pursuant to
Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (ii) an intimation in Form
DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the
effect that he is not disqualified under the provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013 and (jii) a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided in sub-section
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. Mr. Bhagat is Independent of
the Management. Mr. Bhagat is not debarred from holding of office of Director pursuant to any Securities and
Exchange Board of India Order or any other such authority.

After taking into account the performance evaluation, during his first term of five years and considering the
knowledge, acumen, expertise and experience in respective fields and the substantial contribution made by
Mr. Rahul Bhagat during his tenure as an Independent Director since his appointment, the Board of Directors
at its meeting held on May 16, 2022, has considered, approved and recommended the re-appointment of Mr.
Rahul Bhagat as an Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive years with effect from June 1,
2022, to the Shareholders for their approval.

The Company has received a notice in writing pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, from a Member signifying
his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Bhagat as an independent Director, to be re-appointed under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated October 22, 2019, Mr. Rahul Bhagat has
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successfully registered his name in the databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs at

Manesar (Haryana), in accordance with the requirements of law.

In line with the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in view of long, rich experience,
continued valuable guidance to the management and strong Board performance of Mr. Rahul Bhagat, the
Shareholders are requested to approve the re-appointment of Mr. Rahul Bhagat as an Independent Director
for a second term of five consecutive years with effect from June 1, 2022.

The copy of the draft letter of re-appointment of Mr Bhagat as an Independent Director setting out the terms
and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Bhagat as Non-Executive Independent Director would be available for
inspection without any fee by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business
hours on all working days except Saturdays and Sundays up to the date of ensuing AGM and the same are

also posted on the website of the Company at https://sotcindia.com/other-details.asp

The Board is of the opinion that, Mr. Bhagat possesses requisite skills, experience and knowledge relevant to
the Company's business and that it would be of immense benefit to the Company to continue to have his
association with the Company as a Non-Executive Independent Director.

As on date of this notice, Mr. Bhagat does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

Mr. Bhagat's brief profile and the disclosures pursuant to the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings are
provided in the Annexure | to the Notice.

All the documents referred to at Item No. 4 of the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company by the members between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all the
working days excluding Saturdays, Sundays & Public Holidays during the business hours up to the date of
AGM and the same is also available for inspection by the members at the meeting.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members as a Special Resolution as set out in
the item no. 4 of the notice.

Except Mr. Rahul Bhagat, being the appointee, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their respective relatives is / are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolution.

10
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Item No: 5

TO APPROVE THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. KISHORI UDESHI, (DIN: 01344073) AS AN
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY FOR A SECOND TERM OF FIVE CONSECUTIVE
YEARS:

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on June 1, 2017 had appointed Mrs. Kishori Udeshi as an
Additional [Independent] Director of the Company to hold office till the next Annual General Meeting. Further,
the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on June 16, 2017, confirmed the appointment of Mrs.
Kishori Udeshi as an Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 years with effect from June 1, 2017.
Accordingly, the tenure of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi, as an Independent Director is due for expiry on May 31, 2022,

In terms of provisions of section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director shall hold
office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for
reappointment on passing of a special resolution by the Shareholders of the Company and disclosure of such
appointment in the Board's report.

The Company has received from Mrs. Kishori Udeshi (i) a consent in writing to act as a Director pursuant to
Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (ii) an intimation in Form
DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the
effect that she is not disqualified under the provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013 and (jii) a declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of Independence as provided in sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. Mrs. Udeshi is
Independent of the Management. Mrs. Udeshi is not debarred from holding of office of Director pursuant to
any Securities and Exchange Board of India Order or any other such authority.

After taking into account the performance evaluation, during her first term of five years and considering the
knowledge, acumen, expertise and experience in respective fields and the substantial contribution made by
Mrs. Kishori Udeshi during her tenure as an Independent Director since her appointment, the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on May 16, 2022, has considered, approved and recommended the re-
appointment of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi as an Independent Director for a second term of five years with effect
from June 1, 2022, to the Shareholders for their approval.

The Company has received a notice in writing pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, from a Member signifying
his intention to propose the candidature of Mrs. Udeshi as an independent Director, to be re-appointed under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated October 22, 2019, Mrs. Kishori Udeshi has

11
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successfully registered her name in the databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs at

Manesar (Haryana), in accordance with the requirements of law.

In line with the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in view of long, rich experience,
continued valuable guidance to the management and strong Board performance of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi, the
Shareholders are requested to approve the re-appointment of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi as an Independent Director
for a second term of five consecutive years with effect from June 1, 2022.

The copy of the draft letter of re-appointment of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi as an Independent Director setting out
the terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi as Non-Executive Independent Director
would be available for inspection without any fee by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during normal business hours on all working days except Saturdays and Sundays up to the date of ensuing

AGM and the same are also posted on the website of the Company at https://sotcindia.com/other-

details.asp

The Board is of the opinion that, Mrs. Kishori Udeshi possesses requisite skills, experience and knowledge
relevant to the Company’s business and that it would be of immense benefit to the Company to continue fo

have her association with the Company as a Non-Executive Independent Director.
As on date of this notice, Mrs. Kishori Udeshi does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

Mrs. Kishori Udeshi's brief profile and the disclosures pursuant to the Secretarial Standard-2 on General

Meetings are provided in the Annexure | to the Notice.

All the documents referred to at Item No. 5 of the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company by the members between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all the
working days excluding Saturdays, Sundays & Public Holidays during the business hours up to the date of

- AGM and the same is also available for inspection by the members at the meeting.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members as a Special Resolution as set out in
item no. 5 of the notice.

Except Mrs. Kishori Udeshi, being the appointee, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their respective relatives is / are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said
Resolution.

12
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Item No: 6

TO APPROVE THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. NILESH VIKAMSEY, (DIN: 00031213) AS AN
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY FOR A SECOND TERM OF FIVE CONSECUTIVE
YEARS:

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 1, 2017 had appointed Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as an
Additional [Independent] Director of the Company to hold office till the next Annual General Meeting. Further,
the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on May 24, 2018, confirmed the appointment of Mr. Nilesh
Vikamsey as an Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 years with effect from August 16, 2017.

Accordingly, the tenure of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey, as an Independent Director is due for expiry on August 15,
2022.

In terms of provisions of section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director shall hold
office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for
reappointment on passing of a special resolution by the Shareholders of the Company and disclosure of such

appointment in the Board's report.

The Company has received from Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey (i) a consent in writing to act as a Director pursuant to
Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (ii) an intimation in Form
DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the
effect that he is not disqualified under the provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013 and (jii) a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided in sub-section
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey is
Independent of the Management. Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey is not debarred from holding of office of Director
pursuant to any Securities and Exchange Board of India Order or any other such authority.

After taking into account the performance evaluation, during his first term of five years and considering the
knowledge, acumen, expertise and experience in respective fields and the substantial contribution made by
Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey during his tenure as an Independent Director since his appointment, the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on May 16, 2022, has consideraed, approved and recommended the re-
appointment of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as an Independent Director for a second term of five years with effect
from August 16, 2022, to the Shareholders for their approval.

The Company has received a notice in writing pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, from a Member signifying
his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as an independent Director, to be re-
appointed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated October 22, 2019, Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey has
13
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successfully registered his name in the databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs at
Manesar (Haryana), in accordance with the requirements of law. He is exempted from requirement of the

online proficiency test.

In line with the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in view of long, rich experience,
continued valuable guidance to the management and strong Board performance of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey, the
Shareholders are requested to approve the re-appointment of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as an Independent

Director for a second term of five consecutive years with effect from August 16, 2022.

The copy of the draft letter of re-appointment of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as an Independent Director setting out
the terms and conditions of re-appointment of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as Non-Executive Independent Director
would be available for inspection without any fee by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during normal business hours on all working days except Saturdays and Sundays up to the date of ensuing
AGM and the same are also posted on the website of the Company at https://sotcindia.com/other-

details.asp

The Board is of the opinion that, Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey possesses requisite skills, experience and knowledge
relevant to the Company's business and that it would be of immense benefit to the Company to continue to

have his association with the Company as a Non-Executive Independent Director.
As on date of this notice, Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey's brief profile and the disclosures pursuant to the Secretarial Standard-2 on General
Meetings are provided in the Annexure | to the Notice.

All the documents referred to at Item No. 6 of the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company by the members between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all the
working days excluding Saturdays, Sundays & Public Holidays during the business hours up to the date of
AGM and the same is also available for inspection by the members at the meeting.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members as a Special Resolution as set out in

the item no. 6 of the notice.
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Disclosures as required under Secretarial Standard- 2 on General Meetings are as under:

Name of Director

Mr. Madhavan Menon

Mr. Rahul Bhagat

DIN 00008542 02473708
Date of Birth 12.02.1955 27.09.1963
Age 67 Years 58 Years
Date of first Appointment on | 01/08/2017 01/06/2017

Board

Qualification

B.A. (Business), from George Washington University, USA, MBA, Finance &

International Business, from George Washington University, USA.

Master of Arts degree in International Affairs from College of Wiliam and Mary,
Williamsburg, USA, and a Bachelor of Arts degree in History (Honors) from St. Stephen’s
College, Delhi University, India.

Experience / Expertise

Madhavan Menon, holds B.A. (Business), from George Washington University,
USA, MBA, Finance & International Business, from George Washington University,
USA. He is the Chairman and Managing Director of Thomas Cook (India) Limited.
He has over 35 years rich experience in the fields of Banking, Finance and Travel-
related Foreign Exchange Management. Before joining Thomas Cook (India)
Limited, he was the Chief Operations & Administrative Officer of Birla Sunlife Asset
Management Co. (AMC) Ltd. Prior to that, he was with Citi Bank and ANZ
Grindlays Bank.

Mr. Rahul N Bhagat - bom on 27 September 1963 - has a Master of Arls degree in
International Affairs from College of William and Mary, Williamsburg, USA, and a Bachelor
of Arts degree in History (Honors) from St. Stephen’s College, Delhi University, India.

Mr. Bhagat is a versatile Consumer Banking professional with almost 3 decades of banking
experience. He was with HDFC Bank for 16 years (1999-2015), of which the last 10 years
was in the Senior Leadership Team as Country Head — Retail Liabilities, Marketing & Direct
Banking Channels, reporting to the CEQ. Prior to HDFC Bank, he was at Bank of America
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(1997-1999) and ANZ Grindlays Bank Ltd {1989-1997).

Between 2015-2017, Mr. Bhagat advised Vodafone India on their plans to launch a

Payments Bank in India.

Mr. Bhagat's contribution and leadership has been recognised through invitation to
numerous Boards and Committees, including: Standing Committee on Retail Banking,
Indian Bank's Association; Executive Committee - National Securities Depository Limited;
Customer Global Advisory Board, NCR Corp (USA); Global Advisory Board, Diebold Inc
(USA); and Member of Indian Public Schools’ Society.

More recently, Mr. Bhagat is on the Board of Governors of The Doon School, Dehradun,
and also helped to incorporate World Monuments Fund India Association as a Founder

Director.

Terms and Conditions of | Appointed as Non-executive Director, eligible for sitting fees, commission and / or | Appointed as an Independent Director of the Company and eligible for sitting fees,
Appointment or re-appointment | reimbursement of expenses for attending Board Meetings. However, he has | commission and / or reimbursement of expenses for attending Board Meetings

along with remuneration voluntarily waived - off his entitlement to commission & sitting fee.

He is liable to retire by rotation.

The last drawn remuneration NA NA

Shareholding in the Company | *1

Relationship ~ with ~ Other | NA NA
Directors, Manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel of

the Company
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»  Luxe Asia (Private) Limited
»  Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Co. Ltd.
»  Isprava Vesta Private Limited

»  Isprava Hospitality Private Limited

Committee — Chairmanships/
Memberships as on March 31,
2022

Please refer Annexure |1

Please refer Annexure Il

Note: *Holds 1 equity share in the Company as a nominee of Thomas Cook (India) Limited

Name of Director Mrs. Kishori Udeshi Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey

DIN 01344073 00031213

Date of Birth 13.10.1943 16.08.1964

Age 78 Years 57 Years

Date of first Appointment on | 01/06/2017 16/08/2017

Board

Qualification M.A. Degree in Economics from Bombay University B. Com, FCA

Experience / Expertise Mrs. Kishori Udeshi has an M.A. Degree in Economics from Bombay University. | Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey is a Senior Partner at Khimji Kunverji & Co., an 80-year-old Chartered

She moved on to a professional career in central banking and became the first

Accountants firm and member firm of HLB International, which is a leading network of
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educational trusts in Mumbai.

Terms and  Conditions  of
Appointment or re-appointment
along with remuneration

Appointed as an Independent Director of the Company and eligible for sitting fees,
commission and / or reimbursement of expenses for attending Board Meetings

Appointed as an Independent Director of the Company and eligible for sitting fees,
commission and / or reimbursement of expenses for attending Board Meetings

The last drawn remuneration

NA

Shareholding in the Company

Nil

Relationship ~ with  Other
Directors, Manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company

NA

The Number of Meetings of the
Board attended during the year

Other Directorships as on
March 31, 2022

»  ELANTAS BECK INDIA LIMITED

»  SHRIRAM AUTOMALL INDIA LIMITED

»  SHRIRAM TRANSPORT FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
>  |ON EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

»  HALDYN GLASS LIMITED

»  KALYAN JEWELLERS INDIA LIMITED

»  Navneet Education Limited

»  Gati Limited

»  Thomas Cook (India) Limited
»  PNB Housing Finance Limited
»  |lIFL Finance Limited

»  IIFL Wealth Management Limited
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Attendance Slip
(To be presented at the entrance)

213t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Venue of the meeting: 13th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400012
Date & Time: Thursday, September 15, 2022, at 2.30 p.m

Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting.

Registered Folio No./DP ID & Client ID

Name of the Member

Address of the Member

No. of equity shares held

| certify that | am the registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 21t Annual General Meeting of the Company at 13th Floor,
Marathon Futurex, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400012 on Thursday, September 15, 2022 at 2.30 p.m.

Name of the Member: Signature:
Name of the Proxy holder: Signature:
NOTE:

1. A Member/Proxy holder attending the meeting should bring copy of the Annual Report for reference at the
meeting.

2. Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.

3. Please complete the Folio No./ DP ID No., Client ID No. and name of the Member/Proxy holder, sign this
Attendance Slip and hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.
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FORM MGT-11: PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Registered Folio No./DP ID & Client ID

Name of the Member

Registered Address of the Member

Email Id

No. of equity shares held

| / We, being the member(s) of equity shares of the above named Company, hereby

appoint:

1. Name:

Of

Email: Signature: or failing him/her,

2. Name:

Of

Email; Signature: or failing him/her,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 21t Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, September 15, 2022 at 2.30 p.m. at 13th Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400012 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as

indicated below:

Sr. No. Resolution(s) Optional
Ordinary Business For Against
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the

financial year ended March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board
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of Directors' and the Auditors' thereon

2. To re-appoint Mr. Madhavan Menon (DIN: 00008542), who retires by rotation,

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

3. To re-appoint M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration
No. 101248W/W -100022, Mumbai, as Statutory Auditors from the conclusion
of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the twenty sixth Annual
General Meeting and to fix their remuneration

Special Businesses

4, To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Rahul Bhagat, (DIN:02473708) as an
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five consecutive
years

5 To approve the re-appointment of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi (DIN: 01344073) as an
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five consecutive
years

6. To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey (DIN: 00031213 ) as

an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five
consecutive years

Signed this day of 2022. Affix
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Member Signature of Proxy
Notes:
1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered

Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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*This is optional. Please put a tick mark (V) in the appropriate column against the resolutions

indicated in the box. If a member leaves the “For" or “Against” column blank against any or all the
Resolutions, the proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate. If a member
wishes to abstain from voting on a particular resolution, he/she should write “Abstain” across the

boxes against the Resolution.
A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint
a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the
joint holders should be stated.

For the resolutions, statements setting out material facts, notes and instructions please refer to the
notice of Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of
SOTC Travel Limited
Mumbal

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty First Annual Report on the business and operations of the

Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS:

Particulars Current Financial Previous Financial
Year Year
(31.03.2022) (31.03.2021)
Revenue from Operations 1,289,980,718 438,669,625
Other Income 31,350,414 66,262,470
Profitloss  before  Depreciation,  Finance  Costs, (252,190,174) (635,770,189)
Exceptional items and Tax Expense
Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 63,390,708 88,496,332
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional items and {315,580,881) (724,267,021)
Tax Expense
Less: Finance Costs 36,130,386 55,216,186
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense {351,711,268) {779,483,207)
Add/(less): Exceptional items 7,403,435 -
Profit /loss before Tax Expense (359,113,703) (779,482,207
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) (131,004,761) (272,066,150
Profit /loss for the year (1) (228,108,941) (507,416,549
Other comprehensive (Loss)/Income (2) 3,852,634 3,949,931
Total (1+2) (224,256,307) (603,466,618)
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years (737,397,625) (229,981,976)
L ess; Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve - -
Less: Transfer to Reserves
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares
Less; Dividend paid on Preference Shares
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Balance carried forward {965,506,566) {737,397,625)




2. OVERVIEW

Responding to the potentially serious threat of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian Government has taken a series
of measures to contain the outbreak, which included imposing ‘lock-downs’ across the country commencing from
March 2020.. The national lockdown was extended up to June 30, 2020, post which there was various partial

relaxations that varied from State to State and largely depended on local prevailing situation.

The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID-19 pandemic have posed challenges to
all the businesses of the Company. Lockdown guidelines issued by Ceniral / State Government mandated cessation
of air traffic and other forms of public transport as well as closure of hatel operations.

With the lifting of the lockdown restrictions, the Company has started re-opening it's branches and other
establishments. The Company expecis all the operations becoming normal in a phased manner after the lockdown is
lifted and the confidence of corporates / travelers is restored.

LEISURE TRAVEL

+ Strong uptake on our Domestic Business with the Strength of Combined Product and Operations, we saw Q7
achieving almost 2x of our 2019 volumes

¢ On International — Long Haul we successfully operated 56 combined groups across Europe, Egypt, Turkey and
South Africa

¢ Launched Biking Vacations and successfully operated group tours to Ladakh & Uttarakhand. Plan to expand to
other destinations across the Country

¢ Launched super-experiential products to Antarctica as well and sent customers

s Expanded our Distribution by Opening New Outlets in Bells Road-Bangalore, Anna Nagar -Chennai,
Bhubaneshwar, Nashik, Goa and Trichy

» Launched Zero Cost EMI holidays & Cash Back offers to cover the younger and wider customer base, preferring
to spend through stretched credit options instead of upfront cash payments

s Extensive Retail Transformation exercise undertaken — with clear focus on using Digitization to scale our Sales
Conversions & Volumes

o Strengthened our hyper local presence to augment digitization of offline retail stores across the country in

partnership with Single Interface - a leading hyper local marketing agency for enhanced market presence.

o Mapped all retail locations through CRM integrated cloud telephony solution digitizing customer acquisition

through all channels. The technology will plug leakages and improve efficiency in lead acquisition



o 360-degree customer mapping through store locator microsites, chat-bots and micro targeting through

location-based analyfics and consumer behaviar data inputs

o Conversation Based Al technology to uplift customer experience and gather real time customer behavior
intelligence. The technology will further help in reducing COA, marketing spends and sharpen customer
communication in a far more targeted way - this is being done in partnership with Convin — a New age Al

startup

o Digitized post sales visa documentation process augmenting paper-less approach. The technology will
further enhance process fransparency to the end user through a self-serve module and enhance process
efficiencies, and control manpower spends

¢ Rolled out our Mid-office Booking System “CANVAS", which should help us deliver faster quotes to our

customers and ease out the entire sales & operations process and improve customer experience

MIGE / Corporate Tours / E-Business

There is sfrong and consistent demand for both domestic and short haul international destinations

Corporate engagements activities (familiarization tours & business meetings) executed in association with
Tourism Bodies of Australia, Finland & Abu Dhabi

MICE Team engaged with customers across the industries to operate multiple groups fo domestic and both
short & long haul international destinations like Thaitand, Malaysia, Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Australia, Europe.

Very strong order book with multiple mega groups between 500 to 3500 passengers to destinations Europe,
South East Asia and Middle East

Developed MICE MANTRA which is a fully integrated system for Sales, Product, Operaticns and Customer
Service, to give a seamless experience to our customers and simplify the entire sales, operations and
accounting process

BUSINESS TRAVEL

The Business travel landscape has seen a close to full recovery in volumes to pre-pandemic levels effective April
2022.

We are currently trending at a 90% recovery to pre - pandemic volume levels. The business resumption has been

seen in both domestic and infernational ticketing with customers. We have seen a growth of demand to long haul

international sectors like the US & Canada.

Our Key interventions this year:



Driving Efficiency through Digital Transformation;
¢ Booking BOT Deployment for domestic itineraries has helped drive operational efficiency within the business

» Focus onincreasing OBT conversion with new and existing customers has fueled the digital transformation story
of our business

s Deployment of new booking ool options to customers has allowed customers to be able to choose the right

technology for their organisation

e Carbon Emission: We have successfully implemented data reporting on carbon emissions for our customers,
allowing them to ake decisions on their footprints as a CSR initiative

Increasing Revenue through our Non- Services like ground transportation / Hotels.
FFMC BUSINESS (FOREX)

.The Company surrendered the FFMC license in December 2021.

3. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Revenue for FY 2021 - 22 was Rs. 1,289,980,718/-over the previous year's revenue of Rs, 438,669,625/- in the FY
2020 - 2021, Loss after tax for FY 2021 - 22 was Rs. 228,108,941/- over the previous years Loss after tax of Rs.
507,416,549/~ in FY 2020-2021.

The Members had passed a Special Resolution for issuance of Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares on Rights Basis in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 11, 2021.

However, the proposal has not been given effect to till the date of the Report.
4. CHANGE(S) IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

Thete is no change in the nature of business carried on by the Company during the financial year ended March 31,
2022,

5. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,00,000/~ (Rupees One Lakh only) divided info 10,000 {Ten
Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10 /- (Rupees Ten only) each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share
Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh only) divided into 10,000 (Ten Thousand) Equity shares
of Rs. 10/~ (Rupee Ten only) each.

Authorized Preference Share Capital of the Company is Rs.10,60,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Six Grores
Only) divided into 106,000,000 0.01% optionally convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs.
10/~ (Rupees Ten only} each. Subscribed / Issued and Paid up Preference Share Capital of the Company is Rs.



86,00,00,000/- {Rupees Eighty Six Crore only} divided into 8,60,00,000 0.01% Optionally Convertible Norn-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

During the financial year, the Company has increased the Authorized Share Capital from‘Rs. 109,01,00,000/-
(Rupees One Hundred Crore and One Lakh only) to Rs. 106,01,00,000 /- {Rupees One Hundred and Six Crore and
One Lakh only) by creating additional 80,00,000 0.01% optionally convertible non-cumulative redeemable
preference share capital of Rs. 10/- each

6. DIVIDEND

In view of losses for the financial year, your Directors do not recommend any Dividend.
7. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

During the financial year, transfer to Reserve Is Nil.

8. SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES

Your Company Is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Thomas Cook (India) Limited as on March 31, 2022. As per the
provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in force), your Company
claims the exemption from preparing the Consotidated Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary{ies) /
Associates / Joint Ventures as the holding company i.e. Thomas Cook (India) Limited shall prepare the Consolidated
Financial Statements of itself along with its Subsidiary(ies) / Associates / Joint .Ventures. Accordingly, your Company
is not required to prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements of itself along with its subsidiary{ies) / Asscciates /
Joint Ventures for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements and other necessary information of the
Subsidiary{ies) / Associates / Joint Ventures in the format prescribed under Form AOC-1 is included in the Repart.
The Company will make available the Financial Statement of Subsidiary{ies) / Associates / Joint Ventures to any

Member of the Company at its reguest.
During the financial year, new Subsidiary(ies) / Associates / Joint Ventures of the Company, Nil,

During the year, there were Nil Companies which ceased to be Subsidiary(ies) / Associates / Joint Ventures of the

Company.
9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.
Director{s)

Mr. Madhavan Menon — Chairman {DIN 00008542}, Mr. Vishal Suri — Managing Director (DIN: 06413771}, Mrs.
Kishori Udeshi — Independent Director (DIN: 01344073), Mr. Nifesh Vikamsey - Independent Director (DIN:



00031213), Mr. Rahul Bhagat - Independent Director (DIN: 02473708) and Mr. Debasis Nandy - Non Executve
Director (DIN 06368365), were the Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2022.

There has been no change In Directors till date.
Re-Appointment:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder
and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Madhavan Menon (DIN: 00008542), Chairman of the Company
is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Mesting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Your Directors recommend re-appointment of Mr. Madhavan Menon (DIN: 00008542), who retires by rotation, and

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The brief profile of Mr. Madhavan Menon and other relevant information, as reguired under the Secretarial Standard

on General Meetings has been provided in the Notice convening the 218t Annual General Meeting.

Further, the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on June 16, 2017, appointed Mr. Rahul Bhagat as an
Independent Director to hoid office for a term of 5 years. Accordingly, the tenure of Mr. Rahul Bhagat, as an
Independent Director (Non-executive) was due for expire on May 31, 2022.The Board, vide its Meeting held on May
16, 2022 had approved the re-appointment of Mr. Rahul Bhagat as an Independent Director, for a second term of &
(Five) consecutive years, commencing from June 1, 2022 till May 31, 2027, subject to the approval of the members
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The brief profile of Mr. Rahul Bhagat and other relevant information, as
required under the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, with respect to Director seeking re-appointnient have
heen provided in the Notice convening Annual General Meeting.

The Members at the Annual General Meeting held on June 16, 2017, appointed Mrs. Kishori Udeshi as an
Independent Director to hold office for a term of & vears. Accordingly, the tenure of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi, as an
Independent Director (Non-executive) is due for expire on May 31, 2022.The Board vide its Meeting held on May 16,
2022 had approved the re-appointment of Mrs. Kishori Udeshi as an Independent Director, for a second term of 5
(Five) consecutive years, commencing from June 1, 2022 till May 3‘1, 2027, subject to the approval of the members
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The brief profile of Mrs, Kishori Udeshi and other relevant information, as
reguired under the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, with respect to Director seeking re-appointment have
been provided in the Notice convening Annual General Meeting.

The Members at the Annual General Meeting held on May 24, 2018, appoinfed Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as an
Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 years. Accardingly, the tenure of Mr. Nilesh Vikamséy, as an
independent Director (Non-executive} is due for expire on August 15, 2022.The Board vide its Meeting held on May
16, 2022 had approved the re-appointment of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey as an Independent Director, for a second term of



5 (Five) consecutive years, commencing from August 16, 2022 till August 15, 2027, subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The brief profile of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey and other relevant
information, as required under the Secretarial Standard on General Mestings, with respect to Director seeking re-
appointment have been provided in the Notice convening Annual General Meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel {(KMP) of the
Company as on March 31, 2022 were

s Mr. Vishal Suri, Managing Director

¢ Mr. Farroukh Kolah, Chief Financial Officer

During the year under review, Mr. Pravesh Palod, Company Secretary, resigned w.e.f. November 3, 2021,

Mrs. Shaily Gupta (ACS 24078) was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f April 15, 2022.
Declaration of Independence

The Company has received necessary declaration(s) from all the Independent Directors (IDs) of the Company,
confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6} of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended from time to time and that in terms of Rule 6(3) of the Companies {Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, they have registered themselves with the independent Director's database maintained by
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), Manesar and also completed the online proficiency test, conducted
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, wherever applicable.

During the financial year, One (1) Meeting of the IDs was held on March 25, 2022 and all the IDs were present at the
Meeting. The Company has complied with the Code for IDs as prescribed in Schedule IV to the Companies Act,
2013, as amended from time to time.

The Company has formulated a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel and they have

affirmed the compliance thereto.

Your Board expresses its satisfaction with regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of
the Independent Direciors.

There were no new Independent Directors appointed on the Board of the Company, during the financial year.
10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms that-

. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has

followed the applicable accounting standards and there are no material departures from the same;



i. The Directors have in consultation with Statutory Auditors selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistenily and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give & true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and the loss of the Company for that period;

ii. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability, for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other Irregularities;

iv. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ bass;

v. The Directors have laid down internal financial controf to be followed by the Company and that such intemal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

vi. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively

11, BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Cbmpanies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has carried out Annual Evaluation of

its own performance, *Committees as a whole, *Individual Committees and of the individual Directors.

Performance evaluation of the Independent directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent

Directors being evaluated.

The performance evaluation of the Board was based on the criteria such as board composition and structure,

information and functioning, succession planning, strategic planning etc.

The performance evaluation of the *Committees was based on the criteria such as experience, knowledge and
competency, governance, safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders etc.

The performance evaluation of the Independent directors was based on the criteria such as time devoted and
attention given to professional obligations for independent decision making and acting in the best interest of the
Company, strategic guidance to the Company and help in determining important policies etc.

The outcome of the evaluation process was discussed and dellberated at the subsequent Mesting of the Board of

Directors.

*The Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Commiftee and the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of
SOTC Travel Limited, were dissolved by the Board of Directors at their Meeting hefd on July 30, 2021,

12. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 as on March 31,

2022 is available on the Company's website at https://sotcindia.com/other-details.asp




NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year, Four (4) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held. The said mestings
were held on May 7, 2021, July 30, 2021, November 1, 2021 and January 25, 2022 respectively.

Composition of Board of Directors and Attendance of Directors at the Board Meeting:

Sr, No. | Name of the Director DIN *Category No. of Meetings attended
during the financial year
2021-22

1. Mr. Madhavan Menon 00008542 NED 4

2. Mr. Vishal Suri 06413771 ED 4

3. Mrs. Kishori Udeshi 01344073 NED - ID 4

4. Mr. Rahul Bhagat 02473708 NED - ID 4

5. Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey 00031213 NED - ID 4

8. Mr. Debasis Nandy 06368365 NED 4

* NED- Non Executive Director, ID-Independent Direcfor, ED- Executive Diractor
13. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD / OTHER COMMITTEES

SOTE, being wholly owned subsidiary of Thomas Cook (India) Limited, is exempted from the requirement of having
an Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee. Also, pursuant to the amendments in the CSR
provisions under the Companies Act, 2013, effective January 2021, the Company was also exempted from having a
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, as the CSR spend obligation of the Company FY 2020-21 was Nil and

was expected o be below Rs. 80 lakh in the coming years.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors, at its Meeting held on July 30, 2021, dissolved the Aucit Committes, Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company

Details with respect to various Committees of the Board and / or other Committees are given hereunder:
a) *Audit Committee
The Audit Committee {Committee) has baen constituted in June 2017.

The Audit Commitiee’s role is to assist the Board in overseeing the governance function and responsibilities in

relation to the Company's financial reporting process carried out by the Management, internal control system, risk



management system and internal and exteral audit functions. The Audit Committee functions according to its
charteriterms of reference that defines its composition, authority, responsibilities and reporting functions. The Board

has adopted a charter of the Audit Committee for its functioning.

The terms of reference / role of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, as amended infer-alia includes the following:

i.  The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;
ii. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;

iii. Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

iv. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

v. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

vi. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary,

vil. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

viii. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

The Committee met two (2) times during the financial year. The said meetings were held on May 7, 2021 and July
30, 2021 respectively.

Composition of Committee and Attendance during the financial year:

Sr. | Name of Member *Category | Designation No. of  Meetings

No. _ attended during the
financial year 2021-
2022

1. Mrs. Kishori Udeshi NED-ID Chairpersaon 2

2. Mr. Rahul Bhagat NED-ID Member 2

3 Mr. Madhavan Mencn NED Member 2

4, Mr. Debasis Nandy NED Member 2

Mr. Vishal Suri, Managing Director is Permanent Invitee

 *NED- Non Executive Director, |D-Independent Direcior, ED- Executive Director

*The Audif Commities of SOTC Travel Limited was dissohved by the Board of Directors at their Mesting held on July 30, 2021



b) *Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Committee) has been constituted in June 2017 and its Policy has
heen adopted and amended to align it with the requirements of the provisions of applicable laws, rules and
regulations, as amended from time to time.

The terms of reference / Role of the Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended inter-alia includes the following:

. Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may he appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall
specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual directors to
be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent

external agency and review its implementation and compliance.

ii. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the dirsctors, key managetrial personnel and

other employees.

The NRC Pdlicy is placed on the Company's website and the web link thereto is hitp:/isotcindia.com/ather-

details.asp.

No Meetings of the Committee were held during fhe year,

Composition of Committee and Attendance during the financial year:

Sr. | Name of Member *Category | Designation No. of Meetings attended
No. during the financial year
2021-22

1. | Mr, Rahul Bhagat NED-ID Chairman NIL

2. | Ms, Kishori Udeshi NED-ID Member NIL

3. | Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey NED-ID Member NIL

4, | Mr. Madhavan Menon NED Member NIL

Mr. Vishal Suri, Managing Director and Ms. Mona Chetriyan are the Permanent invitees

*NED- Non Execuitive Direcfor, ID-Independant Director, ED- Executive Director




*The Nomination and Remunarafion Committes of SOTC Travel Limited, was dissolved by the Board of Direcfors at their
Meeting held on July 30, 2021

c¢) **Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules made
thereunder, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy has been adopted to deal with matters required to be dealt
with by it under applicable law, rules etc, infer-alia, activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject

specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013, as amended from time to time.

Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") Policy addresses the healthcare challenges of the Society and aims to align
your Company’s CSR interventions with the healthcare priorities of the Indian Government and other Stakeholders.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Notification dated 22 January, 2021 has amended the Companies {Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy), Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the CSR Policy of the Company is duly amended as per the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy), Amendment Rules, 2021 upon recommendation of the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and appraval of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The contents of the CSR Policy of the Company as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the GSR
Committee is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the web link:

http://sotcindia.comicorporate-responsibility.asp.

No Meetings of the Committee were held during the year.

Composition of CSR Committee and Attendance during the financial year:

Sr. No. | Name of Member *Category | Designation No. of Meetings attended
during the financial year
2021-22

1. Mrs. Kishori Udeshi NED-ID Chairperson NIL

2. Mr. Vishal Suri ED Membet NIL

3. Mr. Madhavan Menon NED Member NIL

*NED- Non Exscutive Director, ID-Independent Director, ED- Execufive Director

**The Corporate Social Responsibilily Committee of SOTC Travel Limited was dissolved by the Board of Directors at their
Mesting held on July 30, 2021,



CSR initiatives undertaken during the financial year 2021-22:

The Annual Report on GSR Activities undertaken by Company during the financial year 2021-22, is annexed as
‘Annexure A.” On account of losses during the three (3) immediately preceding financial years, your Company is not
required to spend any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities in the financial year 2021-22.

d) Management Sub-Committee of the Board

For Administrative convenience and smooth business operations, Management Sub-Committee of the Board
{Sub-Committee) has been constituted in June 2017. The Sub-Committee functions on the basis of Authority matrix
and as per the powers delegated by the Board from time to time. |

The Sub-Committee met & times during the financial year, The said meetings were held on:
e May 17,2021

e June 24, 2021

e June 30, 2021

s August 5, 2021

s September 15, 2021

» November 3, 2021

e January 20, 2022

e February 7, 2022 and

» February 24, 2022

Composition of Sub-Committee and Attendance during the financial year;

Members of the Sub-Committee comprises of the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

SrNo. | Name of Member *Category Designation | No.. of  Meetings
attended during the
financial year 2021-22

1. Mr. Madhavan Menon NED Member 9

2. Mr.Vishal Suri ED Member 9

*NED- Non Execufive Director, ED- Executive Direcfor



e} Banking Committee

For smooth banking operations, the Banking Committee has been constituted in June 2017. The Banking Committee
functions on the basis of Authority matrix and as per the powers delegated by the Board from time to time. Members
of the Banking Commitiee comprises of the Chairman, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company

Secretary of the Company.
The Banking Committes met 5 times during the financial year. The said meetings were held on:
s July7, 2021
» August 9, 2021
+ December 14, 2021
+ February 8, 2022 and
o March 11, 2022

Composition of Committee and Attendance during the financial year:

Sr. No. | Name of Member *Category : Designation No. of Meetings
attended during the
financial year 2021-
2022

1. Mr. Madhavan Menon NED Member 5

2. Mr. Vishal Suri ED Member 5

3. Mr. Farroukh Kolah CFO Member 5

4, #Mr. Pravesh Palod CS ~ | Member 2

*NED- Non Executive Director, ED- Executive Director, GFO ~ Chief Financial Officer, CS - Company Secrotary
#Mr. Pravesh Palod resigned as Company Secrelary w.e.f. November 3, 2021

14. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments forms part of the notes to the financial statements provided in the

Annual Repott as the case may be.



15, PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year, all the transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and at
arm's length basis; and there were no material contracis or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis or
otherwise. Therefore, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company.

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO:

A. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

Your Company being in the Travel and Tourism industry, its activities does not involve any expenditure on
Technology and Research and Development therefore, the particulars in the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, as
amended, is not required to be submitted. Further, the Company is not energy intensive, However, every effort is
made to ensure optimum use of energy by using energy-efficient computers, processes and other office equipment.
Constant efforts are being made through regular / preventive maintenance and upkeep of existing electrical
equipment to minimize breakdowns and loss of energy.

The Company is continuously making efforts for induction of innovative technologies and techniques required for the
business activities.

B. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year:

Particulars 31st March,2022 31t March 2021
Foreign exchange Earnings Rs, 19,786,973 Rs. 11,503,593
Particulars 31t March, 2022 31%t March 2021
Foreign exchange Outgo * Rs. 251,791,886 Rs. 76,529,093

Note: *Expandifure in foreign currency primarily refates to outhound four services, and is made out of collections from customers

for remitfance under Liberalized remittance scheme (LRS).
17. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk assessment and management are critical to ensure long term sustainability of the business. The Company has
in place a risk management framework with regular appraisal by top management. Pursuant to Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has adopted Risk Management Policy which lays down the framework to define,
assess, monitor and mitigate the business, operational, financial and other risks associated with the business of the

Company.



-18. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has an internal financial control system commensurate with its size and nature of business which
provides a reasonable assurance in respect of financial and operational information, safeguarding asseis of the

Company and enéuring compliance with corporate policies. All transactions are recorded and reported correctly.
19. DEPOSITS UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013

During the financial year, the company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended and therefore, no
amount of principal or interest was ouistanding as on the date of balance sheet.

20. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION
The Company has not issued any Employee Stock Options during the financial year.
21, DETAILS OF FRAUDS

There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under the provisions of Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

22, AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors and their report

BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. 101248WAY -100022, Mumbai, were appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a term of five years (First Term), from the conciusion of the
Annual General Meeting {AGM) held on June 16, 2017, until the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held in
calendar year 2022,

It is proposed to re-appoint BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. 101248W/W 100022,
Mumbai, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of five years (Second Term), starting from Financial
Year 2023 and that they shall hold office from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2027, on such terms and remuneration as may be
mutually agreed upon between the said Auditors and Board of Directors.

Your Company has received necessary certificate from M/s BSR & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (Firm
Registration No. 101248WAW-100022) confirming that they satisfy the criteria provided under Section 141 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and are not disqualified from continuing as the Statutery Auditors of the Company.
STATUTORY AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditors, in their
report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.



Secretarial Auditor and their Report

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. Keyul M. Dedhia & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice (COP No.
8618, Membership Mo. FCS-7758 and Unique Code No. S2009MH120800} as the Secretarial Audior of the
Company under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, for conducting the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2021-22.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2021-22 does not contain any adverse remark, qualffication or
reservation.

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as ‘Annexure B'.
Internal Auditor

During the financial year, the Board of Directors appointed, Mr. Anirudhha Chaudhury as the Internal Auditor and
appointed Emst & Young LLP, to assist the Internal Auditor of the Company, in conducting / performing the internal
audits, in accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended fram time to time. Ernst & Young LLP works under the supervision

and guidance of Mr. Anirudhha Ghaudhury, Intemal Auditor of the Company
Internal Financial Control (IFC} Auditor

During the financial year, the Board of Directors appointed Kapadia Associates, Chartered Accountants as an
Internal Financial Control (IFC) Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-22,

Cost Auditor

Pursuant {o the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, Cost Audit

and Maintenance of Cost Records is not applicable to the Company.

23, DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There has been no significant and material order passed by the Regulators, Courts and Tribunals impaciing the

going concern status of the Company's operations in future.
24. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have

occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report.



25. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, in respect of the employees of the Company is

not applicable to the Company.

26. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has Zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any executive which may fall under the ambit of
‘Sexual _Harassment‘ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of every women
executive working in the Company. The Company values the dignity of individuals and strives to provide a safe and
respectable working environment to all its employees. The Company is committed to providing an environment,

which is free of discrimination, intimidation and abuse.

Pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder, the Company has a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment in the Company. All the

employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this policy.

Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under

the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Matters handled during the financial year 2021-22, are as follows:

(a) Number of Complaints of sexual harassment received in the year: NIL

(b) Number of complaints disposed of during the year: NIL

{c) Number of cases pending for more than ninety days: - NIL

(d) Number of workshop or awareness programme against sexual harassment carried out: 8 sessions
{e) Nature of action taken by employer: NA

The following action was taken by employer in respect of the complaints received during financial year 2021-22
Written Apology - NIL

Warning - NIL

Reprimand or Censure - NIL

Withholding of Promotion - NIL

Withholding of Pay Rise/ Increment - NIL

Termination - NiL



Disengagement of services of Third Party staff - NIL

Involuntary Resignation (Employer controlled resignation) - NIL
Counselling - NIL |

Carrying out community services — NIL

Compliant pending as on March 31, 2022 - NIL

27. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established Vigil Mechanism Policy to pravide a framework to promote a responsible and secure
Whisile Blowing. The Whistie-Blower Policy has been laid down with an objective to create an environment, where

an employee has easy access to raising a concern and his/her identity is also protected.

The said Policy is posted on the Company’s website and web link thereto is hitp:/fsotindia.com/other-details.asp

28, THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 {31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence the requirement to disclose the
details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2018 (31 of
2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not applicable.

29. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

There were no valuations done for the purposes of one time settlement and for obtaining any lcan from the Banks /
Financial Institutions.

30. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General
Meetings and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. The Company complies with all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors

and General Meetings.
31, ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and cc-operation received from the

banks, Gavernment authorities, customers, vendors and members during the financial year.



Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the
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For and on behalf of the Board
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Chairman Managing Director
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Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: July 25, 2022 Date: July 25, 2022



ANNEXURE A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to Section 134(3){o) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1) Brief outline on CSR Paolicy of the Company:

The CSR Policy of the Company focuses on addressing the healthcare challenges of the Society and aims fo

align the Company's CSR interventions with the healthcare priorities of the Indian Government and other

Stakeholders and contributing to other projects or programs that falls under the purview of Schedule VIl of

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, as identifled and appraved from time fo time.

2) Composition of “CSR Committee:

Number of

{(Executive Director)

Sk No. | Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of Meetings
Directorship Meetings of CSR | of CSR Committee
Committee  held | attended during the
during the year year
1. | Mrs. Kishori Udeshi Chairpersen 0 0
(Non-Executive Independent
Director)
2. | Mr. Madhavan Menon | Member 0 0
(Nen-Executive Director)
3. | Mr. Visha Suri Member 0 0

*The CSR Commitfes of SOTC Trave! Limited was dissolved by the Board of Directors af their Meeting held on July 30, 2021.

3) Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the

board are disclosed on the website of the company: hitp:/sofcindia.com/corporate-responsibility.asp

4) Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule & of the

Companies {Corporate Social responsibility Palicy) Ruies, 2014, if apolicable (attach the report): NA

5) Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate

Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL



St No.

Financial Year

preceding financlal years {in Rs.)

Amount avaiiable for set-off fromAmount required to be set-off for the

financial year, if any (in Rs.)

Total

NIL

NIL

6) Average net profit/ (Loss) of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. (36,17,00,000)/-
7) (&) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): NIL

{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

{c) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d} Total CSR obligation for the financiat year (7a+7b-7¢): NIL

8) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: NIL

Total Amount
Spent for the

Financial Year.
(inRs.) Unspent CSR Account as per

section 135(6).

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VI as per second proviso to section 135(5).

- Amount. Date of transfer., Name of the Amount. Date of transfer.

Fund

{b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing proj

ects for the financial vear; NiL

{1

@ (3) 4

(3) (8) {7 &) ®) (10) (1)

sl

No.

Project. | activities

Name ofj Item from [Local area|Location of the| Project | Amount | Amount | Amount Mode of Mods of

the |the list of [ (Yes/No). project. duration. | allocated | spent in | transferred |Implementation -| Implementation -

in
Schedule

for the the [to Unspent| Direct (Yes/No). Through
project (in| current CSR Implementing

Rs.). |financial [Account for Agency




Vilto the State. |District. Year In | the project Name (GSR
Act, Re). | asper Registration
Section
numher.
135(8) (In
Rs.).

Total -

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

1) ) (3) {4) (8} (6) (7) (8)
Sl. No. | Nameofthe | ltemfrom | Local |Location of the| Amount Mode of Mede of implementation -
Project the listof | area project.  |spent for|implementation -| Throtigh implementing
activities in | (Yes/ the | Direct (Yes/No). agency.
schedule VII|  No). project
to the Act. State. | District.| (in Rs.). Name. CSR
registration
number.
2 - - - -
Total . - - -

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL

() Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): NIL

() Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL




Sl. No.

Particular

Amount (in

Rs.)

135(5)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)]

IAmount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iii}-{iv)]

(iv)  [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities -
of the previous financial years, if any
{v) -

9) (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

8l. No. | Preceding Financial | Amount transferred |Amount spent in|Amount transferred fo any fund|  Amount
Year. to Unspent CSR | the reporting |specified under Schedule VIl as remaining to
Accountunder | Financial Year per section 135(6), if any. be spentin
section 135 {6) {in {in Rs.}. succeading
Rs.} Name of | Amount | Date of financial
the Fund | (inRs). | fransfer. \years, (in Rs.)
1, - - - .
2. - - . - -
Total - - -

(b} Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NIL

(1) {2) @) 4 (5} (6) {7) 8) ©)
Sl. No. | Project | Name of | Financial Year| Project Total |Amount spenton| Cumulative |[Status of the
ID. the in which the | duration. | amount [the project in the| amount spent at| project -
Project. | project was allocated reporting the end of Completed
commenced. forthe | Financial Year reporting {Ongoing.
project {in {in Rs). Financial Year.




Rs.). (inRs.)

Total

10) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): NA
a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.
d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset).
11) Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5): NA

For SOTC Travel L@lted
U ’ LY
"
[\g\\a\! PSR AN /
Madhavan Menon Vishal Suri
: airman Managing Director
(DIN: 00008542) (DIN: 06413771)

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: July 25, 2022 Date: July 25, 2022



KEYUL M. DEDHIA AND ASSOCIATES

. COMPANY SECRETARIES -
B/15, 8rd Floor Raja Co-op. Hsg. Soc. Lid., L.'T, Road, Dahisar (W), Murmbai 400 068,

FORM NO, MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
F{3R THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
TPursiant to Seetion 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appaintment ang Rernuneration of Managerial 'P.er'sgrmeih Fubes, 2014)

TGJ
The Mernbe ]

Corpc;‘raté._[déntis;y Nui JO40HZ00IPLEL3169]
324, Dr, & N Road, Ford, Mmbal- 400 001,

We have conducted the secreldial auditof the compliance of applicable statutory provisians and the
adherence W good cotporate JiEitices TC Travel Limited thereingfter called "the Comgaﬂy 1.
The Secretarial Audit was conducied in & manner that provided us @ réasonable basis-for evaluating
the corporate cendustefstatulony compliances and expressing our opinitn thereon,

Based on olr liniited verificaticn of the Company's Books, ?apgr% Iinute Books, Forms and Returng
Flet{ with applicable tegulatary authority(ias) and other fatonds maleisined by the Company and alse
the information provided by the Company, s officers, agerts and nuthorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial mudit, we hersby report that in ourepinion, the Company has, during the
finaneidl veat ended on March 31, 2022 UAudit Periad’), complied with the stétutoty provisions listed
herevrider and #lse that the Company has proper Board processes and tompliance machanisn in
place to the axtent, in the mamner 2nd subjert to reporting made hersinafier

We herewith regort thatimainlenanée of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books, filing of
Formiy and Beturms with Al feable requifatory authdrites and maintaining gither wétords is
regponstbility of management aid of the {:{)mpany, Our respansibility is 1o verify the content of the.
documients produced before us, make objectiva svaluation of the content in respéa of campliance.

ang Feport therson, We have exgrnined an % erk basis, the Bagks, Papers, Minute Books, Forms

ang Retwrns filed and other records gl by the Cornpany and produced before-us far e,
financial yearended March 31, 2022, as perihe provisions of.

{ The Companies Act, 2013, (the Actyand the rules frigde thereunder;

fii)  The Securities Contracts-(Regulation) Adt, 1958 (i‘ﬁ{i_?ﬁ-&f}!)_ and the. rules made thereunder (No?i'
applicabis to the Company during the Audit perisd);

iy The l}eposmnss Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder, 1o
applicabileto the Company;

iy Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and thit rules and regulations miade thereune
regpect 1o Forefgr. Dirgct I aent, Overseas Direct Invesiment and B
Borrowings, 1o the éxtent theisame wes applicable to the Company,

(W The following fiequlatiohg and Guidalines. prosiribed under the Securities and Exchahge B
' af India £¢1, 1992 CSERBL ASYY:
& The Securifies anz:;i Exchange Boefd of Indid (Bubstantial Acpussiion of Shares aﬁd
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 {Not appiicable to the Company during the Audit

periody;

KEYUL M, DEDHIA

B COM, LLB, MBL, FC5 © Eemil: keyuimdedhia@gmail.com




é-arid Exchanpe Board of India (Prohibiion of Insider Teading) Reguistions,

2015 (MNotapplicable to the Compaiiy dyring the Audit period);

&) TheSécurities and Exchange Sodrd afndia (sue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 {(Notapplicable 1o the Comparny during the Audit period);

{d)  The Securitiesand Exchiarige Board of India. (Share Based Employee Benefits) fegulations, -
2014/ The Securiiisy and Bchange Boarg of 1ndia (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulatigng, 2021 {Not pplicable to the Company during the Audit
period); : )

(&) The Securities and Exchange Board fgspn g Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008/ The Sscuitties and £ 4 af Irgla Ussge and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities Regulations, 2071 (Notapplicablete the Company during the
Avditperiod); ' o

(fy  The Securilies and Exchange Board of iidid [Registrars 16 80 Issue dnd Share Tiansher
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Compahigs At and dealing with dient;

{gy The Secudities dnd Bxcliange Board-of Ingfia (Delisting o Enuity:-Shares) Regulations, 2008/
The Securitigs and BxchangeBoard of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
{MNot applicable to the Qx}myany during the Audit period);

{hp  The Securities and Bechangs Board of India (Buyback of Securitiss) Regulations, 2008 (Mot
applicable to the Company during the Aadit period) and

. The Securities and Duhange Board of India (Listing Oblig
Rge.q_wamem%s_} Regulations; 2015 (Not applivable to the Compén
period). '

s angd Disclosure
during the Audit

he} Cﬁ;m wany
'96? m’u’:;i agng:isc,ab e Rules thereto,

i F;%h(iabs@ glauges of:
ristitute of Company Setretaries of idia under the.

pmvssfoaf of Lompamczg Y o
{H) The Listing Agreerments. gritevéid nto .by the: Lhmpany with Stock Exchangels) (Not apptm&hle -
i the Company during the. Atst:izt pemsd) )

'ny w«;} repw thit dur mg the financial year
uaBileg
_n, Qljicﬁehn&q, Siandardg, mc and we have 1o mmer mbww&tfon o ns‘caxw@g S b
.mmp ande i redpect of the sama.

Bagecﬁ on the aforea;as n?csﬁ‘natiz:zra pmvaded by *shs ¢

We further report that:

“Thé Board of Sa;eciorﬁ of thee Carmpany is duly constituted with proper balaite.of Execytive. Dxrcctors
MNon-Fxecutive Directors. and Tndependent Birecfors. The changes in the compos;tmﬂ ‘of the Bosrd of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried gut iR goripl iice. wzih i
srovisions of thit Act. :

Adequate notice: was gj‘ven to all Direclors about scheduled Board Meetings, Agenda-and detai
notes on Egenga Were sént @t least seven days in advance, and & regsonieble system wxists Toi B




COMPANY SECRETARIES

Members for seeking sind dlitaining furtier infarmation and ¢larifications on the agenda items befora
the meeting ant for meaningful padicipation at-the masting. :

Based on the representation made iﬁy’ the Company and its Officer, we herewith report that majority
decision 15 carded through and proper dystem is in place which facilitates / ensure to taplure and
report, the dissenting mermber's views, ifany, as partef the Minules,

Based on thi representation made by the. Company and its Officers gxplaining to us in respect of
internal systems and mechanisrms gstablished by the Company which ensures cempliances. of Acts,
Laws ard Regulations applicabile-to the Company, we teport that there 2re adequate systems. and
processes in the Corpany smimensurate with the iz and pperations of the Company 1o munitor
aridd engur complianee with applicable aws, rules, regulations and guidelings,

We further report that; during the audit period;

2 The members hiave passed a Spedial Resolution for fssuance-af Optionally Lonvertibi e Non-
Cumdative Rédlaémabls Prefergnce Shares an Rights Basis inthe Annual Gengral Meeting held
o August 11, 2021 The Company has not acted on the wcag:;oxa? il the-date. of renort.

b, The Campany has surrandered its FEMC lcense and conseguent discontinuation of the FFMC
business,

For Keyul M. Dedhia & Associatés
i;nn:pa dy Servdtaries
Unigue 1CS) Gode Nyriber: S2009MH1 20800

’i{f:yu] M, Dedhia

P‘mprmtw

FCSNG: 7756~ COP NG 8618
UDIN: FOO 775800006 86920

Pepr Review Cerfiticate Mo 87672020

Sy 26, 2028 Muiabal,

Note: This report is 1o be reat with pur lettér of aven date which is annéxed as ANNEXURE A and
formg an integral part.eTikis teport.
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GOMPANY SECRETARES |

"Annexurs A
Ta,
The Members,
SOTC Trpvel Limited
Corporate Identity Number; UG3040MHZ001PLCEALEYL
324, Dr. D N Risad, Fort, Mymibai- 400 001,

Sugher Our report-of even date is to be read along with thisletter,

Lo Maintetidhce of Bgorefarial sacords is the rosponsibility of the management of the Company:
Our responsibilityds toexpress an gpinion on these sewatarial records based on our audit.

20 We havee followit the.duditipractices and progesses as were appropriate to obtain regsonable
assurance about the sorfeithest of the contents of the Secretafial racords, The verification was
done on testcheck basis {hy v&rlfymg records as was made available 1w us) 1o engure that
correct Tacts ave reflected ia secreta . We balieve that the procesdes and practices wy

follow, provide.a reastnabld basis {6 pinion.

3. We heve not verlfied the corredtness ang apprapriateness of financial receords and Books. of
fwcounts of the Company and we have relied an Statutdry Auditers’ independent assessment.
o the:sarme,

4, Wherever reguired, we have obtaided the Management rapresentation abaut the compliance of
laws, Tules-and regulations and happening of events ete,

5. The compliance o the provisions. of Carpo;‘at@ and other applicable faws, Rules, Regulations,
standards 15 the responsibility of management. Dur examinefion waslifiited 1o the verification
of process followed by Company 1o ensure adegaste Complance on test-chick bagis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Repost is neithier an assurance as to the future sighility of the Company
vof the afficacy or effectivedess with which the management has candocied thi afiaiis of the
& ainpany.

Foi Keyul . Dedbia & Assodiates
Lompariy Secretaries
Unigiue 1651 Chde Nimber, S2009MH120800

Keyu M. Dedhia

FProgrietor

FUS Ner 7755 EOPNO 8618
DN FOU7786D000686929

Peer Raview Certificate No s 87673020

Sl 26 2023, Mumbai,




Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

Part A:Subsidiaries (All amounts in Rs lakhs)
Sr. Name of Group | Reporting | Closing Avg. Date of Reporting Issued Reserves & | Total Total Investments | Total Profit Provision | Profit Proposed | Extent Country
No Subsidiary currency | exchange | rate Acquisition/ period & subscribed | Surplus assets liabilities income before for after dividend | of
rate Incorporation share capital taxation | taxation | taxation shareholding
(in %)
1 Travel Circle DMS - usD 75.79 27" June, 2017 31st 11,612.9 29,364.7 18,949.5 9,511.6 0.0 -409.5 0.0 -409.5 NA 51 | Mauritius
International | TCIM 74.40 March, (1,197.7)
(Mauritius) 2022
Limited
2 Reem Tours | DMS- AED 29" June, 2017 | 31st 31.6 64.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 NA 51 | UAE
and Travels Dubai 20.64 20.26 March, 325
LLC 2022
3 Gulf Dunes DMS- AED 29" June, 2017 | 31st 31.6 518.4 1,028.7 0.0 1,354.3 44.4 0.0 44.4 NA 51 | UAE
LLC Dubai 20.64 20.26 March, (541.8)
2022
4 Gulf Dunes DMS- OMR 29" June, 2017 | 31st 150.6 95.5 14.6 0.0 1.7 -15.4 0.0 -15.4 NA 51 | Oman
Tourism LLC | Dubai 196.86 193.2 March, (69.6)
5 2022
5 Desert DMS- AED 29" June, 2017 | 31st 31.6 4,058.5 8,518.1 151.1 | 28,034.2 238.6 0.0 238.6 NA 51 | UAE
Adventures Dubai 20.64 20.26 March, (4,491.2)
Tourism LLC 2022
6 Muscat DMS- OMR 29" June, 2017 | 31st 150.6 156.6 204.4 0.0 292.1 -9.8 0.0 -9.8 NA 51 | Oman
Desert Dubai 196.86 193.2 March, (198.4)
Adventures 5 2022
Tourism LLC
7 Desert DMS- JoD 29" June, 2017 | 31st 54.6 230.8 238.3 0.0 228.0 -144.0 25.9 -169.9 NA 51 | Jordan
Adventures Dubai 107.05 105.0 March, (62.1)
Tourism Ltd. 1 2022
8 Kuoni Private | DMS - | ZAR 29" June, 2017 | 31st 13.3 626.3 1,208.2 0.0 295.3 -213.5 0.0 -213.5 NA 51 | South Africa
Safaris (Pty) | PSSA 5.23 4.98 March, (595.2)
Ltd. 2022
9 Kuoni Private | DMS - | NAD 29" June, 2017 | 31st 80.0 145.3 566.8 0.0 240.1 -67.8 0.0 -67.8 NA 51 | Namibia
Safaris PSNA 5.23 4.98 March, (501.5)
Namibia M 2022
(Pty) Ltd.
10 Private DMS - | KES 29" June, 2017 | 31st 1,197.5 1,197.2 861.0 0.0 2,694.0 -36.5 -9.0 -27.5 NA 51 | Kenya
Safaris (East | Kenya 0.66 0.67 March, (861.4)
Africa) Ltd. 2022
11 Kuoni DMS- | AUD 29" June, 2017 | 31st 144.7 821.4 3,204.3 144.7 0.0 -39.6 0.0 -39.6 NA 51 | Australia
Australia APAC 56.74 54.92 March, (2,527.7)
Holding Pty 2022




Ltd.

12 Australian DMS- AUD 29" June, 2017 | 31st 144.7 809.1 157.3 0.0 13.5 -210.2 0.0 -210.2 NA 51 | Australia
Tours APAC 56.74 54.92 March, 507.1
Management 2022
Pty Ltd.

Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

3. The above list does not include associate(s) and subsidiary(ies) of the associate company(ies); the associate company(ies) of the subsidiary(ies)




Part B: Associate/Joint ventures
(All amounts in lakhs)

(All amounts in Rs lakhs)

SI.No. Name of the Latest Date on Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures Description Reason why Networth attributable to Profit or Loss for the year
Associate/Joint Audited which the held by the company on the year end of how there | the shareholding as per
Venture Balance Associate or is significant | associate/joint | latest audited Balance
Sheet date Joint influence venture is not | Sheet - - - -
Venture was Number | Amount of . Exter.mt of. consolidated Con5|dfered_ in Not Co.nS|d_ered in
acquired Investment in | Holding (in Consolidation Consolidation
Associate or percentage)
Joint Venture
Nil
Notes:

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - NA

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NA
3. The above list does not include associate(s) and subsidiary(ies) of the associate company(ies); the associate company(ies) of the subsidiary(ies)

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Sd/-

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner

Membership No: 042070

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of SOTC Travel Limited
(CIN:U63040MH2001PLC131691)

Sd/-

Madhavan Menon

Chairman

DIN No.00008542

Sd/-

Vishal Suri
Managing Director
DIN No. 06413771
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
SOTC Travel Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SOTC Travel Limited {“the Company™), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes 1o
the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial staiements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™)} in the manner 5o
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepled in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the duditor s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repon. We are ndependent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilifies in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropniate (o provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matter
We drawn attention to Note 1B.2 of the financial statements, the possible effect in uncertaintics relating to
Covid-19 pandemic on the Company s financial performance as assessed by the managenent,

; Tpﬂrﬂan is not modified in respect of this matter.
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BSR & Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report {Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors report but does not imclude the
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Board report is expected (o be made available 1o us
after the date of the auditor’s report,

Ouir opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this ather information,
we: are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 1 34(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
n accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequale accounting records in sccordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities: selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
desigm, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating
effiectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the sccounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fravd or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but 1o do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting ProCEss.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issee an auditor's report that includes our

opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranice that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
- Tﬂi to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thesc financial statements,

2
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements fcontinued)

As part of an audit in accordance with $As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
cxpressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 1o
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of pocounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

Cosnclude on the appropristeness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
matenial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are required (o
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements ar, if such
disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up 1o the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions iy cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statemvents represent the underlying transactions and events in 2
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit,

We also provide thoze charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors” Repert) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ a statement on the
_ tarlm ified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

3
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Independent Auditors® Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements feontinued)

2.

a)

b)

<l

d)

(A)  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repori that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 10 the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

The balance sheet, the siatement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Dircetors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in
“Annexure B,

(B) With respect 10 the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in sccordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

e
L

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 1o the financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracis for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ﬁ;mjﬂ'ﬁ-‘t were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

kyFr-n-:ﬁﬁmn Fund by the Company



B5R & Co, LLP

Independent

Auditors’ Report (Continued)

SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements feomtinged)

dy (i)

(1)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
hatve been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any ofher sources or Kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including forcign entities ("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

* directly or mdirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or

*  provide any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, 1o the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
ncluding foreign entities (“Intenmediaries™), with the undersianding, whether recorded in
writing or atherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

*  directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

*  provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficianies.

{iti) Based on such sudit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
mpmua:ms under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (i) contain any material mis-statement.

l:][ﬂ'fﬁ Ebmpmmy has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

aX 88



BSR & Co LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
SOTC Travel Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements feontimued)
(C) With respect 1o the matter to be included in the Auditors” Repont under section 197(16)

In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chanlered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 101 248W W-100022
g - H— _'_'_..-F"'-':;r

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: 23 May 2022 Membership No. 042070
UDIN : 220420704 JLFHF3843
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SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2022

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we repon that:

(1} (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
in & phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, cerain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assels, No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)  The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lesses).
Accordingly, clause3(iWc) of the Order is not applicable.

{d}  According to the information and explanations given io us and on the hasis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e} According to information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Propeny Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thercunder,

i) (2} The Company is a service company, primarily rendering travel and related services.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(1i)}a) of the Order
i% not applicable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
corporate guarantee. In our opinion, the monthly retumns or statements filed by the Company
tﬁlhﬁthﬂl'{‘hanks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the
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BSR& Co LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A" to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

i)

(b)

(€}

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided security or
guarantee or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited linbility partnership or any other parties during the vear. The Company has provided loans,
secured or unsecured in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The Company has
nod provided guarantee and loans, secured or unsecured 1o firms, limited liability partnership or any

other parties.

A. the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with

respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associales as below.

B. Based on the audit procedures carmied on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security 10 any other entity as below:

Farticulars Guaranfess | Security Loans | Advances
{Amouni in lakls) ":[“":"::
Aggregate amount during the year
- Subsidianies® . 7 .
= Jolmt ventures® . 5 =
= Associates™ 5 = =
Chhiers . . 1,700 -
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
- Subsidiaries® £ = = ]
- labmt venbures® = = F 2
= Assocmtes®™ - - - -
Chbers = . = a
r mics Act, 201

According to the information and ¢xplanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loan during the year is,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, the Company has not made any
investment, provided guarantee, given any security and any advance in the nature of loan during the
}"E-E.I'.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
Ihc records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal

Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year,

pagm of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.
?Z” 2




BSR & Co LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f

v)

vi)

vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no overdee amount for more than ninety days in respect of
loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due
during the vear, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to same partics.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
lans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or securily as specified under
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™). In respect of the investments made by
the Company and loans given, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been
complied with,

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any
of the services provided by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

{a) The Company does not have Hability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed imo GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax ("GST™),
Provident fund, Emplovees” State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited by the company with the appropriate awthorities
though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Provident Fund, ESIC, Professional Tax
and Labour Welfare Fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of GST, Providemt fund, Employees™ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other

e mn ial statutory ducs were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months
e -Ejm cate they became payable.
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BiR&Co LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure *A" to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(b} According o the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, statutory dues relating to GST, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,

Income-Tax, Cess or other material statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute are as follows:

Matare of Siane MNatare of Amoant Period to which Forum where dispuie is | Hemoarks, if
e Demanded the amount relates pending amy
The Finamde Act, 194 Service 1K FFTTIES14 | 2O0G-2 5 CESTAT MNane
The Finance Act, 1954 Service tax sl M5, 2408 | G-I () CESTAT MNane
The Fanance Act, 1994 SEvice tax T3 06 5] | G-I CESTAT MNang
The Finance Act, 194 | Sarvice tax L2TALRTS | HG-HH 2 CESTAT None
The Finance Act, 1% | Senvice tax 60550936 | 20152016 CESTAT None
“The Finance Act, 1094 Sorvice lax 09373582 | H0e-2011 Commissioner of Servece | None
Tax
Thet Finamce Acl, 1994 Service iax Rl A5 459 | M 1-MM5 Azsistand  Commissioner | Mone
. Service Tax
The Finance Act, | %54 Service inx 4,360,351 401 | Hie-200% Commissioner of Servieoe | Mone
Tax
wiii) According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basiz of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 191 as income during the vear,

ix)  {a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest therson to banks or financial institutions or any other
lender during the year.

(b) Agccording to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or governmem of government authority.

{c} In _our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us by the
o b l‘/ ¥ term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,
TP
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BSR & Co. LLP

SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A" to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

(d}  According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of ihe
halance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used
for long-term purposes by the Company.,

(e}  According (o the information and explanations given 1o us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of ils subsidiaries, associates or
joint veniures as defined under the Act.

{f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

%) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order ix not applicable,

(b}  According (o the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has nod made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or panly convertible debentures during the vear. Accordingly,
clause 3(x¥b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi) (2) DBased on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the

information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented 1o us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

xii}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.

xiii)

/

II &

g’

Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order 15 not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, and the details of the related party tranzactions have been disclosed in the financial

P 15 required by the applicable accounting standards,
L
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SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A™ to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

xivi{a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issved tll date for the period under
audit.

xv}  In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
nol entéred into any non-cash transactions with ils directors or persons connected Lo its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvia) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)}{a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){b) of the Order iz not applicable.

{c) The Company is not 8 Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}c) of the Order is not applicable.

{d} The Company is not pari of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi){d)
are ol applicable

xvit)  The Company has incurred cash losses of INR 2.841.16 lakhs in the current financial year and
INR 6,000.77 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable,

xix)  According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of Gnancial labilites,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing o
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as o (the future viability of the
Company. We further siate that our reporting is based on the facts up 10 the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall

o
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SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “A™ to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

xx)  In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3{xx){a) and 3(xxWb) of the Order are not applicable.

For B5S R & Co, LLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registrotion No.: 101 243W/ W-100022
E- o Séﬂ_/hf

Bhaveshkumar Dhupelia

Place: Mumbai Fartner
Date: 23 May 2022 Membership No. 042070
UM : 220420T0ATLFHF3843
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SOTC Travel Limited

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements
of SOTC Travel Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid fMinancial statements under
Claunse (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

{Referred to in paragraph 2(A) (I) under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference (o financial ststements of SOTC Travel Limited
(“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date,

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial contrals with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022,
based on the internal financial controls with reference 1o fnancial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instimte of Chartered Accountants of
India {the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial conirols based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
eriteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Node. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
1o as “the Act™).

Auditors® Responsibility

Clur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 10
financial statements based on our awdit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
@b]isimd and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

s
e



BS5R&Co LLP

SOTC Travel Limited
Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Aunditors® Responsibility (Continned)

Owir audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial stafements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference 1o financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal linancial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judpement, including the assessmient of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s infernal financial controls with reference (o Gnancial satements,

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 15 a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that {1) pertain
o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the ransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary 1o permil preparation of fnancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or tmely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due 1o error or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriorate,

For BS R & Co. LLLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration Moo 100 248W/ W-100022

R b et

Bhaveshkumar Dhapelia
Flace: Mumbai Pariner
Date: 23 May 2022 Membership Mo, 042070

UDIN : 22042070AJLFHF3843
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S0OTC Travel Limited

Balance Sheet
asaf 3§ March 2022
AN mmaunt in B3 Lakhs. wnless atlemwine st )

Mte As ol As at
Al March 2022 A1 Murch 2421
I. ASSETS
(1) Bm-currend nssels
(a0} Property, plint and equipmen: oy 14295 18533
(b Righit of use assens 2] LAILES (R K]
(o} roodwill 23 268.50 15850
1) Ciher intanghde pasets 25 128,61 G523
{1 Dntangitde assels under divelogmen 23 46,33 H
4F1 Vinnneial nsseds
1) [wesdmenis - BR4U 28 §.Hab ZH
(i1 Crther financeal asacts d 236,35 LR
() [haferred ton nssels (net) i i (W, 65 4.605.33
(En) Dotz lax assets Jwel) [ 1,335.02 LIS
Total non-current assels IS.'J'_‘:.:"._E : 17241401
(2] Current aseds
[ Finnncint nsseds
(11 Trade receivihles i 1.44% 34 117921
(ii} Cash and cash cquivelois N BTRTR AR
{ni) Hank balonces other than cash and cash cguivalonts 4 Liw 46,30
(v} Loans e . 5, 1900G
[vy e financial asscts i) 63330 30848
(k1 Chher currenl asels 12 2.5W1,14 311500
Tatal eurren asseds GRS 54 14.4827.04
TUTAL ASSETS TaM6IT AU 05
1L BEQLITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Eqquity
(a) Equity share cagilal 13 10 1 341
(B Dhiber Exquity el 11,95 420721
Total Equily 200,95 ¢ M2
() Nani=current linhilities
[} Bomowings i3 B20,37 -
1131 Lease lesbilities ia 1,170.55 ¥21.12
{r] Pravisicns I 306,45 37361
Total Men-current liabblitcs 2ARTAT 1.194.74
{3) Current liabilities
(=) Finaoeial labiliies
(i) Borrowings Iy 1A7HTY 2.407.34
(01 Lisasi Liabilities fha 31540 3206
(e} Traelo payables
Todal outatanding docs al Mz amd Sl antemprises 1w L84 {84
Testarl anststarelivgr dues of zreditors otuer than Mizro and Sl eolerprises Fi CR TR 12921 1%
{iv) Crher Minancial lakdlities h 13841 2RK0
[ Priwisions 2 51125 46203
[el Crbher curmean Habiline: 22 RARZET 10,187 &6
Total Current Lialdlitkes 2040780 E 20.565.11
TOTAL EQUITY ANI} LIABILITIES 1400612 3L5A5.05
Sigiificant acoounting palicies I
Mobes b the fnancinl statements 243
Tl mstes v ferreed 4 above form an mesgral part of the financial siaicowats U .
A per our report of even dace attached / '-""hf"'-
For BSR& Co, LLF Fou and on bheball of the Board of Direetors of

SOTC Travel Limited
JCIM: U0 2001 PLC 131691

Chirtered Accountints
Firm's Regiatation So; L2408 W W1 00122

/- h- oli

]

Bhavesh Mhupefia Miulthuyan Menon Viahal Suri
Partnes Ciiairman Managing Directar
Mambership Mo; 42070 TEM B (547 | [DI: 064153771
Pumtad
23 \“"u.:j 2mad
Furroukh Kalah Shii
Chiel Finaneield (iticer Camigmiy )
Mumbni [038 My AZHITE|

LM 22



SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
Sov gl peie eonled 31 Maeeh 2022

(Al amaunt in Bs Lakhes, unless otherwise stated)

Sriatet Far the yenr ended Faz the wear caded
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1) Income
(a1 Revenue from operations 23 12,881 4380.70
(&1 (Hber imeomes M 313.50 Ai2.01
Fatul income 13,213.31 046,51
(2} Expenses
{ad Cast of services K432 285538
b Emploves herefils expense 25 450412 4213584
() Funee cosis el 613 53216
() Dhepreciztion sl mnerizion expanses 2 XN LERTS
fe) Oither expenses 27 239005 433762
Total expenses 16,7442 [2.844.14
{3} Lass before exeeptional items nod tax [3517.01) {7.794.83)
{4 Exceplional ilems 28 74,00
15) Loss belore fay {3,5391,14) 7,754,583
(i) Tax expense:
(@) Curnent G ¥ - =
() Dheferred tax aredi) ¥ 131005} [2.720.66)
(7) Lass nfier tnx (2,28 L.09) (5,074,071
(8} Diber comprelensive (1o ) I neome (000 1)
Teams that will nod be reclussificd to profit or (loss)
{1} Rernesurernents of defined benefit (Hability] / nsset 43.42 59,54
Aip Incarne Lax expense on remesurements of defined benefit labilite Jassct) (4.85) (20041
Other comprebensive Income (net of imcome tax) -0} 8.5 = 39,50
(%) Total comprehensive Loss Ter {he vear 2.242.56 15034 67}
B Py _—e
(10} Earnings per Equity share {Face value of Bs, T each)
{i} Basic { Rs) 24 (ZX810.8%) [S0741.45)
Signilicant aceoimbing policies i
Toobes ol Mol shalements 243

The notes referred 1w above Tovmn an integral part el the fnancial saements
As per our report af cven date atiached

For BER & Co. LLF
Charered Accountants
Tarrn's Hegristration Mo, TOE24EWAW- 100022

B-nShrpb

Blavesh Tpelin
Fartner

Membership Mo 042070
Slunthsie

23 Ma

L Mu.dhm'an Menon

|D!N DBOES42]

£ naiden b~

Farroukh Kolah
Chael Faveoneiad (e
Mumbai

1 f-Pliy-22

2022

For and o lehall of the Board of Directors of
BOTC Travel Limied
[CIN:UGA040 T H 2 PLC 131691

ol

Vishal Suri
Manaping Lhreoior
[T Bd 12771

a

S\

W

Ehall Crupta
Comignany Secvetary
[5 M A2407H|
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SOTC Travel Limited

Stutement of Cash Flows
far fhe year ended 37 Mavon 2022

(A reinl in Ks Lakhs, unbess otherwizse stated)

Cash Now Toom operating activities
Loas hetore tay

Adiustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and eyguipiment
Nepreciation nn Right of use assets
Amaortisation of infangitle assels
Ciain nn sale of prepery, plant and eguipment
Cizinoon Lease liabiliny
Exchange gain / ( less)
Share-hased payment expense
Linclaimed credit halances no longer sequired, wrillen back
Bad debts and advences written off
Provigion for doubtful debts, advences and deposits (net)
Profit on redemption of units of mutual funds
Lxceptional items
Interest incume - others
Interest income on Inter-Corporase Deposits
Interest income on [xed deposits and investments
Interest on tax relunds
Fimnes costs

Working capitel adjustments
[ Inerease) S Decrease in trade und other receivables
Decrease in loans and advinces

Necrcase in ade payvables, ather fnancial Habihiies and corrent lahilities

Increase in provisions

Income tox refund {net}
Net cash Mlows (used) in'generated Trom operaling actvities

Cash Mows from invesling setivitics

Pavrent for purchase of property, plant and equipment

Payanent for purchase of intangible azsels

Proceeds from sale of propermy, plant and cguipiment & intangible
Interest received

Sle of units of mutual funds, net

Repuyment of loan given

Luan prven

Redemption of Fised deposils during the yvewr {oec)

Met cush Muws penerated from in investing activities

Cash Mows from financing activities
Proceeds from hormowings

Fepayments of horrowings

Irterest puid

Net cash flows used in financing actlvities

MNet devrcase in cush and cash cquivalents
Cazh and cash equivalents al the heginning of the wear
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of (e year

Far the yvear ended

Far the year ended

A1 March 2022 31 Mazch 2021
(3,591.14) [7.754.83)
115.38 L5201
443.77 67937
T4.75 5353
(3656 {1.4%)
(1277 (141,673
L&) (29,51}
4530 158,27
{716.31) (90,40}
S67.72 20,48
{566.21) (32.37)
- (1.43)
74.03 -

: (1954
{64.33} [100.07)
{12.58) (10579
[24.67) [324.16)
361,30 55216

[3,333.05) [ bdh ko)
{TTLET 424493
976,45 748,63
{d,Ed5.58) {3,388.25)
9264 I 720
(THELLT} 6755
316.74 2,405 38
(TE54.37) 144533
(113,45 (o8, 50y
[182.52) (54,15}
Tl TEG
206, TH 193,26
= 4.170.1%
B, B0, 4,150,309
(3,700,000 {5283 600
35.98 {12.66]
5, 0147.84 %64
#20.37 15000
(150,00} (000
(550,41} (G E2)
(232,00} (55216}
(11213 (1,551 %)
(251861 1,582.03
1,526.03 (55,40
(4] A1) 1,526,631




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Continued)
s 3T Morah 2032
(Al adeant o Ba Lakhs, undess otboroiaz seated)

Mirte 41
Transfer Priving

The Ceanpanny s established o comprobenssee systeon of mamtenanee of information and docoments a5 required by the trassfer procing Jeggstation under Seetions 52-82F ol the Incrare
lax At Sinee e law requires exisence of sech itfrmion amd decumentation ko be cottempormess in nohars, te Cempary is in the proeess of vpdating the documentation for tls
intesnationsal as well & specified demestic trasactions {if applicablet cmered inlo witl b ascoisied enterprise durng the fremiia] wear el sxpects sich reeonds 1o be in sxisence latest
bre the end of the stipulated timeline, as requinsd by kow. The Manngement is of the opinion et s intenstiona] as well e specifod domestic trmsactsors (F amed ane al aom’s lenpth 5o thm

the nforesaid Iegislorion will not have any impact on the finoncial statemenes, pamicalarky on the anount of tax cxperses &nd Disl ol prosision G asation

MNole 42
Oher infemmation with nggants other oatlers speeilfied s schedale 01 of the Compamazs At 2003 §s eitber nil ar oo opglicoble o the company for the financezl vear ended 21 Marcl 2022,

Mide 43
Thewmas Coake (i) Limeed, e helding comgany, prepares consatidzed franciol siotement under Ind A%, heoos Company bas availed the exempsion for prepartig consalidaled

fonancial sitement wider sl A5 110,

The npses from 1 o 43 form an istepral pam of the financinl snkements,
Ag perour report of even doke mieached
Far and an hehalf of the Bonrd of Divectors of

FOTC Travel Limited
1IN UsA04OMHIMH L 131641

FarBS5 R & Co. LLP
{ierered Accsumionis

Finn's Registeation Poo: 101 245%'."?-:'30}22
—t

B-H-

Bhavesh Dhmpaelin Yishnl Suri
Parier Managing Dizesron
Rerhersldp Mo 042070 [T DOCES42] [ChE: fGd 1377 L)
Kumibai M-'
23 May 2022 FI'.W- . b~

Farroukh Kaolnh

ki Fnewcaal Cficer

Mumbai [E1% Moz AZAITH)

L6-May-22



SOTC Travel Limited

Motes (o the financial statements
for the year ended Movek 30, 2022

(ALl umounts in Be. Lakhs, unless otlerwise atated)

1A

1B

1R.1

1H,2

Poate 1

Company wyervicw

EOTC Travel Lamiled (‘the Company’] formerly known as SOTC Travel Privite Limited s peblic limited Company iscorporated and domciled

i I, The Company is engaged o diversified travel and feavel relued bosinesses, working 25 wavel agent, sour aperatorand as Tully edged

maney changer,

The lingnei] statements were approved and authorised toissioe in pcrordanve with e resolution passed by the Roand of direetons ot its meeling

hetd en 16 May, 2022

Significant Accounting Policies

Husis ol prepuration

i

ih}

Statemeni of compliance with Ind AS

These finaneinl statements have been prepared in accondiocs with the Indion Accounting Standands (hereinafier relemed 1o oz the Ind
AR} as nelilied by Minisiny of Corporate Affairs purswant e section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with mle 4 of the
Companics (Indizn Acecunting standands) Rules, 2015 und other relevant provisians ol (he A<l as amended from time to time thas arc
oot fed amned elfective as at 31 Marck 2022,

Historical cost conventbon

Financial stafemnents have been prepared on a historical coat basis, excepl for the followings

= certain financial assers amd habilities - measured at fair value,

* defined benefit plans — detined benetit obligations fess plan p2sels meosured at tair value, and
+ share hased payanent « mensured ot Lo valoe

Toe financial statements are presented in dndian Rupees "(INRD" or "(Ra.)™ which is also the Cormpanys funchionzl currency and all
vitlues are reunded off to nearest lakhs (00000} cxeept where otheradse indicated. Wherever the amoont is represented as "0 'zero') it
conatmies a value less than ffly thousand,

{e) Forcign currency translation aned

Liy

(4]

Functional and presentation currescy

A Company's Tusetional currency i the cumency of the primary ceonnitic envimnment in which un entite operates and is pormally
fhe curreney in which the enity primarily geneates and expends cash,

Transactions and balomces

{uad Ictial recogmitoon

Oin initial recogmition, [oreizm curmeney transactions are tranalated intn e functionsl cumeney using exchanpe rates at the date of the
TR,

(ii.b) Subseguent recogmition

A it the seporting dite, nun-monelary items which arc carvied at hstoneal vost denominuted in g forelgn cureney are reponed using
the exchange rate at the date of e tansacton, Foreigm exchunpee gains and losses resulting from the setlement of such transactions
ard T fhe franslaton of monenrny asscts and liahilities denominated in foreum currencies at the perind cnd exchange rales are
recognised in profit or loss. Noremonetiry ilems that ene: measured at fair value ine foreign corrency are trunsluled using the cxchange
catees il Lhe dile when the tair value was deternined. Translation dillerences an assets and Hakilities earried a1 fain valiee are reparied
a5 part of the fair value gain or loss in the slatemens of profit and loss,

All monetary jrems decominated in foseign cumeney are restated ot Forcipn Exchanze Thealers Association of Indi (DAL rates and
the exchange varialions ariziog out of setlement / conversion al the FEDAL rates are revopnizsed in the statement of peofil and Toss,

Going Concern

Adat 31 March 2022, the Compiny's net worth i Re Z010.95 Iakhs. The Company during the vear hos made a net loss of Rs 3,281,04
Tukhs (1Y 2020-2021 Toss of Re, 5,074,07 lakhs), The lockdowns and restrictions impased fiom time o Hme on vacious aciivities due
i COVITR15 pandemic buve posed challenges to all e Tasinesses of the Company. However, the company has now able (o reslan
some of its businesscs in the domeslic deketing & lesure eperations in India and oulside Indis, The company expects operations to
norralize in o phased manner onee the confideace of corpesates |/ ravellers is fully restored. The company has asscssed the impaet of
COVID-19 on the carmying amount of its assets and revenue recogrition. Tn developing the sssamplions relating to the possitle fituse
uneertainties, compony, as on dare of approval of iese standalone finoneiol results has wsed interal and external sources of
information i the extenl available, The company, based on current estimates and information, expects the comying amount of these
assels o be recovernsd.

The Company bz alss nasessed the impact for existing and antivipated eftects of COVID- 19 on the Titore cesh flow predections on
the basis of significant assumplions as per the available informaion, The Company has undertaken variows cost saving initiatives o
miximize openiting cash flows and conserve eash position n the given sitacion,

The Company  hos aveiled loan under Fmergeney Credit Line Guorantee Scheme during the vear, T adiditien 1o this, finds ore
Cexpeeted to be generled frem the operuting setivitics as business picks up and stiabilises The Compony has also obiained support
lletter from itz holding company indieating et the holding company will continue 1o provide financial supporl s i necessary 1o

maintain e Company a5 & poing concern for the fresceable fture

Bascd on aforeaaid asscasment, management belisves that as per catimates made conservatively, the Compomy will continue a= a gning
euneemn, The Company contimes to monitor aoy matenal changes i COVID-1 impoet asscssment, resulling T the Tiure
omic canditions and feture uncerlainty, ifany




SOTC Travel Limited

Maotes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
for the vear ended March 338, 2022

(Al pmounts in s, Lakbs. unbess otheratse stated)

T3

Signilicant Accounting Policies (Connirned)

Use of estimates

Ihe preparation of Tinanciel statements in oceordance with gencratly acecpood aceounting peincighis COAAT} in India reguines that
manogement makes judgment, estimates and assarptions that affect the reported amaounts of Assels and Lubilites, dizclosure of
contingent liabilitics as of the date ol the Gnencr] statemerts and the reported omounts of evenues and expenses during the reperted
perind, The estimates and azsuoptions used o the secompanying financial statemems ase hased upon nanagement's evalialion of
fucts andd circumstances ns at the date of the financial statements, Acteal resulis could differ from those estmates, Lstimates and
underlying assurnplicons are reviewad on an onzoing bisls, Any resdsion 10 gcoounting estimates is recopnised prospectively in curent
arl future peciods.

Judgmicnes

Information ebowt judEments made in applving scoounting palicics Mt have the mast siznifican e Meets on e imounts recognizes in
the Tirancial statements s inclded in the following notes

Mole 23 - Determination ol whether o particolar service is rendered in the capacity of & principal o agent

Mete 30 (il - Determining the amowit of expected eredif loss on Booneial sssels (including rude receivables)

Poisle 2.7 - Lease clussitication

Assumptions and estlmatlon uncertainties

Infermaizaon aboul ssamptions wed estimation unceraintics that have a significant risk of resulting ina material adinsiment n the
finarcial statcment is included in the following notes:

Note 10 - Going Coneern and Impact of COVITE -1

Mg 2 - Estimate of pzeful e sed for the purposes of deprecintion and amortisation an property plant and equipment el infangible
a5C1A.

Mole § - Becopnition of determed twx nzsels: availabiling of fature tixable profit agains shich tas Iosses carried forward cim be peed;
Mrte 3% - Measwrement of delined benelt obligations: kev actuanial wssumptions:

Motz 4,7, 11, 12 and 22 - Recopnition and micasarement of provizions asd contingencies: key assonpions aboul the likelibood and
g e ol an oun Mo ol resoure:

Bode 30 - Impaimment of fitancial agseis

Maote 2« Impatrment of non foirciol assels

Revenue recognitlom

Revenue is measured based on lmnsiction prive, which is the consideration paid for services. Fevenue is rocopniscd upon transier of coniral
of promized services to custamers in an amownt that reflects the considerntion which the Company expects fo neceive in exchange for thosz
servives, Revenue from rendering of services is net of [ndirect tuxes and discounts.

(a]

(1

fil

(bl
(ih

L}

Loewmie from eperations

The Company caims reventus froen Invel and related servives and financial serdces

Financial services

[t eemprise of inecme anising from e Buying and selling of foreign currencies on the nel margins eamned, commissions an sale of
[oreign curremey denominated prepaid cards and ageney commissions from Moacyram, Xpressmaency and Western Union on cumensy
remittznecs. Revenue from financial services are recognieesd by relenmer 1o the ime of services rendered.

Travel and related services

1 cormprises of letsure lours packages withio Indin ond outzide India along with tavel related services wiz ravel iswance and vis
services. Revenee on leisore toues / holiday's packages are tecopnized on the completion of the performanes obligetion which iz on the
tinte ul departure of the our

It s includes income from the sole of nitline tekets s recognized 25 an agent o the Tasi= ol nel commizsion exmed, al the tme of
issuanee of tickels, as the Company does nol assame any perlormince oblgation post the confirmation of the Bssuance of an aidine
ticket 1o the customer, Ferformance linked bonuses from aitlines are recagnized as and whin the performance obligations under the
schemes are achieved,

Contract balances

Contract assets

Aeonizact asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered o the customer, 1T the Cempany pectorms by rendesing
services 10 oa costener befone the customer pays consideration or belore payment is due, a contract asset ia reeoenised for e earned
consideration that is conditional.

Contract lubilities
Aceontrat liahility iz the obligation w mmsler seodees foon cestomer for which the Company has seecived consideration from the
uwstomer. I a customer pays consideration before the Company renders zervices o the cuslemer, o controct lakility is recognized
hen the pasroen] iz made, Conteact Habilies are recopnized us revenue when the Company perfonms ander the contract,
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1B Significant Accounting Policies (Conrinied)

18.5 Taxcs on incom

Thie inceme tus expense or eredit for the perind is the tax payable on the eurent period's taxable income Tasel on the applicable invome fax
rabe fow each jurizdiction adusted by changes in defered fux assets and Labilites ztmitutable b temporany differesecs and fo waused fax
lozses.

Iecme tax for the period comprizes of curent ts amd delered tax, eome tas 3z recopmised in the sttement of profit and Loss except o the
extent that 1 relates 10 ttems recognised in 'Other comprehensive income o direetly o equity, o which case the tis 35 recognised in ' Other
cornprehensive income” or directly in egquity, respecively,

(a) Current tax:

Carrent tax s the expoeted 2z pavable on the fasable ieome For e v, using lax tates enacted or substntively enacted at the
Lzalunee Shewel dite, and ony adjustments to tax payable in Tespect of provious voars, Inferest inconetes perses and pensilties, 15 oy
refated o ineome tas are inchsdad in curment lax expense

Mamzpernent pericdically evaluales posiions faken in tax resums with respect to siheaticns in which applicable tax segulation i= subjoe
o interpretation. It cstablishes provisions where appropeiate on the Basiz of ameunts expested 1o be paid e the s owhorities, The
compiny 0flsel: the curment tix assets 05 against the labilioe for provizion fortax.

(b} Deferred tax:

Defarved tax is reeognised using (he balance sheel approach, [eferred fax assets and labilines are rocognized for deductile and
tanable temporary differences arising between the tax hase of assers and liahilites and theie sarving amount, except when the defermed
fax anses oo the mitial recognition of an asset or Hability i a trosaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting ror taxable profit or Ioss at the time of the eansaction.

Drefierred tux ussets ure repogmesed o the extent that it is probable that axable peofit will he available apanst which the deluctible
remparary differences and the oy Torward of umsed laa credils and unused 1ex losses can be utilised. Deferred taxes onitoms
claszified under Other comprehensive ineome (0T has been receenised in OG0T

() Deferved fax: (Conefnaed)

I'he varmvang amount of delemred e assets is revdewed ar cach reporting dare and tedoced toche extent fal i s oo longer probble thie
sufficient tazable prafit will be available 1o allow all or parl of the delerred tax asse to be wtilised, Deferred tax assess and liabilitics
are measured wsing substantively enncted tax mics expected o apply o taxable income in the vesrs in which the fempomare defTerences
areespeated o be received or senled, Defierned tis pesets and Liabilites are oftset when they relate o income laxes levied by the sanie
tanaton authority ond the relevant entity intends o seile its cumren Lax asselz and Talalilie: on oo net basis

1.4 Leases

The company as a lesses

The compuny's lesse issel clisse: priminly consist of leases for buildings, wehicles and office equipments. The eom pany assesses whether o
contract containg a lease, atinception of a contracl. A contreel is, or conliins, & lese 10 the coatrel conveys the rght to control the use of an
iddentified asset for a pericd of Hme inexchange for consideration,

To aszess whether a contraest conveys the right to control the wse of an identificd asser, the zroup asesaes whether

{0 e eontact invalees the use ol an identilal aseel

{21 the company hus substantially all of the cconomic benedits from use of the asset throwgh the peried of the lepsse and
{30 the company has the nght o direct the use ol the assel,

At the date of commencement of the Fease, e company recogmizes i “Maght of Lse" (“ROU™Y asset and & corresponding leose lakdlinye for
all lease armngements in which il 35 o lessee, exvepl for leases with a term af paclve momths or less {slarl-teren Teazesh and Jow vl leases,
Foer these short-term and Jow value leases, the company recopmizes the leise payments us an operuting expense on a straight-line hasis over
the term of the lease.

The ROL aszets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease lability adisted Eroany lease pavments
made al or preioe o the commencement diute of the fease plus any initial ditect costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently
meazured at cost less aceumulated depreciation and impairment losses iTany and sdjasted for any remensuremenlt of the lease liability.

ROHT assets are deprociated feonm the commencemaent date on g straghi-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and wsetul lite of the
ursberlving assel

The leuse lnbility i dnitinlly mensured ot amortized cost at che present value of the fumre lease payments, The lese pirements ane
discounted using the inferest rate implicitin s lease oz, iU ol repdily determinable, wsiog the incremental borroedng mates in the country of
domicile of the lenses, Lense Habilities are remeasured with 0 comespanding adjusoment 10 e related sight of wee asset i7 the company
changes its assessment iCwhether it will exercise an exlension or i lerminalion epaon,

o

The comprn) as & lespor

i.casq".‘."r_r'nl' which the company is a lessor is clssified as 3 Brimee or operating lense, Whenever the temms of the lease rransfer substantially

il the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lesses, the contract &8 classified as a finance lease, AN other leases are elazsifed a8 operling
| lepson, ||

For operating lepses, rental income 1= recopmized on o straight line basis over the tomy of the relevant lease.
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1B Significant Accounting Polivics ({Conrfaed)

IR.7 Tmpalrment of aszets

{a}  Financinl assels
A financial wsser oot varried ot Bair value is assessed ot each Teporting dzte to determine whether these s objoative evidence thae it is
impuaired, A fmancial assel is inpared iTobjective evidence digates that o Joss event has cocarred afler the mitiol recognition of the
asset, and that the loss event kad o nepative offect on the catimated fubure cash Aovwa of that asset that ean be estimalend reliably,

Oibjective evidence thal lnancial assets are impenred sun melude definlt or dehnguency by & deblor, restructuning of an amoant due o
the Company on terms that the Company would net otherwize consider, indications that a deltor o ssuer will eater bankengicy, e
dissppearance of an aclive market for o zecucly. The entity considers evidence of impairment tor receivables for each specific asact.
Allindividually significant reecivablcs are asscsscd for specific inpatimment,

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized enst s caleolated as the diffeience between il carryoeg
amaunl ind the present value of the estrmated folure cush ows discounted at the gezet’s orginal etfective nterest rate, Lasses are
reeopnized in statement of profil and loss and arc reflectod as an allowaisee dceonnd against recesvables, Interest on the imparmed sazel
continues o be recopmized a5 tocome through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of
inpairment s o decrease, he decrease in imgainment loss 1 reversed hrongh st lement of profitand loss,

The vempany assess of each date of Balanve sheed whether a financiol asscts or groop of financial assets is Gmpaired. n acenrdance
wille Tnd-A% 105, e Company applies expected eredit loss (ECLY) model for messurement und recognilion of impammment boss on the
finoneinl assets and croedit nsk exposare:

The Company follows “zimplificd approach” tor recognitien of impaimient Toss allowanee on Trade receivables The application of
simplified spproach does not neguine the Compony e ek chunges ineredit msk. Racher, it recognizes impairment loss allosance
Taged o litetime FOELE ateach ropoming date, sight Toom ics inilial recogniton,

Fer recogrition af impaicment oss oo other Tinancial asseis and nak exposune, the Company determines Lhat whether there hos been 2
significant inerease in the credit risk since initial recognition. IF credic risk has not increased significantly, 12-monih ECT. is ased
prroile for aoepaienen] Joss, Howewer, (0 credil sk has inereased sipmificantly, Dfetime ECL Gz used, 1E 100 subszquent period. credic
quality of the instrument improves such that there is ne longer & significant increase by credin vigk sinee inital recopnition, then (he
enlity reverts W recogmzing impaimnend loss allowanee bused on 12-month LECL

(b}  Mon financial asseis

Gondwill iz tested annually foe impaineenr, e more frequently 5T events of chinges a0 creomsfances iedicate that they might be
irpeired, Lther assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in eircumstances indicace that the carmving amount may
ol be recnverahle. An impatrment Toss i tecopnisal foe the amount by which the assets curmving amount excesds 1t Tecovernble
umount. The recoverable amoeunt is the higher of an assct's fair valee less eosts of disposal and walue in wse. For the paposes of
assessing inpirmment, assels are pouped al the lowest levels for which there ore separately identifiuble cash inflews which ave largely
independent of the cash inflows from other asscls or groups of @sscts (cash-gencrating anitzy, Mon-fnancial asses ether than goodaall
thast sy Teredd nnpsirment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impoitment at the end of each reporting period.

Teral impairment Joss of o cash generating wmit {OGLD i5 allecated first o reduee the cammying amaunt of goodwill alleeated oo the
CGLT and ther 1o the ofler assets of e CGL piemta on fhe basis of e camyving amounl ol ench pssel io the COLL An impoirment
Joss on poodwill s recognized in the statement of profic and loss and iz mot reversed in the subscquent period.

e Clush and cash equivalents

Cash and cozh equivalents includes cosh on hand. cheques‘dratts on kand, remittances in transit, balances with bank held in corent account,
dernpnd depesits with original nentueities of heee months or less, deposits beld at eall sk Boanetal institons, ether shorl-term, highly
ligquid investments with original maturites of three months o less that are readily convertibic o known amoonts of cash asd whicl ane
subrest o oan insignificant sk of chamges in value, ond bimk overdrafls, Bank overdrafts ave repayable on demand and form an integral par
of an entity’s cash management, and are included az a component of cash and casl cquivalents. Bank overdials are shown willtin bosrowings
ineurrent frametal Habilines m the balirse shes,

JRER Financial instruments

(a) [Initial recognition and messurement
Financial assets arc recognized when the entily beeomes a party 1 the contzaciual provisions of the dnstramentz Trimsetion costs e
expenzed in the statement of profit and loss, except for finoncial instnments camicd at amonized cost, whese franspction costs orc
adjusted in the amortized cost of the asset,
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1B Significant Aceounting Policies (Conrinred)

1B.5

Financlal instruments ({Ceneiunedy

(i

1€

{ly

Sulwseguent measuremen|

Finaneial ossets, other than equity instremcits, ase subsequestly mensirad o) amerised cost, Bir vadue through edher comprebensive
inceme ¢ FYOCT) or Bae walue through profit or boss (*FYTPL} on the basis of:

(i} the entice™s hosiness madel e manzging the Brancial assets und

(1] the contractual eash fow characteristics of the fnancial assel,

(i) Measured at amortized cost: Financial asscts which bave contractual cash Mows hal are solely paments of prircipal ond interest
it the prineipal outstianding aml 35 held within & business model wdth he objeetive of holding the assos o eolloet contracneal cash
flows, are subsequently measered at amartized cost using e eMective interes e LI methed, less imparment. i any. Amortized
el 35 catenlafed by tiking int aceount any discount o premium on acquisition and foes or eosts that are an integral pon of the IR,
The EIR amortization is incloded in interest ineome in the statement of profit and loss. The loescs arising from impaicment are
recopmnised m the statement of profit and lass, On derceagnition, gain or loss, (Tany, is recogrised in e stidement of profil and loss,

(Ii} Measored at fair value through other comprehensive income @ Finaneial assets which have contractual cish flows that are salely
payiments of principal and inferest oo the prineipal cutstanding and (s held within a hosiness model whose abjoctive is achivvnd by otk
collecting contractual cash flows and selling Mrancial assets, 55 mepsured at fir value through other comprehensive income. It is
suebsequenily mensured at fair value with unrealized gain: or losses recognized in the ather comprehensive income (OCT, except fr
interest income which is recogiized as ‘olher income” in the Stutement of Profit and Loss using the EIR method. The losses ansing
from smpairment are recopnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derceognition, enmulative gain or Joss previoms)y receimsed
in 0T is reclzssified fom he equity 1 "otker imeome’ o the Statemens of Profit and Loss,

(i} Measuret t fuir value through profit or loss: & financial asset net measared at either amartized cost or FVOCT, is mensured o)
F¥TPL. Such financial asscls arc measured af fair valoe with all changes in G vadue, including inderest income and dividend income
il any, revognused as “olher inveme” in the Statement of Profic and Lass,

All investments in equity instroments classificd under financial assers are subsoguently measured at Gir value (except o invesiment in
subsidiaries). Fauity instruenents which ane held Gor tzading are measured at FVYTPL For all other equity instruments, the Com sy
may, on initial reeopmition, irevocably elect to measie e same either 91 FYOCT or FVITPL. The Company makes zuch election on an
tsstrnmently-instromm) basis, Fair vlue changes on an eguity instrument shall be recognised as ‘other income” in e Statement of
Frofit and Loss unless the Company las elected fo mesure sock mstmment at FVOCL Fair value chunges excloding dividends, on an
eruily instrument mesgured ol VOCT are recognised in OCL Amounts teeognised in OCT e not subsenguently: recls Ged (o the
Swatement of Profic and Foss. Dhvidend income on the tnvestments 0 egquity instrumenss ure recoznised as 'other ineome” in the
Statemnent of Protil und Loss when the company’s right 1o reacive paymcms is estalblishes.

Tnvestments in subsidinries

Investments in subsidines are commed at cost less pcoumoalnted impatmment Losses, iFany. Where an indicatinn of impairmenl exists,
the camying amount of the nvestment i asesed and weitten down tmmediately 1t recovertle amount. The secounting policy on
impenrrnen| of pon-lnuncial assets 15 disclosed in Mote 16, On disposal of investments in subsidiarics, e dilference belween nel
dizposal procecds and the carrying aenoents are recopnized In the stitement of proft und less,

Derecppnition

I'he Compuny derevognises o financial aszer when the contractaal dghts 1 e cash Noews fom e T asset expine, or il st
e contracioal rights o receivee the cush (ows from the asset, On transfer of the financial assct, the Company evaheates iFand mowlal
extent 1L has recpined the risks and sewasds of ownceship, When it bas neither tanslerred ror nedained substontially 2l of the risks and
rewanls ol the as=e1, nor transferned control of the asset, the Company continnes to reeopnise the mansfersed assel (o e exlenl of (he
Company's continwing involvement. In that ease, e Compamy also recognizes an ssocited hability, The tunsferred azsed and the
asscctided lability ane memsured on e fair volue basis that reflects the mights and obligations that e Company bic rezined,

Finanvial liabilitivs

{a)

Initial recognition and measoremseni:

Financial liahilitics are reengnesed when fhe Company becomes a parly o the contrcteal provisions of the insoruments. Finaneial
Fapilities ure initially recopnised at fair value plus transaction ecsts tor all fnancial liabilises sl camied of PVUPL Financil
liaBylitics carcicd at FVTPL are initially recopnised al fidr value, and ransaction costs ore expensed in the statement of profic and Loss,
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185 Financial instroments ({Censined)
Finnneial liabilities (Conifuned)

(b Subsequent measurement:
Pimrsial frabilities are subsequently mezsured ot smortized cost using EIR method. Financial liabilitics carried a1 FYTPL aic
myeasiresl at fir value with all charges in Gie valug recognised ke salement of profiland loss,

{t)  Derecopnition:
A tinaneial labiliey 1s dereecgmised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expares, When an existing
firamcial liabality s replaced by another from the same lensder on substantally dilferent terms, or the terms of an cxisting lakilio: are
substantially modificd. sueh an exchange or modification is treated as the desecognition of the ongima) ekl and the recogmitien of a
e linbilite, The difference in the respective cormying amounts is Tecopnized tn the statement of profic or less.

Derivative financiol ingiroments

The Company wses decihvalive Donsneal instroments, such as foreand foreign exchange controcts, to hedge ifs foreign curreney nsks.
Such derivative financial inarrumcnts are initally recognised @t faie value an e date en which g denvative contrect 15 entered injo and
ure subsequently remessured ot Gur valee, with changes i thir volue recogmised in statement of profit and less, Derivatives are carricd
as financial assers when (he Gaie valoe is positive and as Toancial labilifes when the G vidue 1= negatve,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financizl azsets and liabilitics are effser and the net amewnt 15 reponad in e balace sheel where there i3 a legal ly enforceable nght e
offsel the revognised ameunts and there 15 a0 imiention 1o secle on o et basis or realise the asses and sestle the Habilite simulaneoasly,
The legally enfrrceakle right must not be contingent an fuore events aond inust be esforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of defiuli, insolvency or bankrupicy of the Compary or the coumterparty,

113,16 Froperty, plant wmd egqoipment

Froperty, plant and equipment 15 mepsured at cost less acoumulated Sepreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Subscqoent
casts are inefuded in the assel’s canying amount o recognised as o sepamie assel, o appropriate, cnly when 1l 35 probable that houre
eoomomic benetits assoviated with the item will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the iten an be measired seliably. AT other sepairs ol
matntenanes are charged 1o e statement of predil and loss during e penicd o owhich they are meuarred. The commving amount of any
comporent accounted for as g separate assel 1= derecognised when replaced. Lesses arising fiom the cetiserent af, and gains or losses ansing
froen disposal of assets which are camed af cost s recogmised in the stalement o profit und loes.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histoneal eosl less depreciation, Thislorical cost includes expenditure that iz directly atmbutable
0 the acguisiion of the dtems. Depreciation i= provided on a staight-line methad over the catimated wscful lives of e assets, The
depreciation rates are prescribed in Schedule 11 the Cormpanaes Act, 2005 17 e management's estimate of the useful lite of a fixed osse
at the nme of acquizition of the asset or of the remaining wseful life on a subsequent revicw i shoter o Tonger than fhal envizaged o the
aforesad Schedule, depreciation 1s provided a1 @ higher or lower mate respectively, besed on the manngement's estimate of the wsefil
lifc/remnining Iifc.

Agseis Falirmated uselul like
(in years)

Furniturc and Fixtures 5

Oftice Lyuiprnent's (including air conditioners) 3

Vehicles 5

Computer hardwane 5

Legsehold Improversnts are nmortised over the period of the lease or wacfil 1ife of the asset whichover is Tower,
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10 Significant Accounting Policies ({Canrfnsed)

15,10 Property, plant and cquipment {Comniued)

Property, plant and eouipment not ready for the intended ose on the date of Balonee Sheet are disclosed as “SCapital work-in-progress'

The tesidual values, weful lives and methnd of degreciation of propecty, plant and equipment 35 reviewed at cach financial year end and
afjusted prospectively, 1 appropriate. The residual values are ot mare than 5% of e original cost ol the sset, The ssels residual values
and uaclul Tives are reviewed, and adjusted i1 appropriate, of the end of each repoming period. An assct’s carying amount is written down
imraedintely to its recoverable amount it the asscl’s earrving arounl is greater than its estimisted recoverable amount Gains and losses on
disposals ane determined by comparing procesds with carmying amount. These are included in the statement of peafit and loss,

Intnnpible assets

Intangible Assers are stated at acquisition cost, nel ol acepmulnied amaortizten and sccumulsted impatrmen? losses, i any, Intangible assets
are amurtized on g struight line basis over their estimated wsefal lives, The amaerization pesicd amd (he amor zabion method ate reviewed at
Teast at each Ninancizl vear end, 10 the expected vselul life of the asser 35 simeficantly different from previows estimates, the amortization
penod 1= changed sccordingly. CGaing or losses arsing from the retirement or disposal ol an intangible assetare determined s the differerce
hetween the net disposal proceeds and the cormving smount of the asset and reeogniscd as income or cupense in the satement of peeht and
logs.

It carrying vilue ol these intangible assets is reviewed at least annually for impainnent and adjosted o the recoverable amonnt i reguied,

(i) Goodwill

Cioodwill on business combination s included i intangble asels, Geodwill 35 ned omortized but it s wested for impairment anooally,
ur more frequently 1F events or changes in circumstances indicatc that it might be Gmpaned, and 5 carned at cost less aceumulated
tmpaiement losses. Giaing and loszes on the disposal of an entite inelude the carmving amount of goodwill relating 10 the entity sold.
Gioodwill is allocated fo cash-generating units for the purpasc of D painnes) lesting, The altosabion is made 0 those cash-generting
units o eormpany’s of cash-generating units thit are expected 1o benetit fiom the business combination i which the goodwill arose
The units or company’s of units are identificd ar the Towest Tevel &l which poodwill s monitored for dntemal monapement purposes.
whizh in our case are the eperaling segments,

{ii] Coemputer software

Costs gssocinicd with maintzining soffware programmes are recogmised oz an expense as incumed, Development costs those arc
direit by aftabutable fo the desym and festing of identifinble and unique sofiware prodocts eontralled by the Company are receamised as
intangible assets when the fallowing crileria ane mer:

=it 3z fechnically feasshle to complete the seftware so that it will be available for use

= management inteads 10 complete the solwire and use or zell 1

= there is un ability to use or self the softearce

=it can be demonstrated how the solbware will generate probable tulure economic benefits

* udequate fechnical, financial and other resourecs tocomplete e develapment ansd oo use or sell the softwane ure available, and

e e expenditure anmhutable o e sollvare during its development con e relizbly measured,

Direetly attributable costs that are eapitalised as part of e sollware melacde emplovee costs ard un appropnate portion of relevant
averhends

Computer software
Amortization methods 2nd periods:

Asnels Estimnated uselul Lilke
(in ycars}
Sottware i
1B.11 Borrowings

Borrowing= are initially secopmises at far value, net of transaetion costs ineurred, Bormowings are subsequently measured al amertized cos,
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cocts) and the redemption amuount 15 revognized in stitement of profit and loss over
the pevionl of the horewings using the effective inferest method. Fees paid on the caablishment of loan facilities ane necosmsal as
transaction costs of the loan to fhe cxtent that it is probable thar some or @l of fhe Taciliy will be drawn down, In this case, the foo =
deferred until (he drvs down oecurs, To the exfent these i= no evidence that it iz probable that some or a1 of the feility will be drawn down,
thefiee is capitnliscd a5 a prepayment for liguidity seeviees and amortized ever the pedod of the ficilise to which it relates.
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1311 Borrowings (Centinedi
Boreowings are derecogmised Dom the balance sheet when the obligotion specitied in the contract s dischared, caneelled or expired. The
ditference between the camying ameunt of a financial liabilice ar bas been exungnished o anzlered 1 anutber parly ard the
considers bon patd, msluding any non-cash assels mnsterred or labilities zssumed, is tecoeniscd in staterent of profit and loss.

Bormowings are classified 0s cument labilites antess the Company has an wneonditional right 1o defes seftlenent of the Bability for an leas
Ex menths after the reponing penod,

IB.[2 Provisions and contingent Habilitles

Prowvisions are recognized when the eatity has a prosent ohligation (legal oo constroetivel ps @ resull o oopast evend, 1 1= probable that an
oo of rescurves embodying evoncmic berefits will be tequired to sestle the abligation aed a reliable estimate can be nade ol the
areount of the ohiigation, Provisiong ace measured al the bt estimate of the expenditure ceguited 1o settle he present obligation at the
Bulanve Sheet date. Provizions ore oot recognised for future operating Insscs, A peovizion is secognized o7 the kelihomd of an o Bow with
respest loany one iten ancluded in the same class of cbligations s more probable than net. Provisions ore mensured at the present value of
management’s best estmaie of the expenditure require o seftfe the present obligation at the end of the reporting penicd. The discount rate
used to delermene the present value 15 2 preax rate that retlects urrent market aszessments of the dme value of mancy and the risks specific
o 1he Tiahility.

Provisions are reviewed at ezeh balance skeet date and adjusted o refleer e cusrent bear estimate, 1000 iz nn leager probable that the
ol o of resourees would be reguired 1o sefile the oblipation, the provision 15 reversed.

Where there are several similar chligations, the Lkelilond tiac an ootflow will Be required in settlement iz derermined by considenng the
clss ol obligationg s g whele, A provision 15 recognised even if the lixelihood of an ootlow with respect o ooy one item ineluded o the
samne clasa of ohligations may be small,

Contengent Tiabifities are disclosed when there 15 2 possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which 941l be contirmed
anly By the oceurrence or nen-secwrrence of one of more uncertain future events nol wholly within the control of the Loty or 2 present
ohligation thil asizes from pust evenls where i iz either not probable that an ourflow of resources will be required 1o sctle de obligatinn o a
reliahle catimate of the amount cannot be made.

Clontingenl azsels are netther recogmsed nor disclosed in the financial stiiements.

18.13 Other incomse

Inrerest incame is recognised on a tme propartion bases faking il account the amount outztanding and the rte applicable, Facility support
invome, group reseurve inceme and manogement fees is recognised on aceaal basiz over the perind ol agreement,

18.14 Empleyee benelils
{at  Post cmployment benefits:

(i) Defined eontriburion plans
The Company’s provident fund contributica paid ¢ pavable under the recomnised peovident Tusd seheme ard the emplovees’ slale
insutanes condribution 1z revogmsed ws on expeose tn the Statement of profit and loss during the pericd in which the comployee renders
the related service.

(Hy  Defined benefit plans
The Company peovides for gratuity, a defined benelil plan (the “Oratuly Plan”) covennge elygble emplovees in accordanee with the
Poyvment of Gratmy Act 1972 The Gratity Plan provides a lump sum pavment fo vestod employees al ietisernent, death,
incapacitation o tenmination ol emplovment, of an amoum) basesd on the respective employes™s sulare ond the enuee of emplovment.

The Company's graluity bepelil scheme 15 2 defined benetit plan. The Compony™s net ehligation in respect of the grataity benefi
acheme is calculated by estineating the areowe) ol future benelfi) Gal enplovess hive earmed o redum for their seoaces inthe curent
ani prior periesds. These benetits are discounted 1o determine its present valoe, and the fair valoe of any plan asscls s deductet
therefrom,

Constribation to Grraduity is based on the requirement of the trust with whom the Company mainzins the fund balance. The Company’s

lipbelity iz netvarially determrined (using the Projected Tonit Credit Methaed} at the end of each year. The amaonnt of nel interest expense

cateulated by applying the hakiliy discount rate to the net definsd beredic labilite o assets 1= charged or credited in the statement of

profit and loss. Any ditferences betwoen the inferest income on plan asseis and e eetum actually achieved, amd any changes o the

fabilities over the year due o chinges in actearial assumptions or expenence adjustmends  within the plans, arc recogniscd
nmediztely in 'Other comprehensive income’ aml siebaequencty nol reclass el 1oohe stalement o profiand loes,




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
for she vear ended March 200 2022

(Al wmeunts in Bs: Lakhks, umless olthervise stated)

1B Significant Accounting Policics (Contirned)
1B 14 Eumployee benelits (Cmmifnwed)

(b} Short-term employee henefi

Shert fern employer benedit obligations are measered on an undizeounted basis and aee expensed as e relafed service iz provided, A
liahility is veeognized fo the ameunt expecled (o be paid, eg. sulanies, shon term bonus, it the Company has a present leaal or
constructive oblipution to pay iz amount as a resule of past serviee provided by the emploses, aol the amaound van be estimated
reliably

(e Compensated absenees @
As per the leave policy of the company emplavees are entifled toasall 2 dass of leave during o calendar year, any carme forward or
eraashment of the uratilized leave balanee is not allowed. At reporting date, lizbility pertaiving e compensated absences is caloulsizad
hazed on total leave balances of each employee

(dy  Empleyes stock opions
The grant-date i value of shore-bised pivment owards - Le stock options — granted 10 emplovecs s recognized as porsonnel
expenses, with & corresponding increase i Fauity, over the periad in which the emplovess become entitled o the gwards. The amaunt
recognised a8 an eapense s adjusted 10 teflent the number of avwards for which the related service and nen-market perlformante
eonditions are expected o bBe men, such that the amount ultimalely recopnised oz oo expense 12 based on the number of awands that
meed the neluted service und non-market perfonrance conditions at the vesting date,

18,13 Contrlbuted equlty

Fquity shivnes are chizzilied is equity. Incremental coses direetly attribun®le to the dssue of new shates o opticns are Shown in equity a5 o
deduction, net of tax, from the procecds,

[RENE] Earnings per shure

Basic carnings per share is caleolated by dividicog the ser profic o loss for the vear atinbobsble 1o egquite sharebolders by the seeighted
average number ol equely shares outstunding during the year. Eamings considered in asceraining the Company's eacnings per share i 1he net
profit for the vear afier deducting prefeeence dividends and any atiribatable s therets o the year The weighted overnge oumber of cquity
shares outslandiny during the vear ond for ull years presented is adjvsted for cvents, such 8z bonus shaves, ofher than the conversien of
potcatial cquity shares that have changed e number of eguily shores pulztinding, without a comesponding change in resourecs. For the
purpose of caloulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or Ioss for the vear atributable Lo equity shareholders wnd the weghled
average aumber of shares sulstanding during the vewr 15 adjusted lor the effects of all dilunve potential equity shares.

1517 DBusiness Combination
Husiness combanations of entibies wnder commen control are accounted wsing the “poaling of interests™ methad and assets and liabilives are
reflected ar the predeccssor carrving values and e oely adiustiments thal are miske are le harmonise seeounting policies. The figures for the
previons perivds are restided a5 (f the bosiness combination had ocoumed at the beginning of the preceding petiod irespective ol the actual
date of the combination.

1B.1# Cost recognition
Costz and expenses are recopnised when incumed and have been classificd acenrding 1o thelr pristeery natere, The costs of the company are
hroadly eategorised in empleves benefil expenses, depreciation and amortisation and other cperating expenscs. Emploves benelit o penses
wnzlude emplover compensation, atlowanecs paid, contibuticn o vanious fuk gl =alT welfine expenzes, Oriher operating expenses
rtitjurly iclude sub-contracior changes, rent, recruitment and waining expenses, wavelling and convevance, Teeal and professional fees aml
COMMUNLCALION CXCNAES.

11519 Current ! Non Current Classification

Adl azsets and labilines are class Ged into current arsd non-cerrenl:

Assels

An uzzet is classitied a5 curent when it satisfics any of the follewing criteria:

al il is expecied o be relized in, o 5 inlended for sale or consumption in, the company’s pommal cperating cycle;

I} it 35 heeld primamily for the purposc of being traded;

clilis expected o be realized within 12 months attes the reperting date; o7

d} it is cash or cash equivalent unless it 25 restiicied Trom being exchanged or vied wosellle  liabilite for ot least 12 months after the
repurting date

Corrent assets include the current porticn of non-current lrancial assetz Al other pssels are classified as non-cureent,




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the vear ended Mareh 37, 2022

(AN amounis in Ks, Lakhs, unless otherwase stited)
LB Significant Accounting Policies {Contfnnred)

TH % Correent / Non Current Classificarion (Cooifmeed}
Liabilitics
A Hability is elazsifed oz corrent when i saizhes any of the following entedu:
a) it is expected to he sctiled in the Compary's nonnal eperating cyel;
b it s bl primanly for Lhe purpose of being fraded;
oy it is due 10 be settlad within 12 ncaths afler the reparting date; or
di the Company does net hove an unconditional dght o defer setlerment of e Tabilie for at Teast 12 months afler the reporting dile, Terms
of w iability thal could, 20 the option of the counterpariy, reselt o it settlement by the issuc of cquity instraments do net affeet i
classification.
Currend labulities include cumment porticn of nen-current finarcial labilitcs. All ather liabilities are classificd as non-currenl,

Operating cycle!

Operating ovele 1= the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization incash or cash eguivalents, Based on the
abowe defivition and the mslene of services provided, the Company bas ascertnined its opernting cycle 25 12 months for the purpose of
current — non-current elassification of assers and liahilitics.

18.20 Recoent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporste Alfirs (“MOCA") notified oew standard or amendments to the existing stadards under Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issucd Trom time to time. O 23 March 2022, MOA amended the Compardes (Indizn Accounting Standards)
Amendment Bules, 2022, applicable from 91 Apcl 2022, as below:

Ind A% 103 — Beferenee to Coneeptual Framework

The amendroeats specify that o qualify for reeopnition as part of applying the acquisiion methesd, the identifinkle aszets aequired and
lighilities nssumed must mest the definitions of asscts and lishilitics in the Conceplual Framework for Firancial Reporting onder Indisn
Aceounting Standanls (Conceptual Framewark) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndiz at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Tnd A8 02, The Company does not expes he amendment 1o bave any sieniticant
snpeet in iz financial stalements,

Imd AS 16 ~ Proceeds befare intended wse

The amendments mainly prokibit an entity from deducting fom the eost of property, pling and egquipment amounts reveived from selling
thems produced while the Company 15 prepanng the asset for it: intended vse: Instead, an entity will recagnize sucl sales procecds and
retated cost in statement of profic or loss, The Company does oo espect the amendments 1o have any impocl o ots recogmition. of is
property, plant and eguipment io its Bouncial statements,

Indk A5 37 — Provisions, Contingent liabilitics and Contingent assets

The amendment spectfics that the “eost of Tullilling” a conteact comprizes the 'costs that relate directly 1o the contract’, Costs that celate
directly to o contrael con either be ineremental costs of fulfilling that coniraes (examples sould be diveed labour, matenials) of an allocation
ol ather costs that relate divcetly o falfilling contracts {an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment wsed in fulfilling the contract). The effeetive date for adoption of This amendiment s annul periods beginning
anor aller Aprill, 2002 although early adeption 15 permutied, The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not capeeted 1o
he material.

On 18 Jume 2020, MOA throwgh o potification has notified Companies {Indian Accounting Standardsy Amendment Ruoles, 2021, The
netification has made amendments to various Ind A5, The Comgany does not expeel the amendments 1o hove any sigriticont impact io its
financial stafements.

Recent indan accounting standards (Ind AS)

The WICA nodilies new stanadard or amendments o e exasting standands, There 15 mo such netification whick sould have been applicablc
01 April 2021,




SOTC Travel Limited
MNotes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 31 Mares 2022

[all amount in Bs Lakhs, unless sthenwise stuted]

Fute-2 Property, plunt and equipment

C.tlmp uter [..e:l.'uf"l'mld |"ur!!i[urr uml Offi+ Giguliiment Tutnl
taridwnre Improvements Fixtures

Gross Block Amownt Amount Anwount Amount Aanouni

As nt T April 2021 SAT.IH 770 S6.31 187.7 RUH.B1
Audditions during the yea 19587 ] 2181 4,46 11395
Tranzfer in 2514 (5. 14) -
Pnspoeals duringg e vessr - 1,78 A8 Rk 1x.30
Ceoross carrving value uws of 31 March 2022 Ehihth 17523 Ul _Sh 1500 1400,46
Accumulated depreciation as of 1 Apreil 2421 498,34 4381 1703 Tdd M1 T13.48
Deprecintion charge during the pear 86T 32 10,81 22,63 115,38
Traiafes oul 12,72 {12.72) -
Dreduction an dispesals during the yenr - [ 134 T.23 1138
Accamulated depreciation as of 31 March 2022 511 ThAD AT.I2 T46. 9% §1T.51
Carrying vatue a5 of 31 March 2022 29,65 08,91 42,54 12.03 18205
Ciross Block Amaunt Amount Al Aol Aumininl

As at 1 Aprif 2020 S20.08 1N2ER 1A 16164 57491
Aclelitsens during the yeas 27.40 3108 16T 20,62 95,78
TDrisposals during the yoer 1.3k 16,44 3175 3,35 74 .88
Girass carrying value ag of 31 March 2021 RAT R Lo, i 56.31 18771 ROR.5L
Accumualinted depreciation ay of 1 April 20240 422132 50,13 431,30 L0 A33,70
Deqreciation charpe during the vear TLIR aH2 Ta41 A0 Bl 152.01
Deslugtion o clisgosils dumng e year 138 36.24 L 544 T390
Accumulated depreclatdon as of 31 Marech 2021 A4l 34 43,83 2703 144 301 TLAR
Currying, valoe as of 31 Marel 2021 A4 75 61,88 2028 4341 IRS.33

i1 reh 2022 A1 March 2021 21 Margh 2T M March 2021

Maote-2.1 Rlght of wse Assets Amount in Bs Amen in Bz Amount n Bs Aanount in s
Gwildings Butldings Vihicles Viehicles

Girass careyving value as at beglining 104330 4,054 594 - -

Additizng Tnd A51 14 Transition adjustment . -

Additions during the wvear 200040 pALR w7 =

Dispasals dunng ke wear 149223 226148

Cross carrying value as ot year end 2621632 2043348 W7 -

Aceumolated amurtisition us wt beginning 101443 At -

Amortisition change during the pear 4517 G79.57 X1

Rechugtion o disgrosals dunmig the year 13136 456 46 -

Accomulated amartisation as al vear end 1,225,24 1401443 ]|

Met Cogrying valuoe os i yer end 1,395,38 1.128.93 pA b




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asai 3§ Maveh 2023

(Al amound in Bs Lakhs, unless siheneise statel)

Mote-1.2 Lease liabilites

The Tollowing iz the movement in lease liabilites durlng the yoar
Balance as ar begmning

Ol aweecunt of Trassition o Ind AS | 14

Additions

Dispasal

Adjusnnes

Intenest on leass habilines

Paymeint of kzasc Llahilities

Laase rent waives

Hitlirmee s ol year eixl

Classification as

o currcn

Clirrenl

Sute: - Belonw are the eontactual mataritics of lease Gabkiliies on an undiscounzd basis:

Less thon one year

Batween ane and five veers
Mlore ian lve WEAIY

Rontal cupense recopnised for shon-term leases for the year ended
Fentinl expense recopmueed for low value leases otber U slont i as diseloasd abose) for the year cided
Expenses related 10 shor team lenses ansd low vilue lersas

Aaoonts pecognlsed in profit or loss

Lease under 1IF A% 116

Imiezast on bease lnbelebes (el nole 260
Drepreciation on nghl-cf-use pssets

Amannt recopgnised in Stotement of Cash Flow

Repuyment of Lease Habilibes-Priveipal aseanl
Repayiment of Lense liohilities-Interest omand

s tension oplinm

J1 Murch 232

A1 Masch 2021

Amoant Ao
1,138.99 341773
2,079,264 2p.40

{1,259.87) (154870
(31.25)
125,22 TR
{50312} (R
{4728} (10251}
1505495 | E3R.99
117055 821.13
33540 MTRe
1,505,435 [l
444,04 188,26
125716 87135
99,64 R
150084 1,375,350
1M.aT E 62
1M.a7 MG 2
12427 20176
443,77 67927
57200 HE2.13
373581 447 11k
129,22 20276
BN E 44052

Ihe deose coniracts of the comparry contain exension'rencwal aprions wlicl are cxereisable anly by the Company asd nol by the Jessaes, The Compaiy includes in s leee
term: sech extension'renewn] cations thal the Company 1= rensorably certim o exercise, 1 the ese = extended beyvorsl the renesal temm, then e lease rentils will by mutally

agreed hetwesn te parties based on the fair value of lease reot at the dime of extension.

Madification in Lenses

Pariagg 0%, E020-22 the compary las aken action o serrender S vacawe some lease hefone completion of tcowre a5 mentioned in leage Apecinenla, The congany has retired the
same in books of accomds ard differcnee of Ba 3125 ks | Marcl 2020 R 14427 Tabkhs) bepween ROUT asa B 129002 Dalchs (Ml 202100,637 64 Tikba) & ROL
Liability Bs 125987 lakhs (Murch 2021 - Ks 1,781 93 lakhs) as an date of retirement has been reczopmized as profit or loss on retiremens of leass in the statement for profit ond

loas. Further, i tof the same his been considered o Lease Linbilfes ond ROL Assels as on Mt March 2022,




SOTC Travel Limited

MNotes to the financial statements {(Continued)
as g 2 March 20022

AT amonnt m Fs Lakbs, oeless otherase stated)

Made=2.3 Dntangililes

Cinnpruler Asvets Umiller
Gonodwill Tutnl
bielah Software development el
Amaunt Amount Ampunt Amount
Giruss carrying value ws gt 1 April 2021 I6H.S EXTIR - TH5.40%
Aabbitions during U vear 136,019 4633 18252
Ehizpuesls dusing the ven 351 - 15
Ciruss enrrying value us a2t 31 March 2022 2ab.S0 GEOHG 44,33 W69
Avcumulated amortization as a0 1 April 2021 - 454,05 - 458,95
Arnartvention clisge during e year T4.75 - T4.78
Phecuc e an dispesals during e peas A6 - 2
Accumulated aniortization as al 31 March 2022 - 531.24 - 511.24
Met Carrying value as @l 31 March 2022 268,50 13462 46,33 44345
Gross carrying value as af 1 April 2020 26850 47101 - 4155
Additons during the vear 54,13 - 54,15
Dispozals during the year -
Cross carryving valwe as at 31 March 2021 20830 e b T8 A
Accumulatd amorlization as ol T Agpril 2020 aniarT - JilE 37
Amartiaation cliage dordieg e year b1 - 51,58
Pheclue oo an disposals duriing the year
Accamulated amortization as at 31 March 2021 - A58.5F - 45803
Mel Carrying value as at 31 harch 2021 264, 501 a%.23 - 316,73
Intanpible Asset ander Development Ageing Schedule
1
A oar 30si March 2022 “:;::" I 1-2 yenrs 2-1 years Muore than 3 vears Tatal
Frojects In progress 4633 . - - i3
Al 11a0 March 221 Less thon [ year 1-2 waors 2-3 viars Mirc than 3 yeara Tual
Frojecis in progreas . a T 2
Thiere = delay in commissioning of e Inogible pssets under development, nor the projace has exceeded its erigical budeet.
Mature of Goodwill
Gopdwill repognised an the acquizition of the residun] business of Kuoni Buainess Travel.
Impalrment testing of Coodwill
For the parposes of imgairment testing. Goodwill has been allozated ag fallows:
As at Al
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Meiguisition of the Basmess el division 26850 265,50
26H.50 ZaRAD

The recoverable amount was based oo fisie v less costz of dispesal, estimated wsing dizcoonled cash fews, The fair value measurement was cateporized as a Level 3 faii

value based on ioputs in the valuation techngue used
The ey assurmptions eed nthe estimation of the recoverable aeant are sel oul balow. The vilues assigned 0 te key assumplions represent munogement's pssessment of

fisture trends m fhe relevmt indusinies g e been bised on historical data from bach extensal and interzal 2ourees

Al Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Dizcount e jser aimnuim TEE T.31%
Termival value growil gabe por ainein " 3%
Audpeied EBITDA growh mle faverage of nesl 2 wears) per annuny % A%

The discount tale is post tix messure estimpted based on dbe histarical industry average weiphted-average coet of capital, with the pozsible oo debt leveraging and inlerm) rale
of petum of T.R5% approximatcly.

e receerable amaunt of Geadwill his been calealated usmg the discountad cash Aow method




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes o the lnancial statements (Contfraed)
ar ar 35 Mavei 2022
CAall amonsd ue s Lakhs, wdess otherwise siaedy

A1 Murch 222 31 Magch 2021
M 3 A ng Ao
Investmemts
A, Iovestments in subsidiary company
L Investmenes in Eaquiry Shares at ymarcised costl ampoaored)
eeh I TR GO i arvs Gl LIS R T I T
ill:lil:;.llm 431 March 20200 2L 1R 0 equity shares of USD | each, fully paidoop, of Trwel Dircle Infermedional (s nurtis) 1360.3 3
130103 L36E1AY
I Imvastmends in preference shares st amoriised cost § wmuotely 3
LE GO EEI0 73T Mlarch 202100 11,800 6% Upl:::nah_v Canverlible Bedeamnable Prefersnce Shaces of LS each, fully
paicl-uz, of Travel Circks Inremafianal QOdmemiries) Limited 7. ARHAS T AR 45
TdEHAS ToAkE A5
[XITET R
Less ; Tmpnirment lozs - A
B HAU IR 4528
Apprepare boak valie of imaquated nee-cumend invesiments R M40 2K 84078
Extemt of eipuity interest in sulsidinry:
Trveel €irele ntemacional Odaunious) Lanmitizd 1%, 1%
Node 4
Oither finnneinl assery {non-current)
(Unsevured)
Secuminy depasis
Considered pead 3T 42642
Credit impatcd .24 e
4324 5106
Liss ¢ Loss alliinos F e 1Y 146245
M0 4204
Fined depesic accouts with origmal meturing: mors than fwelve mooths® 18038 15114
A1E the aheas T are lisn agains mancin money deposis,
5335 [t T
Node §
Income taxes
AL The mjor compioent af ineome Gis expensts are as under:
(L} Incowe tax expenses consist of following
Current tax
L mesprect o currenl year - -
Chasges i catonate: selated v pievious vea B -
Dieferred tax
lmerease modefirred Las agsats (1, 310,05) (332601
Income Tax expense recognlsed In septomeent of profit and loss (1105 (2, 72L64)
iy Ameoants recogndsed o other comprebensive income
Diefiermed Las espense vm reseasarenents of delined benelil plins R L |20y
Income tax cxpense reeogndsed in OCH LEE (201
B. Reconciliafion of lay expense and the acecunting profil for Lhe year is o8 umber @
Lemx hefire tax T (A5901.04) 17,704 83
T uging the Company’s domestic g racs feurrent year 34.549% and provious Yo 34.94%) (1,254,580 (2,723.82)
Taw alfes of)
Fan-deductlble fax capenses - "
Crihers {5516} 14
Tl i L AMLBS) {720 B
Deferred dnx recrgmised im Other Comprehensive Income 4.8Y (LI

I'ax exgense as per Statement of Frofic and Loss (13165, 16) 12.790.75)




SOTC Travel Limiled

Mot Lo the finnncial stetements (Costiened)
wi e 4 Maeed 2022
A0l msount in Hs Lakhs, unless otherwise staned)

Mate &
Bneontee 1axes {C ontlowed )

C. The mujor compinents of dlelerred tux (fabilitiesVasorts wrising on sccosnt of diming differenees are as follows:

Bulunce us an Hecugaived in Revagnizel ot Balance as on
31 March 2021 prafit o0 loss L CRC1 A1 Mareh 2022
Dioferved tax AssctiLinhilitics)
Properry, plimd aml eyuipmend 13151 114.09) 11842
Fmphiyes benefits 24,80 F1.53 1481 854
Tax I JATRO2 1,423,560 530244
Prowisioms 441,74 (171,98} 109,76
(b oy 21,44 103 2149
Deferred fax Asveis § Linldlities) 460553 1,304,085 {480 G, 00,649
Balmee as pan Recopnised mprafi Recegmisml et Bnlanes ns o
31 March 2020 of loss in OCT 1) March 2021
Teferred fux Asserd{ Tinhilities)
Property, planl aid cguguaei [226%9 o.h2 13251
Ermplivee bne fis 151°7% [11.76) {200 J21A0
Tax losss 1,123.34 275554 1RTRAZ
Trowisiens 453403 111.31) 441.74
Ot fieins 4293 12147 I1.4R
Dheferred tax Adssels ALIabliHest (R R 2,720.00 12005 4.495.51
31 Murch 2022 11 March 2021
Al Armenmt
1. Deferred tax reflected o balance sheet as follows:
Dheferred ts Assets MY 4,645, 53
Cheferned ta Linhilicies i :
Mefermed ta Assets (red) o, W6 LA
Mate
Invom: tux Assed
Aabvance fas (et ol prosdsion of Tas) 1,335.02 163716
1,325.02 16ET. 10
Mot 7
Trade receivaldes
Tradz reczivahles considered poed - imssaured 1,0 1179028
Trndz reczivables credit impaired EIERK Lk AL
LinkE1 L#l5ek
Tezss o Imprancmend loss alliveviecs [Al4,47) [(EETE I
1,949,204 1,17%.21
Trade and olher receivables inclades @
s froan selaved paries - conaidered good Trela Mol 58] 9207 94 73
Marvemend in expeclel credit less allvwvance on trade receivaldes
Tianlamee ar the hegimning of the year 63,41 FECRIK
Chamges in loss alkwance during dhe year {320.54) {08 54
Baalance at the end of the year 314,47 hdhAl
Asoar 35 March 2022 Duaisdamling Tor follewing periods from due dade of pay il
Tess than 6 Monthy & manths — | year 12 yeurs 3 yenrs More than 3 yenrs Tatal
Undispmeed Trade Recsivahles - Cansidersd Good 1,766,585 141.52 4.5H 461 3203 54934
Lindizputed Trule Recsivahles - Crelit Impaired - E .58 15189 161,70 31447
Asoal 3151 March 2621 Crutstanding e Tollowing perisds from dwe date of payment
Less than & Months G momihs — 1 year 1-2 yenrs L5 venrs Muore than 3 vears Tudal
Undegperted Trade Receivobles - Comsiderad Good REERH] oL SRIEZ 10,1 LE2 BT [ |
Undisparted Trade Receivables - Credit hoparad 12146 182,71 15624 aan4]

e
Vo




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Contfniced)
el 25 Aaveh F022
Al amonnt in Bs Fakhs, unless otherwize stated)

A March 2122 1 March 2021
T | Aumnani Amrwani
Caxh anel cosh eguivalenls
Bialance with banks :
10 CAITENT Aot E76.39 ERER R
Lash on laod 2.9 LA
H7H.7H A.THINT
Mote
Bank Balances other than cash and eash equivalents
Shoet tenn deposils (Onginal maturity mene thim 3 months ansd less tham 12 menthz) LA L] A6.34
214 Ar 30

Draposil baloes Jincloding thease discleset uniler other finaneial assets inon-cumrenddin Meee 4) inclade fized depeaicz undar lisn apzregaiiop (o s 19155531 March 2021 Ks 127515

Mate M
Lok
Unsecwrel, consilered gomd carried al amortized cost excepl ol herwise sl

Lasem fo reladed pertias freler Male 3] = 195,99

= 3,155,540

lizloded in loans and advance ane corlam nereeeporate doposi e pacticulars of which ane deselossd bl s required by Sec TRG af the Companies Acr 2012

Noamw: of the loanee Bate of Intereg) D dule A-Mpr-x2 l-Mar-21
Secured! unsecured Amaount Amount
Thomezs Cank (Inelin) Timited 1,180 50
Treperl Circle Infermativaal [anrious) Limite] - 4 0140
- 5, 19395

Loan given to TCIL and TCTR hos been utilized for meering their seorking capical requensments, and the same s been Tolly repeid durng the vear,

Leams o advances in the pature of loans nre granted wo promsoters, direceece, B and die celated pacties (os delned under the Cempanies Act, 20008, eitber severally or joingly with ony cdluer
g that are vepuyabde oo decsod or wothool specitying any lerms or period o repayment, The fllewimg disclosums;

MM 31-Mar-21 |
; | %ol Lo o ; j o
Type of Brrmewers kil (![ i, e alvanioz inmature of Aumaanc o Iod b n ::I!' o H:'JW"LLI'
advanee in natuns Y aclvitncs o nature i quture o Tren
1%
Lot b Hoahbing Cuonaparry - - L 150355
Lot 1o Sechsidiars - - &, 4340 T
Mote 11
Orher fluanclal Assets (eurrent)
fUnserured |
Becurity deposita
Comsidersil prad A6l 2H #4050
Credit rmppired 11164 31226
47h.237 1,200 5
Lassas o- Dnpaeinment Diss allwance 11140 (315 26)
v, 2H LR TERH
Oither recelvables
Congidered peaod 267,02 (14 A
Credit tmpnired i 512
IH9.23 25082
Lazmis o Lanas abllnwarice (22210 VAL ET
a7 THE. T
Inreres accraed bat nat dse om lean fa reliled party - 179,45
Lnterest accrued Bul nol dus on Gaed depeais wills banks (L] 0,49
Dherivative finawcial agscis - L. 51
b31.3% 130w A%




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes 1o the financial statcments (Coondineeed}
wrar §) Marck 2632

(Al pmcant dn Bz Lakhe, unless ctheraise stansd)

Mate 12

Oiher carrent Assers

Prepaid expenses

Ralanaes with government Autherities

AMet ol provision of (ST recoverabie By, FI91L08 Gor March 2022 and R 79028 For Manch 20215

Addvance 1o vendars
Cenzidered grod
Credif irnpaired

Loas 1= Loas ablowaves

Stall pdvanee
Cansiclerml poed

Credit simgaed

Less (- Lass allawsmee

Advance (o vendors ncludes =

Adwanice to relared party - Unsecored, Considered pood [refor wone 38]
Advance terzlared pary - Unszanred, Considered donbaful [refer note 28 mnd 351

More 13

Equity Shire Capitsl

Autharised @

LELEIEEH AT Blaech 20020 10, Equaly Sharvz ol Bs 10 cach,

Issued, subserilyed woal Tully paid up:

10,000 0] March 20210 D000 Egoely Shares of Be 10 cacl, fully pavd-ug.

A Reconcilinfivn of number of shares oulstandiog at the heginning and end of Lthe yeur =

Eqquily shares of face value of s 10 each, fully pabd-up
Al bz commencement of the year
Addiriom during the year

Crszpndiog 31 the end of the vear

B, Bights , proferences and restrictions attached to Equio Shares

Equity shares of face value of Rs 10 ench fully paid-up

3 March 2022

AT March 4122 21 March 2021
Al Arnand

TL.13 L5408

1,573 1,305.25

L4061 143100

1 1,53 4574

156,44 L7745
- 1 19.53) (45,70
L 4d6.61 IR

.57 241

11915 17.31

140,72 121.31
[RIENES {131

157 241

I,50014 11500

- son

74413 =

1. (B0

1.0 Lo

1.1 |00

3] March 2021

Mus. 1l sharey Amanne Pan atf shares Amemng
JLRILCT 1. 10,110 1.0
1ik Al L UL 100

The Ueenpaoy has & shitple elase of Bquity Shares laviee Bos value of s 10 cacle Accordingly, Equity Shares shall rnk pari passe with regand ta dividesuds and share in the Compnny's residual
asieks after distribution of 21l pratzrential amounts, ifany. The equity sharehoklers are entitled ro receive dividend ne deckaned fom tiees te e The veling viehes of an Equity Sharelislber ane
10 paparticn 1o 0its shore of the paid-op equite capital of the Company. Yoty ciplis cacnol be caezeised morespect of shares oo which any zall or alher sume presently payable hpve not been

i,

Ciny winding up of the Campany, the helders of Fouine Shores will be entieled ro recedive the residunl aseets of the Company, renmng after dismbution of all profresiual ameants in propection o

st b of Equity Slases beld by tiem

. Shares beld by Holding Company ¢ Ultimnte Holding Company £ Sabsbdiaries of Holding Company

Fapuity Shures of Rs 10 gach Tully paid-wp beld by:

Theenas Cook (ludiay Limiced {Haldop, Company') including e nominees

v, Particelors of sharebodders holding more than 5% shares of o class of shares:

Equity Shnres of Bs 10 each, Tully poid=up, held bz

Thmmass Coake (India) Lidled CHolding Conggany'y

3 Murch M2 30 March Hi21
_ Mo, of shares A Mo of shares Al
L, Wk LR 10, LK) Lo
11k, 060 LK L, Chi 1.l
A1 March 2022 Sl March 2021
M i sligres o o dalal dlires Mo, ol shires T al taial shames
10,00 11 10,0420 Lo

E. Aggregate nomber of shares isioed for eonsideration other than cush during the period of fve years immedintely preceding the reporting dace:

M




S0OTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Contfmied)

as mt 25 Agrel 2022
1AL amcen in Bz Lakhs, umlzes ccheraae stated)

31 March Xk 1) March 2021
Amanne Aol

M 14
Lhther Fyuily
Chptivaally Ceovertible Mom Cumulalive Redeemable Pretererce: Shares HATL N0 B0
Petained carnings (YAHSENTH (7,372 %5)
Lapitald reserve arising ool of Amalgaison b R(E] GAE 4
Capdtal Redemplion Keseie 1A 1 000
Other Comprelensive Do i TH 5025
Euwpleves shaie optun ouEEnding seeom) BAILZI RE4 a0

AR 430721
Mries;-
ik Dpticnally Comvertilde Moo -Uninulalive Releemable Preference Shares
Authorised ;
10600000 (0 Warch 2020 100,000,000 0,01 % Opiconlhy Converitble Mom -Cunalative
Feodecmable Treforenee Shwes of Ra. 10 cacls, 1AL TR,
Tesued, subseribed and fally paid wp:
OO A March 2020 B6, ORI 0.010% Opdiamally Convertible Yoo -Cumlatse Redeoinable
Freferencs Shases of Rs, 10 ench

B0000 A [RRHE]

B 60000 5,000
Ac Reconvilintion of number of shures autszniling ot the beginning and end of the vear :

X ¥ureh 2021 31 March 2021
Mo of shares Adiount Mt it shares Ameemt

.07 % Ohptionally Convertible Nou-Camulative Redeemuoble Preference Shares of Rs, 100 cach,
Tully puit=up
COpentng Bis0.0n S 000 ] 8,800,080
Redemption during the year - = : -
Cursranding at the cnd of te ven HedLion __ A.60LO0 R0 Bl

B Bighty , preferences wid cestrictiony oblached (e equity snl preferenee shares

AL Chptionully Convertible Sop-Comulotive Bedeemabie Proference Shares of Hs, 10 each, Tully paid-up (*reference Shares)

s Company bas a single class of preference shares having per valae of Rs 10 per share These prefercoce shares an isswed o coassleration of the slump exchangs of Chtboend Busimess
Divdsian of ROTC Travel Services Privace Dinvited 1o the Compacy ne contcaplated o e Cogpoade Scieme af smngement and amalgamatoon, The Compemy bas issued 100, 000000 40.01%
Opticeally Coovertible Mon-Cuclative Bedeemable Prolerence Shares of Bs 100 each to Travel Corporatian (Inding Limized, as the residual of SOTC Traviel Seovives Private Limited (ie, posr
segregalzn ol Cuthouned Business Division s amalgnnated into Trovel Carporation (ndia) Lumied. Prefercice sleres cutstanding at tie end of 20 pears i 31 Tuly 2037, shall be cooverted oo
exquity shares s per the aooversion mabic of | preferenee sbares of Fa, 10 cach dnte ooe eyuity share of By 100 each, The holdsrs of tese shares are eoricled 10 Mon-Comelative devidend of
O00%, Prefercucs shares cary a giefercital sight s o dividend eover equity shareholdzrz, whers dividend iz nat declased in respeet of @ Qeanzial yesr w e case ol Mon-Cumilstive Preferencs
Sleares. the entitlement for that vear Tipses In the event of winding up, prefercies sharclabders lave 2 preferecizal night aver equity shareholders fo ke repaid 1o the extens of capital paid-up and
diridznd in arrears an such sliares, The Company Las an optics (e cowverl the prelerence sharss ar redssin the prefirence shares ot any time after the esd of L year Gous e date ol allotresd.

C. Shares held by Holding Company ¢ Lithinate Holding Compaiy ! Subsidinrics of Hobiding Company

31 March 012 21 March 2021
ik uf shures A minsnd Mo, of share: At
LA T ity Convertihbe Non=Coamularive Redeemnble Preference Shares of Hs. 10~ each,
fully paid-up by:
T womas Cook (ndia) Loniied (wee . 25 November 2000%) BAIEAIT R RO Halan B G000
el RGO E60.00 EA KT

*Pussuane w the Maticeal Comgany Law Tribanal (NCLT) Order dated 1t Oeraber 2009, te Composite Schews of Amopesent & Aoalgmaticn amangst TC Foren Services Lisitsd [T0F)
mnal Travel Comporanaon {India) Linieed [TCD aod TC Travel Seivecos Liented [TOTAL] sl 80T Travel Manapement Privaes Limited [A0TC TRAVEL] and Thomnas Coak Cwdind Limiled
[TCIL) and eess Coep Lacited aned e nespective shaseholders (the Schemed has become effecrive from 23th Moveisber, 2019, As pat ol the Szheowarmangemsil, the nhound Buginess of
TET has cemerged it SOTC TRAVEL and rhe residual basiness of T s beew merged, along with e ol whelly owned subsiciaries viz TOTSL and TCT, with TCIL. T ceased v axis)
woe £ 25 Movember, 2019 and residual busiiveas of TCE bas been wrarget with TEIL,

Pursiusnl 10 alfoe, D015 Ron-Coiculstive Optiomally Convertible Redeemnbls Preference Shares JOCRPS) held by TC1 e the Conginy: are held by TUIL weoe £, 25 lavembar, 2010,




SOTC Travel Limiled
Motes e the financial statements (Continned)
wr ol 8 Maeok 2022

(Al mmeant m s Lakhs, widess ctheranas stansd)

1x. Pardiculars of siareholders holding more than 5% shaves of a class of shares:

M March 2022 3 Mamch 2021
Mo of sluares %o of total shares B of shaies i of toanl slanes
AN " Oiptionally Canvertible Noan-Cumulative Redeermable 'reference Shares of Ks, 10- each,
fully paid-up by
Themmins Ueatke { I Liandted Kl iM) FLCTRE B, M1 1L

E. Apgregate number of shares issued foe consideration ather than cosh during the periml of five years impedialely preceding the reportiing date:
TR0, 000, 0.01 % Poo-Cumualatie Optasally Converithle Bedosble Prelfzesce Shares of s, 10 cach, were msoed by e Compagy porsaant W tie composiie scheios of pmangemenl acd
amalparnntion in the Finanzial year enclad 201 7-2008

31 March 2022 31 March X1
Ammnl Aanound

. Capitn] Reserve
Crpening Talance BARAN GARIH
Clersinmge Hulanc 38004 158 4
Marwre and Parpose of Reseryes:-
The reserve crsated parsuaid (o Composiic Schene of Araigement and Awalpamatics,
Il Capltal Redemprion Reserve
Opening Balance L A01.00 | AN
Closing Ralance 1AL LA
Milure and ]'III'_FHHE' aff Heserves:-
The reserve crenrsd aud af pridits in evenl ol redempgion of Optiarally Coanvertihle Mon-Cwnoltive Redeanable Preference Shares,
Iv. Retalned Earnlngs
Crpening Balnnes (TATRER) (228,81
Add : Mer Lass for the vear (2. ZH1.H) [50TLLT
Chosing, Talimee [ ] 12374 )
v, Cither comprehensive incpme
Cpening Tialimee 58,25 |%.75
Add ; Other Comprebemsnee Inconms ks Lo the vear, net ol o 3853 3950
Clarsine Halance T, TH 35,15
vi. Emplopee Shure Option Qulstanding Accounl [refer dae 37|
pening Butance £B4. ) Ta5E
Al s Charge Gt year [1oler Mote 57 45,29 L5920
Closing Balanee R0 18 Afd 0

Marwre nned Purpse of Heserves:-
Tlae Company baz established oo equitv-zettied share-based poyment plans for certam cateperizs of eplayees of the Company, The shares of the halding Cempany sme dssued under the TSOP
Kcheme o the emplypess of e Company.

Mule 15

Lamp berit birroyings

fUinsevired )

Tern Loa from bank ERRAT -

BX3T -

During the year Coompany lsas recsived leaw amountiap 10 Ba, 81982 lnkhs oet of processing fees'stmnp duryd from HDEC Bonk Limited which iz secured by wiy of second ranking chasge over
existing primary and eollatern! securities meluding mestgyges, o0 any, crealed @ the Ever o ank and secunty comted aver e assets el e bormawer purchased owt ol tes Tacdsty. The applicakls
rate of intereat Bs on balance sheet date 15 7.5% pon. However, the applizable inferest rate shall changs in accantince with every teset! chimpe af the reference rase or chimge of spread b the bink
Toumatiom afithe loan is T2 momth aod b5 repayable i 48 wooatbly metalloews alter 2 moratanmg pecied of 24 noathe. Iieenessn o be sereeed on a monthly beses,




SOTC Travel Limited

MNodes Lo the financial statements (Contingcd)
ar e 3 Marck 2012

(AN niroune i B Lakbe, unless otbserwise stated)

31 Marek 2021

Mate 1 A1 March 022
L¥theer finuncinl linhilitics Amount Adncauil
Lense linkilities [reder Mo 2.2 117,55 IR E
1.070,55 B21.13
Mide 16 a
Oiher fmancial Halilities - Curvend
Lesamsee Justuluduss - gt [seler Nowe 2.2 33540 11784
3540 AT HA
Maote 17
Frovisions
Frovislon for employee Benifits - dnen curreah
Prowigiom far Gmite [refer Mate 56 45 KK R
0645 ERE
Mude 18
Barrowings
Hank Creerdrafi wse for Cash Manapement porpose- unsecared repayable o demand LHTILTY 115734
Working capin! dememd kin-unsecured repayahle oo demamid = 1 5L
TATLT? 140734
Mare 19
Truwbe payahbes
Tatal auststanling dues off Mecre aond Small enverprises [refer Yow 33) 054 0,54
Tatal outstanding dues of ereditars pther than Micrmomd Bmall enterprises (Inchidzs hook overdrafi Bs 372,60 0 LY -Rs 172144 LA 12921, I8
169 1292202
As ab Yxi March 2022 Chutstamling for fulluwing periods from dec date of payment
I.ess than 1 vear 12 yeurs -3 venrs Muore than 3 venrs Tarnl
Totnl oubitamding dues of MSME - 044 - - %3
‘Total oulstawding dues of creditors other than MSME 556811 1.1%7.33 1H2Z5,61 11740 916844
Ant 51 s March 2021 Chutstuneling for following perinds from duc date of pavoent
Lass than | year 12 venrs 2-3 yesrs More than 3 years Total
Tetal pulstambing dues ol MEME 1k - - mRd
Togal vatstardig dues of coedicers other than MEME TATu 10 2HAN 155077 G155 12,6521.18

Mote 20

Dicher finaneizl linhilities (ourrent)
Seurily dueposdis

Crlers

Maote 21
Frovisions

Frovvizion for etaploree beraffes - correns

Cirwily [relir nole 3]
Acerued salary and benefits
Campenanted abacnces [refer Woes 36]

Nt 22

Crther current linhilites

Fevenue received maxlbvmee

Aulvimce collectsd Bom cuslonis
Bl dye o govermimeit authocilics

A1 Mareh 2022

11 March 2021

Ambiine Adicant
£1.83 26258
55K 5.5

11H.41 268,210

994 -

442.83 AME]
584K 5512
511,25 4205
24,32 25381
HAL6.T3 T AL,
41,62 _2mTs
HIHEAT TLIRT.




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes (o the financial statements (Continued)

S ol vese mnded 30 Marek N22
(Al acant in Bs Lakhs, unless ocheraise staned)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Nate 23 Amount Ao
Rovenue from operations
Trivel and reluted Servioes: 10616.22 1,088 79
Total Revenue from operations 10,616.22 228874
Crher vperating revenue
Markening fees and otler ircslive inceane 297 44 2581
Linschinmed credil balanees oo longer regquired, weitien back T16.31 Oah
CHhwr mizcellaenus operating ineorme 2084 wapAS
2,183,549 1,575
12,894.51 438670
IND AS 1ES "Hevenoe from Contracts with Costomers”
i} Detuily of revenue from esnfracts with costemers recognived by the Company, et of indireet taxes o its Statement of Profic and Loss
Revenue from contract with customers
Travel and related Services 1060632 125195
Frmamcial Services 1,9 G.EG
Total Revenue from contract with customers Mk 61622 IIEETD
i) Prisagpregate Hevenog
The tollowing table presents Company revense disagiremted by tvpe of revenaue stream and by reporabie segment;
Hevenue based on peagraphy
Revenue o contrae! wiili costoniens
Inciia 10,500 93 3259595
Uheerseas TIRLZY 28.84
10,46146.22 32R8.79
Revenue based on prodoct and serviees
Fevenue from contrict with customers
Travel and relarcd Services 10,606,332 3.281.93
Frnaneial Serviees 0,1H] a.88
Total Revenue from operaliong 161622 10887

iil) Contract Balances

The contraet liabilities primurily relute o the pdvance consideration reecived from customers for which evenie is recegnized when e performunee oblimtion is aver

{ services delivered.

Advance Colletions 35 revopnized when puvment 1= received betore the related performance ohligation iz satizlied, This ieelsbes sdvimees reseves] from the customer
foweards ledsure tour S holaday®s peckages, Revenee on ledsure fours ¢ boliday™s pucknges are recopnized on the completion of the perfarmasce obligation which is on the

date ol departure of the tour.

Advances collected from customers 5,116,72 EXCRRH]
Tatal H, 114,73 AN
Note 24
Oiher income
Tnterest Inepme under the effective Interest metlud an-
Bank depaosits 11.58 1637
Lazins vy relalen parties 6433 19007
Urthers - 14.54
Med foreign Exchanpe difference G625 1.0
Cinin o gale proceeds of cument inveatmecnts measured ar FYTET - 1.3
Interest an lax refunds 2dahl 13416
Frofil on Sule of PFL 3686 1.43
Protit on closume of Leass 10277 -
Miscallaneous income .11l 0.7z
RIEEL H62.63




SOTC Travel Limited

MNotes to the Tinancial statements (Continued)
e the e enged 17 Mk 2022

(Al amoust i s Lakhe, unbess ctherwise seoied)

31 Murch 2022 31 March 2621
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Mote 15 Amoent Arnnui
Fmployvee heneflts expense
Salares and other allowanees 3 MIT.H 345530
Contrbution o provadent Timd aod other funds .51 IERE
Compensated absenves 2T 552}
Finglyec share hased payment expenscs (refer Mote 37) 2754 i
Sleck eplions expenses (refer Moje 37) 17.71 6538
Stafl welfare cxpense 26184 2am L
4,504,12 421344
Mote 26
Finunve cosls
Enterest and Nmance charges on Fioancial Liabilines
- Imterest on Term loun 3608 15,58
- Intcrest on Leasc liabilities 12012 236
- Intereat on hank over diafi 133,34 TS
- Githers Finaneials labalies 5346 #3158
-- Bank churges 1] ]
1.3 352,16
Note 27
Cler expenses
Legal and professicnnl charpes 1.118.73 |, 553
Lioss om elosure of lewse - T57.30
Adveriisement ond publicily 14531 23560
Operational lense rentals 237 A RD
Bepairs aml maintenance - others 448,54 51802
Communicaion expenses 140.45 22302
Trvelling expenses 30,93 2483
Eleetricity charpes 9324 LA
[ates and tanes 54467 3020
Pranting and slationery expenses 24,16 18.41
Drirectors commission and sitting fiees 20006 27al
Insurance cxpenscs 1575 A5.44
Sulscription fees 1672 IRk
Proveizion for doub il debs and deposils {56621} 1237}
Bad debis und advance written ofl 8701 Zih, A0
Corporate social responsibility cxpense {refer Note below 27 (a)) - .
Pavment o anditars {refer Kotz belos 27 (B9 62,74 fi
Miseellaneons expenses .67 e
2,305 4337.62
Nate 27 (a)
Corporate social respansibility expenditure
(al Gross amound requiresd w be spent by the Company during the wear
(B} Amount spent and paid during the vear on
(] Dt of above amount paid o related pamy
Mute 27 (b}
Puyment te Awditors
Stntutory Audit fee Sqid LERL]
Tax Andit foc s 354
T o ler capacily
Fiatlion matiers - -
Certitivation fee 240 349
Fe-imbursement of cxpenses - RN
(L] .08

Mote I8
Faceptinnal item

Ag required by Ind AR 36 - "Tmpainment of Azsets”, Financial Assets qre tested for impairment on annual bosis nnd asseesed for asy ndication of paamwesl g5 8l cech repeetieg dete 1
cnaure that carryingy mmcant doss nes exceed the recoverable amaunt, Accardic 2l the company nssessed the recovernble awewnt of sdvasnees provided 10 Luge Asla Privae Lingied s a0
hdarch 2022, Dhae to adverse buginsss condinons, the recpveny of advances provided 1o e subsedaey 1s doubifal and tiss has resslied ooas impaannent provison ol Ba 7403 lakhs ana

hass b chagged wothe seatcmes of Profit and Loss as an exceptional ien Cog e yoas ended 31 March 2022

Misre 29
Eyrnings per share (EPS)

Jthc: profit for the yeor atiribuzable 1o Equity Sharcholders (2,281.09) {50040

4 I}.’:‘.‘r‘u‘:l’yjm.-;d AVErEE p;_.ri‘}_ﬂ_'m-; of Equity Shares outstanding duzing e vear Tk o, 1000,
L Lashe girnings por sharg (AJ3) {Rs) {2ZH1089) (50,741,635
[, Prefirencs shares [ numbers) 8,60, 00,000 B A0,

| Mole | DHituted camings peraliare is ol computed as the Capary has weureed a loas duiie e vear due towhich te Optionally convertinle non -cumalative redeginshle prefireny

shares wonkl he antisdiluzive.
fi

A




S0TC Travel Limited

Motes to the financinl statements (Continued)

far the vear endea 37 Mavol 2027
Ll anmounl in Bs Lakbe,

Mate 30
Finanpcial insd rumenis

A Accounting elassification and Talr values

il edlerwse slated i

Fair values and rish manaoement

g oot sl G valoes of loancaal msei and Gnanzied labifites, maluling teir Tevels mohe Tic valee hismechy, aee pressnled below

as at 31 March 2022

Carrying t Fair value
Financial Finnncinl Flnancial Total Level I - Level I - Level 3 - Tatal
instruments  instruments  instrmments Crnded priee Sipmificant Skpmificane
mmeasared ol measured sl mwessured at inactive  phservable inputs onohwrvslde
FVTFL FYTOCD  amortzed cost markets ingruls
Finanvinl axsvis mol measored ai fuir valoe
Teade eecelvabbes 194434 1444934
{ "dshaeel cash qu.ti'\n!h.'rllﬁ RTHTH HTH.TR = -
Cither hank balnrees LI 119 - -
Leams
- et - - - - "
Chier Finaneiasl assely
- Man-current {Security depasits) = = 347400 34200 = 34700 = 4TI
- Novecurrent {Others) - - 180,35 1935 - -
- Curreal = = LEEK}] 63%.3% - - = -
- - A A0S 4 1K IkS 4700 34706
Financinl liahilities nof measured ot Fair valoe
Mo cerrent Bormwmgg: - - B2.3T K37 R20.27 #0357
Current Ferrewings {Bank Ovendmi | . 1,8T0,7T 147077 ~ ) -
Trads payabla: - &,06%,30 DA603E0 - - -
Leaze labilitics
Pusrnn currerd - 1,170.55 LITLSS - - !
- Curreng - EEEL] J35.40 - - =
Cither firemeinl linkilities
- Current - 13841 [ELEN - - - -
Tatn] financin| linldlities - = [ERIER ] 13,51K4.51k H2k37 - BRO,AT
as &t 31 March 2021 Carrying ansmit Fair vilue
Fluancial Financial Financial Tatnl Level 1 - Level 2 - Level 3« Totsl
Instrumoents  Instruments  lnstroinents Quoted price - Sigaificant Sigmificant
mensured ot measured ot mensared st Inpethve  observable inputs  ueobservable
FYTPL FVTOL  nmaortized cost mn rlets inpats
Financinl asscts measured sf fuir value
Itz in imestszl Farels - -
Finnnvizl nssees mot messored af Tair veloe
Trade reecivahbos 11702 [ | -
ash arel cash egquivalems 3, TRRAT 3,7EL7 - =
Cither bonk balnrecss 44,58 46,349 - -
Leans
- Current S 10500 5,190
Clier Dinseaal asgels
- Mon-cumenl {Securily deposiis) A2 2 A2 52 424497 - 424,92
- Mon=murment [{Okhers) - 181,14 158114 % = = =
- Current 4,51 | 20857 | 50% 45 2931 51
DAl 12,020,539 1212010 5] 4252 526.47
Financial linbilities wot measuved at falr value
Man curren: Bomowings - - 150,000 Ta0.an - L 50,0 EELNI ]
Curmeit Bowowings {Bank Chverdmt) - - 225734 12570 -
Trade payables - - 1202202 12,022.02
|z Ninblrses
- Mom current RZl13 21,13 -
- Current 178G 7RG -
Oiler finavcial liabilities
- Current - B 20820 245820 - - 5
Total financlal Hablitics 16,724 55 16,730,55 L5000 LS0LIK

.th‘_ The-abave cucludc-s etz in Subaidiarny arnountiog o Be S50 2T | previow vear e BE49.27)

1nI.L|r

Pl eabpany s not, dl:s:lns::d the fair value of fumnclals lsmnnnens sacloas made roosivahle |

Lml:i ks Levyal | hlm.tt!n- ircludes fimancinl insmiments messured wsing quoted prices,

].cgq.

trexle payibles, ele because et camrving imeare are s ressennble appoos e

’ Jh 'ﬁ1.|r vidie el lesanzial festomments at ane ol teeled oo active macket i deteominsd using volunien feo :bmiques which maximize the usz of abservahle m
IJL1.I|.‘| a::p-cm!".'dl: agenlityapocific estinates, 17 alf significan inpos cequisad oo G value an msniment ane abseceshle, the instronen i ineluded in level 2,

L ane aepene of the sippificant inpucs bs oor based on observable madkel data, e instrument is meloded o level 3. Thes s the cose Tor unlisted egoiy seasiles, '.'ﬂ_mlml!:ﬂl _,/
o i indemnification nssel incladed in level 3 AT




SOTC Travel Limited

Naotes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jow the vepr ended 3 March 2022

LAl amou i Ke Lakls, unless atharyise stajed)

Sode W (Cantimued)

Financinl instrmioents - Fair values and risk manngensent (ol
B. Measurement of fuir values

Yaluatlon techaigues and significant nnobservnble inpuis

I'he Tallowing tables show the valuation technigues wssd in mepsaring Level 7 and Level 3 Gor values, as wellas e sipoifoant unobservable ingies ussd,

Financial instroments messured ot fair viloe

Inter-relatinnship hetween

Ty Vilnation fechniquues Slg“m“ '_[ sigmificnnt anolserynble impots
v uathserya ble ingruis ¥
nndl Fair value messurenent
Bemawings Dhgenl mae o Tae vabue af Mot applizabls Mot applicable

fnarials assees and labilities ot
nmorfized  cost s hased om
penernl lerkding mie,

Transfers hetween Levels
There were wotransfiers o ediber diccedion i sy of te seportog periods

€. Fimnncisl risk masacement

The oy lag capasune 1o the following risks arisng from finanzial inseruments:
= Credit rish ;

= Lagpuidity sk - and

= hfurket sk

I, Risk mpnnpement framewark

The Compary’s Boand of thirectans his avendl resporsthility Gor the estabbsloeent amd ovcrsight of te Conpacy™s risk manapesent framework, The Beand of directors hes established the
Risk Munnpement Caniltice, which és reponsibie for develaping and moistoriog the Company's tisk manapement polizies. The Commettes reparts regularly o the Beand of directons on its
nelivilies

The Companys cid nsnageneent pelicics are established to identify nnd analvze the risks faced by the Compiny, e seapproprae risdk Hoos and coitrabs amel G owislor dsks =ml ailhenence
1o Nodis, Risk manaeement policies ond systems ore reviswed regularly o neflec) chimges inomarket conbitions and Uie Coiemany's activiges,

The Boord ¢ Awdit Coanmittes averses how rsmgaoen) manilors camplissee wills the ctmpaiy's sk maagement policizs and procedores, and reviews the adsquacy of e risk

maragement Fenmewass o labien e e nsks faced by the Company. The Board ! Audit Conumites i assiztad inits oversight tole by mbernal asubit fnternal snbit undenakes bath regular and
il hoe revicws o risk manapement cootrels and procedures, the resuits of which ore reporied b the Baand © Al commitiee,

I, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk ol Hasmcial les wothe Congany 00 custamer or counterpany s finacisl istnunens fogls 10 mest its confmcoun? ohligatiors, amd arises priccipally Trom 1be Coranme's
peceivalles e customess aisd ivestments i deb seousities. Credit risk primarily oriszs from firanciol assets such as imade recivables lnvestoens monual Quls, dervative Tisnckls
Instruinents . balance with books and other receivibles,

Crebil risk ansiog Tom oecEieent o moeal fends | derivative finaccials insorumenta and bolancs with bmks s Timfted becaise the cranserpanies ane bank and recogndsed finnnciols
irstitution with high credit rarings,

The Compar: s expasure ta credil nsk is influemeed nainly by the islivedosl chamcenstcs of cach cestomer. However, mansgement alsa consders the factors the ooy influzoce the coedit
risk of its custooner haves, ancludiog the delaalt rak of the edasry and country o which cusiomers opermte

The Company establishizs an allowanze or aopainaend s agpeesonts ds estoace of expocted losses o respest of tmde and ather receivables

Ulsz averape eredit peviod on snles of services i less than 20 diys, Credit sk arising from oele reeeivahies i oaegged o acceadaiee wob U Compan's ezablisled policy, procedures aiul
carrol relating 1o cvstammer sl sk wnemageznenl. The congergratizn of credit nsk o Hoeed due o b fael et the costomer bese iz large.

The ' pmrpemy getablishes an allowanee Tor iapainmen thar eepresenid s citimate of expected losses iorespect of tmde and ather receivibles
A March 2032 21 March 2021

Muvement o expected eredit loss allowanee on tensde receivables

Nalareo: al e begliming of the vear B36.41 TIAAE
Additien during e peried - -
Chinrges im T alloovarcs dusdise e vear (321,95} (BE.520

Balnig at the end of the wear 440 636,43




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the linancial statements (Continned )
o e pear ended 37 Maeeh 2022

(A1l amound in s Lakhs, unless otherwvise sfuted )

Mote M (Confinued)
Finnncinl instrwments — Fair vialoes and rish manageinent {continued)

lik, Liguidity risk

Laguading risk is the sisk that the Camgrany will encounter Jiffiouly inmesting e obligahions sasoetted with s Nnarcial Eabilites it are seded by delivering cash or ansther
financial azsel The Company's approsch W maoaging hauidity is 2o ensure. as far as possible, that it will bave sufficient liquidic: t2 mest s Eabilitics wlen ey 2 due, wder
bath nermal and stressed condition:, withowt incarring unaceeptabls lossc: o risking damage o the Campany' s neputatien.

The Compeny's prircipal sporce of liguidite are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that i= generated fion operations. The conpany belicves that the workisg capiid is
sufficicnr to meet its eurrent requirements, accordingly oo fiquidity risk 5 porecived.

Flnanclng arrangensents A1 Murch 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

P [ong Tenn bean - Emergeney Credil Line Goamiiies Schene H20,37 -

Bank overdrafl 1LYTILTT 1,257.M

Floating ratz - WCDL - 15
La1.14 140734

Exposwre tw lynidity risk
The following arc the remainine contracteal matgies of Geascial Gabdlides a0 the regoniog date. The mineants ane gross and ondisconmad, and include estimated interest

patyrnents el exchnde the oopset of nelting agresments,

as At 31 iarch 2032 Contracinal cash flows

Carrving Tal Less than 1 Tyr o 2 yrs, mure than 2 yrs,

ETUTHITE YEAT B
Mon-derivative financial liabilitics
Burrowings R2137 R213T - BT
Bank Creerdraft 147097 1LAT0.77 147037
Trande payyables 8,169,530 4,169.30 2,169,350 - .
Lease labilities 150594 1.800.49 444,04 417,57 13929
rier financinl liabilitics 138410 __A7TAH0 A7 80 - .

13,5178 14,135.13 - 11,957,491 417,57 1,739,66
a5l 31 Mareh 2021 Comirnerual ensh fAowsy
Carrying anwinsl Tatal | e dham 1 Tvrio 2 vos, mreTe than 2 y1s
yeir
Hon-derivative finarcial labilities
Lo ingn: FELO0 151600 1500080 - -
Bank Qrverdrall 235734 325734 21,357.34
Trade pavables 1252149 1292158 1252199 i
Lense Lintulies Gl 47 1,375.20 AR636 51454 A 20
Uil Tizncial labilites 10153, 58 [IKER Y 21245 221.13 -
17.054.38 T.7AR20 - 15,638,004 1,035 87 464,20

iv. Mnrked rick

Marker Fisk 5 the risk gt clasges in merket prices — such as foremn exclange males, inleres) mtes and equity prices  will affzet the Company's ineome o the valus of its
herkiins of Frarcis mstroments, Markerisk 1 aticibetatle gl market cisk sensitive francial instruments inelading foreim curreney receivables and payables, We ane exposed
1o marked risk pricearily related e foreim exchaoge rate Tisk, mtecest mate risk and the market value of our meestmencs, Thus. our expasure to nzarket risk is o Tavetion of ivesting
and borrowing acrivities end revenue generating and operating activitics in forcign cwerrency. The objective of market fak naasagemend s G avoild exoessive exposne moour
ferzign cursensy revenoes and costs,

Currency risk

Uhe Company s exposed o curreney risk on aecennt of s payailes o foregm vepdons 0 verioss fereign currency. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee,
However the Company oz ratar] hedge, the colletion from its customer s m equivalent INE which comverts in various reguired currency and park i in SPRC (S pecial Pumpiee
Forzign Curreney | account ond release twe payment b2 its vendor as and when payahle,

The Company enters o foreign currenzgy tansactions in the Foszige Exchange asl Leisure Trved Oulboum] Businesses. The carrency nisk ansmg out of forsm curmensy
trmsactens in e Foreign Exclsnge husinzss is monitoned by g centeal dealing non, which hen hedges the pesitions transactions entered mee al individual kcations across the
coantry, through deals inoihe interbank markes, or through foreas controcts, thereby ensunng that there are mirimaol open positiors. In the Leisuse Travel Ouibeasd business,
pockape prices ure denominated partly mothe funcrione] comency of the Compary. Indisn Bupeea (MR, and panly i forcign curvencies. The portion of custeaser colleetion in
foreign curmrencics. whizh is parked in SPFC {Special Purpose Forcign Curteney' § accownts, 7 wsed o pay ofT vendor labilites, denmmioata? o foreagm comenees, fhereby
crenting a watural hodpe. Ag & resull, e risk pelated w foreigl curecney exchanes e fuedwation s insignilcen,

Risk starts on the day of taur lavnch, when prooe is fixed in foresm currency. Tour prce is collected around 13 davs: | mend in advacee and kegt in SPFC aceount 1o mee
pavment obligations 10 Fereipn Service providers.




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Continued)

T the vear ended 30 March 2022
Pallanseunt i Bs Lakhs, onless olherwise saied)

Naote 3 (Continued)

Financial instruipnents — Fair values and risk manapemend (confinuaed )

Exposure to curreney risk (Expesure In different curvenches eanverted o funetional corrensy )

Tl curecnesy profile of financial assets and Tiaaicial Habilines o al 10 Mach 2002 05 a5 bedoaw

as ab 31 March 2022

Amouit o INR

RN EUR Hi1R {hhers
Financial Azzels
Cnsh and cash cquivalents SHIHA 175.34 14.14 5731
Ol receivables moluding edvences 12826 a3 6,37 16 B4
91109 243411 0,51 111,15
Financial Liabilitics
Irinde el piher pavabiles 1.274.13 A54.59 11,72 216,30
127412 45450 .72 216,36
Ezchenge Races T5. 74 B4.22 HLAG
Kot Exposure In Respective currencics [RISRIE]] (21158} H.T4 5,70
as at 30 March 2021 Arnount m (NI
11513 [ELRLS G Oithers
Fimuncinl nssets
Cash aid cash cguivalonts L3 HE3 T3 16,69 354,57
Trade and other receivables including ndvinees 44154 124,481 1.52 175,32
1.554.81 R34 1821 TAlLEY
Filunancial Nahilitles
Trade @nd ather payables 1,161 41 41004 1na7 1005
116141 91104 1807 1008
Laxzhange mie 7352 R M 100,495
el Fxpreare i Respestive curmaies 63 00 (102,700 (LR 42131

Sensitivity analysis

A reasopably peeaible srrengthening (weakeningt of the Indiae Rupes agains vaiious curenszies ws mentioned ahove 2l March 31 2022 and March 21 2021 would bave
affected the measerement of fnzncial maruments deasminated 0 the respective cumencies and alfested profit o7 loss by the amounts shown below. This anslysis

agsutes il all odher variables, o ganicalse inlerest raes, remain constint amd gmores any impact of fonecast rarsactions 1o be held i te foreien curneneics,
Mlarcl 11, 2022 Amount in INR
| Frofit or loss Fouity, nel of tay
Strengihening Wi heri g Strenpthening Weakening
1% mavement
LsD {357) 35T +
LLLIR {2.14) 114
iRl 0.0% (005
March 31, 2021 Aot m MR
Frofit or Loss Exquity (net af fax)
Strengtlening Weikening Strenuihening Wenkening
1% movement
LI5N ER LERIEH -
ELUR (1.01) 1.0 - -
GEF (0.0 i =




S0OTC Travel Limited

Motes to the linancial statements (Continued)

dor e vear eodoa 310 Mareh 2022

LA grnoar m Ks Bakhs, wnless otherwise stated)

Mote M (Continwed)

Financial instroments - Fair values and risk management {continued |

Duterest rate risk

The exposure of e company's harrowing 10 intorest rate chanpes at the end of the reportine period e as folkows:

31 Mareh 2022 2] March 2021

Vamable rate of burmwings .50 550

Nank nverdzall (Weighted average infzreat ratc) BT B85,
Al the end of e reporting period, the company had the follewing fixed and variable raee bomosings:

31 March 2022 A0 Ml 20210

Ralamce %h ol dotal loans Balanzc % of total loans

fariahie mie of bormewings R24.410 Rl B30 ) f

Himk averdrall 1LATTT a9 240734 =}

Met exposure e cash ow dus o inlerss) mfe sk 2604, 77 1 235754 Lk

Bensitivity

Profit o7 Loss ts sensitive 10 irherlower infersst expense from bomowings as @ reselt of chimges i mierest rales
Changes i mieres) mde ane hased an histencal oovenued.
Tnygract on peadil after ax

3l March 2022 3] March 2021

Interesd mdes « ncresse by 100 basis points * {1753 1 1h.4d)
Toerest rates - deercase by 100 basis points * 17.83 Iih.he

* Haoldmg ol sdber variables constan

Mt 31
Contingent Llabilitles and Commitments (fo the extent not provided for)

A1 Murch ME2T 31 March 2021

Contingent Hahilitles
Claims against the Company nob poknowsledped s debis

a, Desputed elaims made by clicnes A0y 1Li7R 31
b Drisputed Servics Tax Demarnis 4. 555,30 £ 47051
o, Provident Fond Liabiliy oo account of pending Supreme coun judgment 3573 3T

{a) 1 i oot practicable for the company o estimatz the timing of cash flows, iFany, in respeet of the above peoding reselution of the respective prozecdines.

(1) The company docs nor expeed any rembursement i respect of the sbove contingen: Jiahilities,

() The Mon ble Sopreme Conetal Tdia (53407 by their arder daved Febrorge 28, 2008, st oot the principles Bised soow ool allosarces paid o be amployees <honk] be
identified for melusion m besic wages for the parpases of computation of provident fimd contribofsn, Subsegquently, & review petition gpamst das deesson bas been filed

and is ponding before the 5C for dispesal, Management hes pecounted for the liakility for the period from doee of the 5C order o March 21, 2008 Further, pending
lecisiea o tlee subject review petition and dircotions from e EPFOL the impact for the past period, if arge B nor ascoiainnble and conseguently pa offect has been given

m he pceounls

Code on seclal security, 2020

The Indian Parlinmen) fas approsed e code on social secwriny, Jab which would anpact e contrbutions by e compamy lowsards provedent Temd aod gratudly. The
cffeative date from which the changes are applicaby is yet to be notificd and the rues for guantitving the financinl impoct are wot to be framed. The company is m the
privess of canying aul the cvzluation and will give appropeiate impact in standalooe Boacial statements o the period in which code hecemes effeetive and the elalel
rules o determine e financinl mopast are publishes

Commitments {to the extent not provided ford Al March 2022 51 Marcl 2021

it Lstgmated sunount ol eontmcts semadining i be exeeued aacapital aceownt il oon prosdded foe net ol advances Td.ivh 4559




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the linancial statements {Continoed)
e e vene enelend 30 Marede 2023

(Al amaam) in Ba Lakhs, wnless olheraise stared)

Mate 32

Relatinnzhip with Smuck off Componizs under section 248 of the companics Act. 2012

57 Na Mnme of the struck off compaeny T Mature of transnctions with struck : Bnlanc.r Relationshig wiih the s:l.'uck aff company. if any, @
i [ ol enpiy Cutstanding e iz hvad
i Bl Trvel Cooades Pt Lid rnin Tickeling e T
i Savhinom Helidays Tours Franchisze 1.0 A
i Metd Werwork Services Lid, IT aervices (A ] M
iv Sipsa Holidaws P, Lad, Franchisee D% WA

Moute 33
Iliero nmed Smnll Enterprises

Under the Micre, 3mall end Medivm Enterprizes Development Act, 2006 whizh cams mio force from 2 October, 2008, certain disclosures are required ta be made
relatingg to does o Micse and Small Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, thore are oo panics rogistened & niem

arsl smill enterprizes

Partivulars Al Murch 2022 31 March 202
The aemouantz nsnainiog wipaid v Microasd Small Sugplices as &t e ond of the yoae

- Principal

- Interest {184 1154

The angunt af intereat paid by the buyer in terms of Scerion 14 of the Micro, Small snd Meodium Encerpriscs
Development Act, 2008 'MERMED Ace 2004 aloeg wilh the smeunt of the pavment mile o e sapplier
bewond the appointed doy dunnge esch azcounting year.

The amountz of the pavments e o micne and small supphers beeond the appointed day dunmge eacl i43
accouting vear. 18,32

The amount of mterest dug arst povable for the period of delzy in making payment (which have been paid but
by e appointed day during the vear) but withoor adding the interesr specified wisder MEMED AcL 2006,

The gmount of inerest aeemed wml remuming unpaicl of the end of eeh accounimye yeur
LR Y EY

.Y, 2020-2021 (k84 8

The amount of further inbzreat remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years. uitil suzh date when the
interes] duss as above are acteally. paid o the somall enterprize foe the papose ol disallewsnce soa deduciible X .84
capenditare under the MSMED Act, 2004

Muode 34
Bepmend repuoriing

The Cosnpany is i the business of providic g travel and related services toois rotail and corporae custorers which is conaidesed by the oM lel apealing decigwa miker
(O us the only reportable busioess sepment kg ints secount e naore of the busimess, the risk and returnz, the orgamisation strcture ond imternal reporting
gyatem, the Company alse provides financial services which is not a materinl reportable segment and is largely considered to be an integral par of wavel and relaced
servives. The iravel and related seevices inchedes our epemticas amd tavel managemen! services, aranging an Lckels, howels, sychiseeing, visa amd pfher relied
Borvioes.

Further, the Company provides serdees within similor econarmis epvmmonments considering the orggn of services and msks aml rewards being similar across the said
rarkla S environment, there arc no separate reportable geopraphical segmenes. Accardingly, these financial statcments are refloctive of te infonmation seguined by te:
Ind A% 108




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Continned)
e sl vewe ended 38 March 2022

(Al amaunr in Bs Lakhs, umless coherwvize stared
Mote A5

Capital Management

Fhe Compangy: comsiders the follewing companenes of its Bnlance Shest o be manaped copital:
ozl equity - reLaiogt candiggs, cupilal neeres, share capital

The Compeny mannges its capital 20 as 2 safepuard e ability to continue a: 8 polng conzeutazel o optiatias reonms e e sharsholdae, The capita! strecture of the Company s based
un management’s judymerd of the approprines bolance of key elements in order to mees its aimanegic avd day-io-day weeds, We gonsder the ammounl o capital in proportion o risk pnd
g e capital structure i light ol clnges e econenic combitiens anib the dsk chameleristics of the underlving asses

The Compore aims o translite profitable arewth e superior cazh pescration oozl clTicweanl capital asmageonent. The Compary's policy is 10 maistoin a stable and strang capital
smactume with i Facus on takal squicy s ns @ omomeain irvestor, sreditors and market cenfidence and oo sustaon futaee devebapment and proavthoaf it basiness, The Compemy's Frous is
v keeping strimg lotal equity bese fooensune mdepemience, seaimify, as well ps o high finemziol fiexibilite for potertial e bonvaoiaes, I6 nequirsl, witheal oapacting e nsk poofils
el the Company, The Comgany will ke appoopiate steps o asder o oaialain, or a5 necessreadjust, it capital strectre, The Cempainy is pot subiest 1o fitancial covenants m sy
itz sipmificnne financing npreements,

e nazagernenl mritors e nsuen an capital asowell as e level of dividersds ta shareholdess, The Company ‘s goal is @ contioe te be able 10 e excess lsguiding o sharehaldzrs
by eonwining ba distribute dividends in fataee peoods.

Mvate 30
Emphiver henefifs
The Camani.y corerues b the follawing post-emplaymer: defined benefit plans in India.

11 Dl canicihution plans:

The Company makos coetrbutions, determived as & specificd percemage of aigleves salares, morspest of gualifymg emplevess towards Provident Fund. Employee State [nsursnc:
Cemormtion, Labour Welfore Fared snd Xotonal Pension Scheme which ane defioed comnbution plas The Campany s m abligatizns sther than o mike the specified conributiens.
The cemimibutions nre clargesd oo the Salemnemt of prodic omd loss as they poome,

Admownt cinlributed o delined cenbobotion plas and recognesed s an axpaiss in the Soemens of Profitond Loss ore os anden

Particulars 3 ¥inrch 2022 A1 Mareh 202
Employer's congribiunian t provident fund 17913 21250
Employes's Slave swsnee Corpastion 1.1 1140
Prabicanl pansion seheme: L RI%Y KB
Labour welfnre fund 25 033
[iiy Thefined henefie plan:

Cratulty plan

The Compacy provides for Gramity vaing the projected wait credil methesd, with schasial valuations being carmied out ot ench balince shees dote, based on legisiaticas o5 emacted up 1o
the balnnes sheet date, Actvarinl gaing nnd losses are recognised o full in Other Comprehersis o an e poried inwhich they cocur, Past service cost s tecogmised immesdiacely 10
the extend thad the henefits are alnexdy vested,

Grobuity is paxvablz tooall elipible smployecs of dhe Commpaigy on superanmaticn, death and pemanen gl m e af dhe provisians of the Payment of Grooity Act, 1972 ar as
per the Company's scheme, whichever is more heneficinl

Compensated phsenees sned leave encashment
As per the leave polizy, eveny cmploves will be alletted 30 daya of leave bt Gt wock of Jasuary. Mo keaves cin be carrisd forennd o the rext year wheneby, the leave balae 120

umistilimed am 31 Decemibe shall lnpse, During the yeor, 0 sum nggrepacine te Be 327 orevious year Ra, 55220 has beendebived o tbe Siatament ol Prolie o ©aoss,

Bised on the nebanrial volunticn obtaired in this respact, the following table sets cul ibe staws of the gratuicy: plan and e amounts recegrised in he Company's firanzin] shiements as
al Balamee Skl claie;

Al Mareh 2023 31 March 2021

Cirmtuily

e lire] Benefit assel-Cinenily plan 42,04 12045

Tefined bepefit linbilicy 495,47 4o 0

Met defined benefit lishiliny 40,30 ivanal
Mk currerd A9h A5 ATRAl

- Currenl LE "] -

Compensated abyenoes

Linlsilicy ey cenpernsaed abacive SHAR 55.22

Tutal emplovee benefit llabilitles afd §7 A2EE3

o




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Continued)
far the year ended 71 Moreh 2022

AN Ay o Ba Lakhe, ondess ctherwise stared )

Nore M (Contlnned)

Emplipvee benefits (Cunlinued )

Mlovement in ool delined henefit {@siei) fiabilidy

The fallowing foble shews o reconciliotion Fram e opering bolanzes to the clesing bakances for oot defined beoclio s Dabilivy and s comparents

Ihefinedd bemefit obHpation Falr value of plan assets Met defined benefit
(asset) linbiliry
31 March 2022 51 Morch 2021 31 March 2022 31 Manch 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 202)
Uhpening balance ns on 1 April 2021 494116 B3V.55 TXd5 295 37541 35060
Lurmenl gervics coal Shdl 57,51 - - 2502 52m

Aubjustmend fe openzitg Side value ol plan agses & - £ 5
Expented return on plan nssets -

Pt servics cost 3 . : :
Ieerest cost {ncoane) 2493 W67 475 1287 20,08 2670
Serilemers S bemedils pod

Hi98 5157 4.35 [ERE Th.I 1560

D lucded n O
Remensunaneit sy (geing: - - - - =
Acruazinl lass {umin) 130,50) (IR20% 3 - TRIR ] (3520
Ferum on plan assets exchuding incerest income x = 155 A i) [Z1Al

{HELRY) (15200 11,531 L4l (434 159,57}
{hher
Comiribations pasl by the employer - - = = =
Benefits pnid (45,65} LID2.86] {45.405) (1L RE - <
Closing balance a5 on 11 March 2022 449847 444,08 9204 12145 1M, 38 17141
Hepresented Dy
Defined berefit nsset 2,08 14345
Dezfined benefit Llinbiliny U847 46 (i
Pectdefied henzfi lisbilie 6, 30 ERERD|
The major cutegaries of plans assers o gradoity are ax ol
Farticulirs 31 March 2022 11 Maveh 2021

Chinted Ungquided Tuotal e Uit Lulal

Ensurer Sdamaged Funds 92017 - WEiT 12045 2 12043

Diefined henefit obligntions
L Actusrial assumptions

‘The folkvwing wiere the prncipal actusnal sasumpdions an the sepondng dale fespresed as welphied avemges),

Al March 2022 21 March 2021

Dhiscount rafe SR % §55%
Balary cscalation rate % %
Manaldy rawe LALLM (X012-14) [ALM (2012-14) Uit
Frployes Arrition Rale

Upto Ape 30 15.29% I
Ape 3140 T67% 22000
App AL-50 13.97% 20000
Ape 51-59 i 2% R RITE

Assunptions regarding fabre monalify have been bosed on published statistics acd moaliog talbles, The curent lengevites undeedyiigg e walues of the delined herelit ohligisen al fhe
reparting dace were s Tolliows

As ar 31 March 2022, the weighted pverape damtion of the defined benefit oblizaton was 4.35 vears (3] Mareh 2021 @ 4.77 vears)




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Continued)
e ke vewr pnded 20 Meveh 2

(Al amount in Ks Lakhs, umless ctbenwise stared )

Mote 36 (Continued)
Eaploves henelits (Cminued)
Ii, Sensicivity analyss

Reisonably passihle chempes af the reporting dale 4o one o e relevam octional pssemptions, belling ciber azsumptions constace, would kave affected the defined beoelin shiigation
by the mneards shewn below,

3 March 2022 31 March 202
Increass Iherense Inereaie Dhocneime
Diseount rate {2022 - [% and 2021 - % movement] [10,64] 1106 111.5£) 1205
Fului salasy growin (2022 - 1% and 2021 - 1% mevement) 1,600 {1k31) 11.54 LTy

Adthougly the analysis doss not take aeocard of the full distributien of cash Mews cxpeeted wunder te plag, @ docs previde an oppresimation of te seesitivite of e psemptions shawmn,

The fallowing tkle shows expenss recegnised in Profic ond Loss account and
M 2 31 March 202

el s sl 2602 5.0

ot sy cosd -

Interest incomz, nel 2014 |
T, I T34

The: following fable sheas remensarement recopmissd in Other Comprehensive Income
X1 March 24122 ¥? March 202

Actuarial ks [gain) dags on delfensd beocfic oblieation {3049 (3020
Beturn o plan asscts exclodig tuensn incense {12.83) (21405
{4141 (HLaLY

Risk Exposure for gradoity

Threugh it cefined herelil 1lare, e ceaapny i rx;1|.m.'x| B3 muanher of risks, (he mosd s;i|5niﬁ|::|n nf which pre detailed haloy

n) Asset vislntiliey: The plan abilibes are calealael wing g discourd mte setwith reference o bend yizlde, i the plan asssts underperform this vield, this will coears a defieil Futher
any deerease in e boeel piclds will ipercsse te plan Hakillies. The plan assets invesimends are in unguoles) securites which orz subject to imeress race tisks and e fund manages the
Imleresl e rsks woan aceepiable low leyel

by Halnry prowth & Demageaphic nssumptions: The plin is of a finol snlarye defined benefic io nobare which i sponsared by the Congay and leooe 0 undeswrivz all e nsks
pertaining b the plan Inpartizelar, there s misk for the company that ooy advesss anlare growth or demepraphic espesence of iadequate et an undeslyaig plan s co el
ioonm increase in cost of providing these benafics fo employess io fuburs. Sinee the bepefits are lump sem in oafure e plai s et subjeel ooy koeevily daks.

Mole 17
Share-based paymenl arrangemaants:
A, Descrlption of share-based payment arrapgements

i Share uption programes (eguily-settled]
Thiwzars Covk (Indiz Limeted, the parent company his grnted employes seck apfions fo the Company's smplovess on the darss mentionsd belew, Under these plan, the halder of the
wedted aptions ace catied 1o puschase e shaies o the beldine congar 80 csensise preee asoneiouwed below.

The key terms and comidfitions relased fo the prrds umider these plane ane az fallows;

Methad of
Fun Settlemant Girani dale M ngeinns Eservise price Visting perisd
TS0V 20G Eyguily T Npvember 225 Rs. | L% of the eplivas
2016 vast ot the end of the
4 yearsre,
- Mar-20020
EROP 2015300 T Lyury 13 Jyne 2018 4,22 B L3703 Laets af the aplurs
west af 1 end of ihe
A yeamiie
Fi-June -2
RO 20 E-EXTCOM Fapuiry 3 Daaober 2018 oA B 1 g al e apdiors
vt af dhe end af tla
9 years e
LR B

Share aptions outstnnding sf the ead of the vear have the following expiry dsfe and exerchbse prices

March 30,2022 March 31,2011

Grant Date Expiry dute’ Expiry Yenr  Excrclse priee (Rs.)  Share oplions She re gadinms
T Mavember 2006 | Mowember 2040 1 2
13 June 2017 10 Junz 2321 1391 150 213
S {dcteher 200K 20 Bepembor 2043 1 057

Tkl 237

.“rlglmd nyerage remalning contractal e of options outstanding at end of year 1217 Years




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial stalements (Condinued)
fow the vear peded 20 Marah 2022

SAI ammand 4 R Lakli unbess odberwise sticed

YWole 37 (Conlinued)
Share-based payioent arrangemenis: [Conlinaed)

B. Measurensent of fair values

Eopuity-setled share-bazed poymrent nrmngemens

The Fair value of the employes shane opdian: hos heen mensared vsing the Black-Schales fomiwds. The Bleck- Selwlcs madel rogquires the consideratian af cemain yoriahles such s
volatilicy. risk fove male, expected dovslend wiehd, ele. for the cobzlaton af the foir value of the apticn, These variables sipaificantly influeice the Ceir vilue ansd any changes in thess
variahles could significasthy affest the fadr valwe of te optuan,

Themus Coek (relia Limied, the holding coampemy (TTCIL) i coniposite scheme of rangenent demerged is Husan Besources Services Busmes amd srnstfzms) it o Qness Carp
Lintdied "Ouess). The scheme was appreved by the Natiomal Company L Tribumad (SCLT3 wich the appointed date gs Apol 1 2819 1 e effective dae ol e scheme wis
Movember 23, 2009 when bath TCIL aid Qs fled Ui centilied coguaes of the ander with et mepective sunsdictionnl Regismmr of Companies.

A oa part of the composite schense, Binplovees whase FSOPS wene outstmding on the efective die will be entitied ta the additicnal shares of Ouss oo aceear, e e donsrger of
Human Bescuree Business. lestead of aliering e cxeredse proes, TEIL groovdded addivenal swanl in fram of Qoess shires

The employses ane now enritled to shares of Cuess along witl these of TOIL o the ganye share entitlemenn gado prseribed in the selbeme far the ather shorebalders af TCIL

I el vesbel 1RO, Ahe empleyees will he grmied shares of TCIL ond Cuess enly on payment of the excrcie prce. o case o unvesied BSOPs e employees will be granted
shar of TCIL ad Quess e completion of e seassimig vestiog perod arel pazsment of the exercise prics,

The pprians, k2 the extent, which are settled by shares of Queas do por meet the definition of @ share-beied payoment armneemens hecise the valoe of shores of Quess is nod bazed on
e prdee o vales ol TS equily dnstnamernds or oy of ik groop srbe's ety nstnanenis,

The apticns to the excen whech are sertled vy slares of Quess will be considened a5 an employee benefil within the scope of Ind A% 19,

The aptivmes setled by shires of TOIL contings a2 e considered as shore bosed paynwents and ane accownted as por 1500 AR 102,

Murch 2022 Mamch 2021
[ ESOPF Z01&- ESOM" 2018- — o PRS0 2 8- FROP T01R-
R EXECOM ~ UOVINIE MGMT EXECOM
Fair vilue {Esap Fxpenses) 117,78 B3,65 15581 11778 K165 15580
Fair volue {Srock Expenses) 95,19 A5.71 9521 95.29 8571 9321
Mumber of optionm . 1Kl 57 2328 213 {e5T.
Slare pruce af g date HE.55 24863 256,20 21855 24863 256,20
limereise price 1.0 L3703 1.4 [REI] 137,53 1.an

C, Reconciliation of outstanding share options
1l sigaber and welghted-averape eneecse prsoes o shane optiors under the shans aptien pregrms were ns folloss;
Farticalars Mumhber of  Wedphted nvernge Mumberai  Weizhred aweraps
agdinng EXErCiwe price aplams SRR pricy
A1 March 222 30 March 2022 31 March 2021 30 Marelc 2z

Cptions ourstaindiog &5 ar tlus begimiig ol e year 4,95 58,77 A4 TR
Cptions grnted during the year i : .
Crpticms Pxercised during the vear 241 IR 26 = 5
Crptioms lapsed! forfeiced during the wenr 0. 137,93 2,40 LIE.1%
Chptiens catatanding as an the vear eod 1M 104,85 405 jh e
Opiliens veated avl exencdsablbe al the el ol the yor - - - .

0 Expensesfshares option outstanding account arlsing from share based payment transactions

Tetnl experses arising from shore-based payment relaced transactiong recognised in pralilac leds as pan el empleyes benefic experse wene s fallows:

Partlealnrs 31 March 2032 31 March 2021
Ermployee ESCIP experes 2754 LR T
Emplovee Stegh Expenses 1771 [ t]




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial stotements (Continned )
g at 2 MWarel 2022

{.-'\I| amount m Kz Lakhs. unless olhenwise =l )
Mt 38
Related party transactions

(A) Mames of related parties by whom control existy

Mame of the partics

Fuirfax Fingneio] Holdingss Limied, Canada

Rela[h;]';ia.lps

Ulrimate Helding Corapary

Thormos Cobe {Brdiand Lirsited Heslding € ompargy
(3} Farties over whom conirol exisis
Helatinmships Namie of the parties

Subsidiary Company of SCC Tovel Limiled

Irarel Cincle Inteermational  Monrtius) Limited (Holdg 1% of total Equity,».2.£ 27 Jaee 2017}

(C} Fellow Subsidiaries with whom tramsactions has ke place during the year

Refationships

Fellinw subsidiaries

Ponme of the purtics

T Wiza Services (Indin} Limited

Travel Corporation (Ieelin) Limited (Amalzamated w e f 25th Movember, 2019)
TOL-Coe Vacation: leelia Tt Liad

Allszd Tpro Cwee.f 2900 Tune 20017)

Luxe hsin Private Limited

Sterhug Hokebay Besarts Limifes]

Queess Corp Limited fuplae 31 Mok 2019)

Asian Trails S0 BHD {Malayzia)

Asinn Trailz Lid. {Thailand)

T Ao Tl 1l

Acian Trails {Vietnam) Co, Lid

Booni Frivate Safaria (Pivi Led

Provade Sotans BA Lid

T Tours Limited { formerly knowen as Thoias Ok Towrs Listed')
Thomas Cooek Tours Limibed

Austmalz Tours Management Pry L,

BE] Haldings Tid

Themas Coak (Mauritiva} Holidaws Limited

Horzen Travel Serveees LLC

Themer] Acventures Toursan 110

ComAchiove Solutiong Privae Tinitsd ( upte 11 Ml 2009)

Truvel Circle International Lid Hongkong

At Trails Helding Lid,

Blucmi Anstratin Holding Pry 100

Thamas Cook (M auritas) Operatons Co Lid

10 Travel Services Limited

Fairfas Idin Claritable Foondition

Travel Corporation (Tadiz) Limited {fonnecly ks as SUFTC T nve] Managrerment Limited }

(M Key Management Persomnel | Directors and Management Counil

Particulars

Munaging [Hrector

Directors of the Company

Chief Flnancial Officer

Compnny Secrefury

Members of Management Council

Mam of the key manggement personnel
1. Wishal Suri

Mr. Madliavan Menon
Mr. Milesh Wikamaey
hdes, Kishord Udeshi
Mre. Rall Beggai

Mr. Diehasis Mandy

Mr. Farrpaikls Kolah

M. Kiran Agarwal {upte 20 May 2020)

M, Ulhamag Vg {from 29t Moy 20240 to Bth Mow 20200
M Praveah Pl {Gronn 2300 Jan 2007 10 3ol Moy 2521
Mz, Bhaily Gugta {w.c.f 15t Apr 2022)

b, Vishal Suri

br. Farroukh Eelah
M. Indiver Rastog
M. & T Mandak umea
Mr. Danict Daouzs
Wi, Deepti Sheth




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the linancial statements (Continwed)
asa 1 Ml 2022

(AN pmount in Bs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions (O amiirned)

(E) Relaored pariies witk whow transaciions foas taken place during she vear

Farticulars Yaour Hulding Company Lltlmate H-:-'Ia'lﬂ_g" = Subsldiarbes Fellemw Assurintys
Loy sahsidinries

Income from towrs 2022 Q440 {3d.08)
221 17056 (148413

Cost of tours & related services 022 L264.03 - 4343, 0y
221 465 - Llansa

Cruaranter fees paid 22T 1LE2 - -
2021 LHREH = = b

Expenzes reimbursed 1022 (WITENIE] 4.14 -
2021 11268 - S

Expenscs recovercd ma2 LER O 24,109 -
2021 75,28 4759

Interest expenses on ROU assets 22 5167 i
2] o.in .

ROL lease Hability Il 1 55136 - -
2021 T

Froductivity Unked boous inconse 20 - - 3
2021 - - 5020

Loan Receivahle i) 2 = o < =
02| 1,150,349 » - 4043 00

Term loan given during the year a2 3,000 - =
21 420000 - LRIL RN

Term b given {repaid) during the vear 22 4,450,389 * - R Rk i
2] 4,150.39 .

Interest inconie on long, berm Do M2z 643 S840 =
2021 09,63 o 44

Frovision for dosbtful advances Hx2 403
2021 -

Hecrivilsles Wz R RE.79
20121 4781 24693

Advance W suppliers mzz 403
2021 .08

Payahles il AT 21943 -
021 36l 68 - 1LA14,01

.




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financial statements (Continued)

i el F5 Mol 2022
EAI o i Bs Lakhe, unless athervise stofedd

Relafed party transactinng {Conitrued)

{F} Wames of partles (substdiarvles and fellow subsicliaries) having relied porty tronsactions in exeess of T0% o line transactions:

Particulars

D from e

-

Ot of tswrs anel relaied services

Expenscs relmbursed

Expenscs recoverod

| Incentive paid  Netted off from Bevenwe)
Froductivity linked bonus

Short term loan

Shurt term loan repaid

Tnterest lwcome on terin boan

Provision fur doeubtfnl advances

Haeceivahles

Payahles

Advance to supplicss

Ielbsw yubsidiariv

TGO Y acation
T Tours Linzited
Trreel Corporotion (Indiay Limited

T Tonzrs Lirm el

Hiwrdeon Trivvel Servsces 1100

Dhszit Adventunes Toars=m 1L

TC Wisa Rorvices (hulaa) onited

Travel Corpagation (lidia) Tanifed

Acian Tradls ( Thailand)

Fonomn Privale Safans (Pryvt Lid

Tl Cook (Maumitius) Holidays Limied

Travel Corporation (ladia) Lioiled
Luiree Asia

Frvveel Corporation { it Limited

Hhonzon Travel Services LLC

Desert Adventures Tounsm LLC

Private Safuriz EA Ltd

Euoni Private Safaris {Prv} Lid

Travel Cirele International Lid Honghone
CET Holdings Lid

Asian Trails Hallieg Lot

Kuini Auvstzalia Holdag Pre Ll

Thenas Crook {Manrities) Operhons Ce Lid
Theanas Coek (Misiritiuz ) Hahdigs Limited
Thezras ook Lamben {'rvite) Limited

T Tre] Servves Limiged

TC Touars Limitzed

TC Tours Limited

Travel Cincle Infernntianal [Macritius) Lanited
Travel Cirele Infernational {Mawriviog) Linived
Trvvel Cerele Intermational {Mauritios) Limited
Luiee Asia Private Limitcd

Travel Carpemation {Irehiank Limifed
TGO Vacation

Hiizon Travel Services 110

Dazsert Advenbures Tourism LLE

Kuoni Private Safans {Pry, Lid

Thomas Cook Lanka (Frivace) Limited
Privite Safars EA Ltd

1300 Tholdmgzs Lid

Asian Trnls Holfing Lad,

Foweni Ausizalin lakling Pre Lod

TC Towrs Lidles]

Thamas Cook {Mausitius) Holilays Linned
Thamas Cook {Mauritivs) Operatkas Co Lid
Travel Cirzle Intemational L1d Horpekonge

Travel Corporation (Indiny Limsted

Sterding Hulidiy Resoris 1l

Asian Trails [ Thaland)

Horizon Teanel Services LIO

Dhzsert Advenburc: Tourisn: LLC

Ihemas Cook (Maontus) Holidays Linieed
102 Togrs Limited

T Wisa Services (Indua Limiced
Bordorbess Travel Services Ll (B4

Luxe Asia Private Limited

31 March 2022
{iL1H)

L7
{2720

ek | ]
20,56
W9y
167.49
1.0
L5
1214

EN [k

414

11.72
0,80
1.29
080
.80
137
LEH
kX1
.92
51
1185
1.3

4,843
A7H4
7402

1505
1.54

30,54
9551
i
1615

7403

3 -Mar-21

(A5 05
(7200
(3745}

TAT14
714
218
5342

4,51
M58

1540
|23
132
nRz
B2
204
44
A7
141
1457
435 |
Lag

3N

4,043 64
41,44

Al6l
1827
1.63
1|
1,25
1.34
1.4
N.25
4.08

144,34
ila
A4
(1A%

Bz
1ug
L
4,55
Rk
6.l
L5153
46,12

TR




SOTC Travel Limited

Motes to the financinl statements (Continoed )
o af 37 Mavel 2022

LAllammet in s Lakhs, undess ollersise shed)

{G) Relatod paries with Holding and Uldware Helding Company

Farticulury 1 np i Compan 3 Yarch

Income from tours Thamas Caok (India) Limited 040 1759 56
Cast aof tarry and rebited services Thorms Cook (ndis) Limited 1264013 ELIN]

Eapenses rebmnbuorsed Thoinas Coek (Irdiah Livndne) 10604 1,162 68

Expenses recovered Thieaas Cook {dia) Linnded a4.62 28

Interest expenses on RO nssets Themas Coab (India) Limized 167 Rl

ROV lemsa linbility Theazs Caak (lncha) Tonited 55230 AR
Cuarantee Foes paid Thomas Cook (India) Limited .82 (003
Tasan Receivalile Thennas Cok (Irafia) Limidle:d L 1,150,311

Term loan given during the year Themos Cook {Indind Limited 3,000 A 20000
Term loan repabl ducing e vear Teearias Corke {lia) [Amied A H5030 415039

Interest Income on term loan Thomas Coake (India) Limited 43 e f

Receivalles Thamas Cook (India) Linived 3R 4781

Payables Thomus Cook (India) Limited 32T 5188

(H) Transactions with Key Management Personmel
Particulams 30 Mareh 2022 31 March 27 ll

Salarics and ather eoplayes benefits 0 whabe-tirme directors and execubive officers

M Vishal Sur 625,24 11365
b, Forcaukh Ezlab 5145 1655
. Boiran Agarwal fupla 2080 May 20200 . TAH
M. Chire YWaja (Froon 2000 May 2020 to 9th New 20200 & 168
Mr Privvesh Falod (wee £ 25th Tan 20200 - (LR
Mr. & I Nandakumar 9747 A2
Mr. Danicl Deouza H193 5354
M, Decpri Sheth 41,17 2002
Commisaion and other benefits o pon-cxrceutboc independent directoes . B

Girnuity 15 egnimiButed Tor (e compony oz whale and hence excluded




SOTC Travel Limited

Maotes to the financial statements (Continued)
araf 34 Marel 2622

(AL amant i Ba Lakhs, unbess onherwze siated)

MNote 10
Financial performance ratlos M umeraior Denominator il Mnn:_lu 022 A1 March 2050 Y4 Chanpe ]
A Performuonee Rutios
Mt Profit rtée (1) Loss aller tax Revenve rom cpesalions -18% -116% -RE%
Average working capital -
Wit Capital Turnover Ratho (i rinses) (i) Revenne Iram cperitions {0paning nel carrent assels | (0,8 {044} 1219,
Llosimg nel curment pssers 2
Capital Fiployed = Tangihle
Return an Capital Enployod & Lawsss heslimer anderest and tax Mel Worlh ®* 1 Lolal Db -5 Dy NA
Lense Linbilities
ik Avarage lotzl sgquily — o
Feturn on Equity il Lass afies tas [Openiog ol ggueity © Closmg 1A% T =%
izt ity
) ) Mverage mvested fund in
L [ — Ineome gf:ncm-:,d from invested fund in mpgies= (Opening ﬁjm{' it i S p—
the marker miarket— Closig fands i ihe
kel 1!
T - Loss before imarest, tax and | lirrayings poncipal payments, :
Peb Service Coverige Tatio /) Cidipraaativ and s crtisation Liscesk s Boue: et MNA WA M
1| Leverage Ratios
Lhebi- Equity Ratio (it Towal Horeowimgs Todal Equiry 109 (144 148%
O | Licpuidhity Rutivs
Currend ratio # Curren) Asseds Taotal Currenr Liabilities 30 .55 ~14%
D |Activity Ratla
Iventory Turnaver matio Cost of aorvices Cleamg invenitory A NA N
Averape lade receivables =
Trade Recervialble Turnower ot (iv) Hevenue from operations {Dipesningy fracle receivihle | 028 1.2& RERLH
Closimg trade receivable )2
Averige Itale pivable —
Irisle Payable Diamover Katio (1v) st of services (Upenmg trade pasable + 1412 K] IR
Cloging trade pavablz)2
* Med current pssets = Total currend assets - Total curmcnt liabilicy
=Fangible izt worth = Tokl nel worth - Inlengible assels {inchuding intangible asset under development amd poodwill]
i Rinee the Conpaiy has incured keges
Keasia for Yuripne
i Due o moprovement mothe busines:s operation reseleed in redustion in lsses post Covid 19 pandamic
i D b reslugtion in working capitl,
fii The ratic s neresast beeause compsang bas borowed term lean from HOFC (ECLGS).
v Dhue o inprovensent in e bosinesa operation post Covid 19 padamic,
Poate 41

Ohther Statutory Information

(i) The Company does not hove aoy Berami property. wheee any proceeding bas been inifated o7 i perding apainst the Compary. for bolding any Beuani propeny,

(i} The Conpaiy does, vat have any clarges or satisGcton of such charges which ane ver o be reaisteeed with e Begiztmr of Companies (ROC) beyand the stivtory period,

(31) The Compony bas not raded or irvested in Crypto curreney or Viewsl Careney durmg fhe lrancisl YT,
(tv} The Conyrany has nat advianced or kaed or invested funds to any other perzon{s) or entingics). meheding feeign entities (Intermedanes) with the understandiog that the [seemediary

shill;

it} dhirectly or indinevtly lend or invest in ofher persons o entitics idetified in s nsimer whitsoever by o on bebalf of the company (Uliimate Beneficiacies) or
{b) provide noy guarantee, security or the like 10 or en belall ol e Uidmate Benelosanes,

{3 The Compary las ool received any fured from s person(s) o7 entityfics), including foreign entitics (Funding Paste) with the urdlerstimding fwbether recorded in writing or stherwise

Tt thee Clonmpany shall;

{al dingetly or indinectly kod orinvest in ether persens or entitics idenrified i any nanner whalsoever by eron behalt of the Funding Party (Ultimate Benefiziarics) o
(bh provvide amy guarantes, securilty or the 1ke on behalf of the Tliosle Hepelciries,

(vid The Company does el bave any ransaction which s oot recesded in the beoks of avcoant i hove been surrendered or disciosed as income during the year i the i assessmenls
ander the Incame Tan Act, 1961 (zuch as. search or survey) ar any ollier relevamt privdisions of the Income-lax Act, 1961




SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of cash flows {Continned)

S e vear erded A8 Maech 2053

(ALl ool in Bs Lakhs, unless olhenwise stoted )

Reconclllation of Cash and Cach equivalents with the Balance Sheet
Cash and Bank Balances gs per Balance Sheet
Cash and Cash equivalents as restated as at the yesr end

Mk
Cornpongnits of cash and cash eguivalenis consists afb

Cash on hand
Ralance with Ranks
Current Account
Lema: Rank Cwverdratt

For the vear ender
31 March 2021

For the vear ended
3 Muareh 2022

Amapant Armoun
[R5 BT 1,520.03
(947,44 1,526.63
139 2054
RT3 370343
{LETO.77) (2,257,313
(941,99 152061

Heconciliation between opening and closing balances n the Balance Sheet Tor labilities arising from lnancing activitics

Orpeming Tenm Luen from Bank
Proceeds from bogrowings
Repayinents of homowings
Closing Term Lozn from Bank

Mues:

FSEL0H) SN0

B2L3T 15040
{15000} 500,00}
B20,27 150,00

1. The above statement of cash New has been prepured under the 'Indizect method” a5 selout in the Indian Aceounting Standard (TND AS) 7 - "Statement ol cash

o™,

Sipnificunt accounting policies

Mates o the finunecial statements

The notes relerred te above form an integral parl of the Dnancisl satements
As per our Teporl el even dele sttached

For RS R & Co. LLP
Chanerad Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo: LI Z48W - 100022

73 b

Blavesh Dhupelia
Parner

Mermbership Moz Da2070
hlumbai

ggma_;j e 1 o o o 8

Nafe
I8
243

Fow and on behall of the Board of Directors of
SOTE Travel Limited
[N LRI04 HZON T PLOC I3 1691

e Vishal Suri

Musaging Dhrceior

| DM GO 342 | [TIN: e 5771

s

E—wv’“‘- Wala~ [%7’

Farroukh Kolah
Cheel Fivanclal (fficer
Mumbai

16-May-22

Shuily Gupta
Commpniy Secvetary
[8 Mu: AZ307E]



